NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda

North Tahoe Event Center
8318 North Lake Boulevard, Kings Beach, CA

Tuesday, March 10, 2026, at 2:00 P.M.

Welcome to a meeting of the North Tahoe Public Utility District Board of Directors

The District welcomes you to its meetings. Your opinions and suggestions are encouraged. With a few exceptions, all meetings are
recorded and available online after the meeting has concluded. The meeting is accessible to people with disabilities. In compliance
with Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, anyone requiring
reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting should contact the North Tahoe Public Utility District office at (530) 546-4212,
at least two days prior to the meeting.

In addition, all written public comments received by 1:00 p.m. on March 10, 2026 will be distributed to the District Board Members for
their consideration and all written comments will be included in the minutes. Pictures, graphics, or other non-written comments may
beincluded in the minutes at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Written comments may be emailed to mmoga@ntpud.org, mailed
or dropped-off at NTPUD’s Administrative Offices located at 875 National Ave., Tahoe Vista, CA. 96148.

The Board of Directors may take action upon any item listed on the agenda at any time during the meeting. Scheduled items will be
heard at or after the time noted, but the Directors may interrupt or defer discussion in order to deal with other matters. No action will
be taken at the meeting on any business not appearing on the posted agenda except as permitted by Government Code Section
54954.2.

TIMED ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA

Timed items on this agenda will be heard no earlier than the time listed below:
2:00 P.M. Public Comment and Questions

A. CALL TO ORDER/OPEN SESSION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
B. REVIEW AGENDA - Agenda Items may be taken off the agenda or taken out of order.

C. PUBLIC COMMENT AND QUESTIONS (2:00 P.M.): Any person wishing to address the
Board of Directors on items on the agenda or matters of interest to the District not listed
elsewhere on the agenda may do so at this time. Please limit comments and questions
to three (3) minutes since no action can be taken on items presented under Public
Comment.

D. REPORTS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Reports are informational only, and no
action will be taken.
1. Tahoe-Truckee Sanitation Agency (T-TSA) Report (Pages 4-5)
2. Board Committee Reports

E. CONSENT CALENDAR: Consent Calendar items are routine items which are approved
without discussion or comment. If an item requires discussion, it may be removed from
the Consent Calendar prior to action.

1. Approve Accounts Paid and Payable for the period from February 10, 2026 — March
9, 2026 (Page 6)
2. Approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2026 (Pages 7-10)

Agenda Posted on March 6, 2026 by Misty Moga, Administrative Liaison




Authorize the General Manager to File a Notice of Completion for the North Tahoe
Event Center Emergency Generator Project (Pages 11-12)

Authorize the General Manager to File a Notice of Completion for the North Tahoe
Event Center South Restroom Renovation Project (Pages 13-14)

Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Increase to the Annual Purchase Order
with Western Nevada Supply for Water and Wastewater System Materials and
Supplies (Pages 15-16)

Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Placer County Transient Occupancy
Tax (TOT) Funds Grant Agreement for the North Tahoe Regional Park Public Art
Project (Pages 17-26)

Approve General Liability, Property, and Cyber Insurance Program for 2026-2027
(effective April 1, 2026) (Pages 27-30)

F. GENERAL BUSINESS

1.
2.

3.

4.

North Tahoe Event Center Status Update and Strategic Review (Pages 31-67)
Consider and Discuss Approved Adjustment to Water and Wastewater Rates
Effective July 1, 2026 (Pages 68-107)

Review, Discuss, and Provide Direction Regarding the District’s Utility Rate Relief
Program (Pages 108-126)

Review, Discuss, and Possibly Nominate Any Special District Representatives
(Directors) to Serve as a Regular Voting Member for Local Agency Formation
Commission (LAFCO) and Authorize the Board President to Complete the
Nomination Form (Pages 127-133)

G. MANAGEMENT TEAM INFORMATIONAL UPDATES: Reports are informational only,
and no action will be taken.

1.
2.
3.

NOo Ok

General Manager/CEO Report (Pages 134-136)

Public Information and Community Outreach Report (Pages 137-141)

Accounting Department Report for the month ending January 31, 2026
(Pages 142-183)

a. Monthly Financial Report

b. Treasurer’'s Report

Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Department Report (Pages 184-186)

Planning and Engineering Department Report (Pages 187-197)

Utility Operations Department Report (Pages 198-202)

Legal Report (Pages 203-205)

H. BOARD COMMENTS

. LONG RANGE CALENDAR (Pages 206-208)

J. PUBLIC COMMENT AND QUESTIONS: See protocol established under Agenda Item
C, Public Comment and Questions.

K. CLOSED SESSION

1.

Agenda Posted on March 6, 2026 by Misty Moga, Administrative Liaison

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Property: 6610 N Lake Blvd, Tahoe Vista



Agency negotiator: Bradley A. Johnson, P.E. — General Manager/CEO
Negotiating parties: Tahoe Sands Time Share Owners Association
Under negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION —
Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 — Name of case:
Helwig v. NTPUD, Sacramento Superior Court Case No. 25CV025985

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION -
Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 — Name of case:
NTPUD v. CalTrans/State of California, Placer County Superior Court Case No.
pending

4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION -
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Section 54956.9: 1 case

L. ADJOURNMENT

Agenda Posted on March 6, 2026 by Misty Moga, Administrative Liaison



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: D-1
FROM: Tahoe-Truckee Sanitation Agency (T-TSA) Representative
SUBJECT: T-TSA Regular Board of Directors Meeting Summary of February 18th

1) The February 18th, 2025 — This Regular Meeting was held in person.
e Board Meeting & Agendas: https://ttsa.portal.civicclerk.com
e Board Meeting Videos are still available on YouTube (click link):
www.youtube.com/@TTSABoardVideos

2) Status Report:

a) Operations Report:
e All plant waste discharge requirements were met, and the plant performed well in January.
e Filter #3 is repaired and back in service.
e Tahoe Expedition Academy toured our plant.
e Staff toured the Modesto wastewater treatment facility with Carollo Engineering.
¢ Painted piping and valves in the chem pump station.
e Digester feed box cleaning.

b) Capital Projects Report:

e Digestion Improvements Project: Brown and Caldwell (BC) 60% Design deliverable and
workshop received. Equipment and procurement contracts are ongoing. The Construction
Management RFP is holding. The scope and Fee amendment discussion is ongoing.

e Nutrient Removal Improvements Project (NRIP): Carollo is performing data review and
Design Informational Memorandums (DIM). (DIM-01) Bioreactors, Membrane Facility &
Fine Screening: Received and workshop completed. (DIM-02) Ultraviolet Disinfection:
Received and workshop planned for February. (DIM-03) Phosphorus Sequestration and
Solids Handling: Received and workshop planned for February. Construction Management
RFP is holding. Staff completed three facility tours in Modesto and Salt Lake City. The
RAD public outreach team website is being finalized, and initial notifications are being
prepared.

e Network Upgrades Project: Fiber optic ring to provide long-term risk mitigation against
single-point failures. Jacobs completed the Conceptual Design Report in June 2025.
Phase 1 work is planned for Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 and 2027. The Final Design Scope was
approved by the Board, and a kick-off meeting will soon be scheduled.

c) Laboratory Report:
e Continued CDPH Covid sampling for the Department of Health.
e Completed all proficiency testing for 2025. Passed all without issue.
¢ Staff (some) attended the TNI Conference in Boston in January.



https://ttsa.portal.civicclerk.com/
https://www.youtube.com/@TTSABoardVideos/featured
https://cpauthentication.civicplus.com/Identity/Account/Login?ReturnUrl=%2Fconnect%2Fauthorize%2Fcallback%3Fclient_id%3D557a888c-067f-4b9c-b04a-da069f16e881%26redirect_uri%3Dhttps%253A%252F%252Fttsa.portal.civicclerk.com%252Flogin-callback%26response_type%3Dcode%26scope%3Dopenid%2520profile%2520email%2520civicclerk.api%2520notifications.api%26state%3D4b197bb0840545c2bee8b592b4947c5a%26code_challenge%3DX-ENp5NOefkTRrHRsopJKnPfRbiLD93Sw1gd5qw6aFQ%26code_challenge_method%3DS256%26response_mode%3Dquery
https://ttsa.portal.civicclerk.com/

d) Public Outreach and Training/Conferences:
e Leadership Brown Bag Presentation with Staff.
e Safety and Compliance Administrator On-Boarding.
¢ Presentation to the NTPUD Board of Directors.

e) Other Items Report:
e The Board Approved:

e The Consent Agenda: General Fund Warrants for December 2025, January 2026, and
the Regular Meeting Minutes for December 17, 2025.

¢ Authorized the General Manager to Approve the Network Upgrades Project Engineering
Design Contract.

e Approved the Nomination of Judy Friedman as the Placer County LAFCO Commission
Regular Special District Representative Seat for the 2026-2030 Term.

e Additional Items:
¢ Informational Update on the Agency Bond Issuance.
¢ Information and Discussion on the Agency Quarterly Financial Plan Update.
¢ Information and Discussion on the Draft Capital Improvement Plan for 2027-2030.
e Department Reports and General Manager Report: Informational updates only.
 Closed Session for Public Employee Performance Evaluation of the General Manager.

LINKS:
Please Note: January Board meeting was canceled — No Report
February 18, 2026 Agenda and Packet

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: /‘%///(" Approved By:

Scott Wilson Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
T-TSA Representative General Manager/CEO



https://ttsa.portal.civicclerk.com/event/27/files/agenda/3636

NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: E-1
FROM: Accounting Department

SUBJECT: Approve Accounts Paid and Payable for the Period from February 10,
2026 to March 9, 2026

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve accounts paid and payable from February 10, 2026 to March 9, 2026.

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to California Public Utilities Code 16116, “The Accountant ... shall draw all
warrants to pay demands made against the District when the demands have been first
approved by a majority of the Board present at the meeting at which the demands are
acted upon.” The Chief Financial Officer presents the Finance Committee with both
Accounts Paid (warrants or checks written) and Accounts Payable (warrants or checks
to be written or demands) for its review.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

Sufficient funds are included in the 2025-2026 Fiscal Year budget. District staff and the
Finance Committee have reviewed and recommended these accounts paid and payable
as appropriate District expenditures.

ATTACHMENTS: N/A

MOTION: Approve Staff Recommendation

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:

Patrick Grimes Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Chief Financial Officer General Manager/CEO



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: E-2
FROM: Office of the General Manager
SUBJECT: Approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2026

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2026.

DISCUSSION:

At the regular Board meeting and any special Board meetings, draft minutes from
meeting(s) held during the previous month are presented to the Board of Directors for
review and approval. Meeting minutes represent the official record of the District’s
actions. Minutes are considered to be a vital and historical record of the District.
FISCAL ANALYSIS: No Fiscal Impact

ATTACHMENTS: Draft Minutes from February 10, 2026

MOTION:  Approve Staff Recommendation

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:

Misty Moga Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Administrative Liaison General Manager/CEO



DRAFT MINUTES

NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Board of Directors Regular Meeting
North Tahoe Event Center, 8318 N Lake Blvd.
Kings Beach, CA

Tuesday, February 10, 2026, at 2:00 P.M.

A. CALL TO ORDER/ESTABLISH QUORUM

The regular meeting of the North Tahoe Public Utility District Board of Directors was held on
Tuesday, February 10, 2026 at 2:00 p.m. at the North Tahoe Event Center. Directors Coolidge,
Mourelatos (Arrived at 2:20 p.m.), Hughes, Thompson, and President Daniels were present.
District Staff in attendance included General Manager Johnson, Chief Financial Officer Grimes,
Government & Community Affairs Manager Broglio, Engineering and Operational Manager
Pomroy, Utility Operations Manager Fischer, Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Manager Conk,
Human Resources Manager Harris, and Administrative Liaison/Board Secretary Moga. Legal
Counsel Nelson was also present. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

A.

B.

CALL TO ORDER/OPEN SESSION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REVIEW AGENDA — Agenda Items may be taken off the agenda or taken out of order.

PUBLIC COMMENT AND QUESTIONS (2:00 P.M.): There were no requests for public
comment.

EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARY AWARD (Timed Item 2:00 p.m.): The Board and staff
recognized Michael Henn, Lead Parks & Facilities Worker, for his ten years of service.

REPORTS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Reports are informational only, and no

action will be taken.

1. Tahoe-Truckee Sanitation Agency (T-TSA) Report — T-TSA January Board Meeting
was canceled — No Report

2. Board Committee Reports — Director Thompson reported that the Development &
Planning Committee discussed several items, including the design of the Annex
Vactor Bay Addition Project and the Engineering Design Services for the Satellite
Pump Station Improvement Project. These items were recommended to the full
board. Additionally, Director Daniels provided an update on the Finance Committee,
including the upcoming budget, cash flow, and capital spending analysis.

CONSENT CALENDAR: Consent Calendar items are routine items which are

approved without discussion or comment. If an item requires discussion, it may be

removed from the Consent Calendar prior to action.

1. Approve Accounts Paid and Payable for the period from January 13, 2026 —
February 9, 2026

Regular Meeting
Minutes of February 10, 2026 8



w N

Approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2026

Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with
DOWL, LLC for Engineering Design Services for the Satellite Pump Station
Improvement Project — Phase 2 — Two Stations

Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Amendment to the Professional
Services Agreement with WY Architects for the Annex Vactor Bay Addition Project

MOTION: Director Thompson moved to approve the consent calendar. Director Hughes
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously in favor. Director Mourelatos was
absent from the vote.

G. GENERAL BUSINESS

1.

Fiscal Year 2025/26 Budget Parameters Mid-Year Review - General Manager
Johnson introduced the item and presented a slideshow. Director Mourelatos joined
the meeting at 2:20 p.m. The Board discussed several key topics, including
internship opportunities, community development, education, and wildfire
preparedness. They also discussed fleet strategy, electrification, and legislative
efforts. Additionally, the Board considered the potential need for additional staff in
the Parks and Recreation Department if it wishes to expand programming. They also
discussed future investments in NTEC and upcoming capital projects. GM Johnson
spoke about workforce housing.

H. MANAGEMENT TEAM INFORMATIONAL UPDATES: Reports are informational only,
and no action will be taken.

1.

General Manager/CEO Report — General Manager Johnson provided highlights from
his report, including an update on Congressman Kiley and Congressman Amodei,
both of whom will not be representing Tahoe next term. The Housing Council JPA is
expanding its membership and will schedule a presentation to the Board of
Directors. In response to GM Johnson’s request for a new ad hoc committee to
review consultants for Board facilitation and training, Directors Coolidge and
Thompson volunteered.

Public Information and Community Outreach Report — GCA Manager Broglio
provided highlights from his report, including annual social media metrics. In
response to Director Hughes, GM Johnson noted that the Greenhouse Gas report
will be presented to the entire board.

Accounting Department Report for the month ending December 31, 2025 — CFO
Grimes provided highlights from his report and reviewed the net assets unrestricted
position graph.

Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Department Report — RPF Manager Conk provided
highlights from her report, including a painting from a recent art class.

Planning and Engineering Department Report — EOM Manager Pomroy provided
highlights from his report and addressed questions regarding the NTEC Restroom
remodel.

Utility Operations Department Report — UOM Manager Fischer provided highlights
from his report, including smart meters installation project progress.

Regular Meeting
Minutes of February 10, 2026 9



K.

7.

Legal Report — Legal Counsel Nelson provided highlights from his report, including
an update on SB 598 regarding Public contracts.

BOARD COMMENTS - Director Hughes noted there is a position open on TRPA
planning commission with appointment by County Supervisor, Cindy Gustafson.

LONG RANGE CALENDAR — GM Johnson reminded the Board about the Snowfest
Pancake Breakfast on March 7. He also noted that the Form 700 deadline is April 1.

PUBLIC COMMENT AND QUESTIONS: There were no requests for public comment.

The board went into closed session at 7:09 p.m. President Daniels anticipated that there would
be no reportable action.

L.

CLOSED SESSION

1.

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS

Property: 6610 N Lake Blvd, Tahoe Vista

Agency negotiator: Bradley A. Johnson, P.E. — General Manager/CEO
Negotiating parties: Tahoe Sands Time Share Owners Association

Under negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION —
Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 — Name of case:
Helwig v. NTPUD, Sacramento Superior Court Case No. 25CV025985
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — INITIATION OF LITIGATION —
Initiation of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Section
54956.9: 1 case

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION —
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of
Section 54956.9: 1 case

ADJOURNMENT — With no further business to come before the Board, the meeting
was adjourned at 7:55 a.m.

Regular Meeting
Minutes of February 10, 2026 10



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: E-3
FROM: Planning and Engineering Department

SUBJECT: Authorize the General Manager to File a Notice of Completion for the North
Tahoe Event Center Emergency Generator Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for the North Tahoe Event
Center Emergency Generator Project (Project #2192).

DISCUSSION:

At the July 9, 2024 meeting, the Board of Directors awarded a contract in the amount of
$335,607 to GLA Morris Construction for the North Tahoe Event Center Emergency
Generator Project. The project was completed on February 27, 2026. The Construction
phase expenses for this project finished over budget by $7,530. The following table is a
summary of the Project finances:

Total Project Budget:
NTEC Emergency Generator FY 21 - FY 26 $550,000

Total Project Expenses:

Predesign and FEMA Application Preparation $13,375
Design and Permitting $110,000
Construction Expenses $434,155
Estimated Total Project Expenses $557,530

Estimated Project Budget Summary ($7,530)

Staff will monitor project expenditures as well as those of the other budgeted projects in
the Recreation and Parks FY 2025/26 Capital Budget for savings to offset the $7,530
project budget exceedance. Should identified savings over the course of the Fiscal
Year not be sufficient to address the exceedance, a FY 2025/26 budget augmentation
will be agendized at a future Board of Directors meeting. The District has sufficient
reserves to address any remaining budget exceedance.

11



FISCAL ANALYSIS:

Fiscal Year 2020/21 through FY 2025/26 budgeted a total of $550,000 for this project.
The project budget includes a $360,415 construction grant from FEMA administered by
the California Office of Emergency Services, and a $57,569 grant from Placer County
Office of Emergency Services.

The budgetary impact to the District of the NTEC Emergency Generator Project is
summarized in the table below:

ltem Grant Funding Secured
California Office of Emergency Services ($345,415)
Placer County OES ($57,569)
Grant Management ($15,000)
Total Grant Funds ($417,984)
Estimated Project Costs $557,530
Total District Commitment for Project $139,546

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 2: Provide high-quality community-driven recreation opportunities and event
facilities — Objective F: Uphold maintenance and capital investment of existing facilities
to ensure their vitality for generations to come — Tactic 3: Prioritize capital project
planning and delivery of Park and Facility enhancements and new infrastructure.

Goal 4: Sustain and strengthen organizational resources, expertise, and culture —
Objective G: Actively address emergency preparedness and climate resilience and
adaptation in District operations.

MOTION: Approve Staff Recommendation.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:
Joseph J. Pomroy, P.E. Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Engineering & Operations Manager General Manager/CEO

Reviewed By:

Patrick Grimes
Chief Financial Officer

12



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: E-4
FROM: Planning and Engineering Department

SUBJECT: Authorize the General Manager to File a Notice of Completion for the North
Tahoe Event Center South Restroom Renovation Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion for the NTEC South
Restroom Renovation Project (Project #2591).

DISCUSSION:

At the October 14, 2025 meeting, the Board of Directors awarded a contract in the
amount of $346,000 to GSP Construction, Inc. for the NTEC South Restroom
Renovation Project. The project was completed on February 25, 2026. The
Construction phase expenses for this project came over budget by $12,086. The
following table is a summary of the Construction Phase Project finances.

Construction Project Budget:

2025 NTEC South Restroom Renovation Project $ 410.000

(including NTEC — Lakeview Lighting Project) '

Construction Project Expenses:

Awarded Contract $ 346,000

Contract Change Orders $ 31,286

NTPUD Staff Time (Construction Phase) $ 25,000

Professional Services during Construction $ 19,800

Estimated Total Construction Expenses $ 422,086

Estimated Construction Budget Summary ($12,086)

Staff will monitor project expenditures as well as those of the other budgeted projects in
the Recreation and Parks FY 2025/26 Capital Budget for savings to offset the $12,086
project budget exceedance. Should identified savings over the course of the Fiscal
Year not be sufficient to address the exceedance, a FY 2025/26 budget augmentation
will be agendized at a future Board of Directors meeting. The District has sufficient
reserves to address any remaining budget exceedance.

13



FISCAL ANALYSIS:

As documented in the October 14, 2025 Contract award memo, the NTEC South
Restroom Renovation Project will utilize funds in (FY) 2025-2026 Capital Budget for
NTEC — Bathroom Remodel ($350,000) and the NTEC — Lakeview Lighting Project
($60,000). The total project expenses were $422,086 and overall is $12,086 over the
budgeted amount. The project is complete and will be closed with the final retention
release and payment of any remaining consultant invoices.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 2: Provide high-quality community-driven recreation opportunities and event
facilities — Objective C: Capitalize on the North Tahoe Event Center (NTEC) as our
community's lakefront asset for year-round events and programming — Tactic 3:
Continue to expand on NTEC's potential to be a revenue-generating facility for private
events.

Goal 2: Provide high-quality community-driven recreation opportunities and event
facilities — Objective F: Uphold maintenance and capital investment of existing facilities
to ensure their vitality for generations to come — Tactic 3: Prioritize capital project
planning and delivery of Park and Facility enhancements and new infrastructure.

Goal 4. Sustain and strengthen organizational resources, expertise, and culture —
Objective F: Ensure the District's support facilities are well maintained and adequate for
all operations.

MOTION: Approve Staff Recommendation.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:
Joseph J. Pomroy, P.E. Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Engineering & Operations Manager General Manager/CEO

Reviewed By:

Patrick Grimes
Chief Financial Officer

14



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: E-5
FROM: Planning and Engineering Department

SUBJECT: Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Increase to the Annual
Purchase Order with Western Nevada Supply for Water and Wastewater
System Materials and Supplies

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the General Manager to execute an increase to the Annual Purchase Order
with Western Nevada Supply for water and wastewater system materials and supplies
in the amount of $35,000.

DISCUSSION:

At the June 10, 2025 Board of Director's meeting, the Board approved Annual Purchase
Orders for Budgeted Vendor Expenditures of $75,000 or greater that are identified in the
Fiscal Year (FY) 2025-2026 Annual Operating Budget. The issuance of Annual
Purchase Orders streamlines the District’s purchasing and accounts payable process by
simplifying the approval process and reducing overall administrative burden. In
addition, it helps provide an up-to-date tracking mechanism for managers to monitor
performance to budget for the identified items.

The Annual Purchase Order for FY 2025-2026 included approval for purchasing water
and wastewater system materials from Western Nevada Supply for an amount up to
$134,500. District Staff have expended 75% of the Purchase Order during the first eight
months of the year replacing aging infrastructure, repairing damaged infrastructure, and
supporting the water meter replacement project. The total expenditure with Western
Nevada Supply through February is $102,000 for materials received.

In projecting purchases for the remaining fiscal year, which includes the first two months
of the dig season beginning on May 1, and the completion of the water meter
replacement project, Staff anticipates ordering an additional $35,000 in materials from
Western Nevada Supply prior to the close of FY 2025-2026 and beyond the currently
approved Annual Purchase Order amount. Staff is requesting to increase the Purchase
Order with Western Nevada Supply from $134,500 to $169,500.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

If approved, the $134,500 Annual Purchase Order with Western Nevada will be
increased by $35,000 to $169,500. The Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Operating Budget has
sufficient available budget in the Water and Wastewater funds for the additional $35,000
in expenditures from Western Nevada Supply for water and wastewater materials and

15



supplies. Staff will continue to monitor the Water and Wastewater Fund Budgets and
will agendize a formal budget augmentation at a future meeting, should doing so
become necessary.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 1: Provide safe, efficient, sustainable water and wastewater services focusing on
industry best practices and continuous improvement — Objective C: Maintain District
utility system up-time with a focus on redundancy and reliability.

ATTACHMENTS:
None

MOTION:  Approve Staff Recommendation.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:
Joseph J. Pomroy, P.E. Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Engineering & Operations Manager General Manager/CEO

Reviewed By:

Patrick Grimes
Chief Financial Officer

16



DATE:

FROM

NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

March 10, 2026 ITEM: E-6

: Office of the General Manager

SUBJECT: Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Placer County Transient

Occupancy Tax (TOT) Funds Grant Agreement for the North Tahoe Regional
Park Public Art Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the General Manager to execute a Placer County TOT Funds Grant agreement for
$65,000 for the North Tahoe Regional Park Public Art Project.

BACKGROUND:

The District submitted one application for the 2025 North Tahoe Community Alliance (NTCA)
— TOT/TBID Dollars at Work Program, Annual Grant Cycle for their review and consideration.

North Tahoe Regional Park Public Art Project —

This application focused on securing the remainder of the funding needed to move
forward with the Public Art portion of the Community Gathering Space and Public Art
Project in the North Tahoe Regional Park.

In July 2025, the District completed construction of the Community Gathering Space
adjacent to the Tennis and Pickleball Courts in the Regional Park. This new plaza area
was designed and constructed with a designated space for a public art installation.
The Community Gathering Space is designed to host events, programs, and will be
elevated by the addition of a public art installation that reflects the character and
cultural heritage of North Lake Tahoe. The art installation will create a focal point for
community gatherings, family and group outings, and cultural programming, while also
providing a moment of reflection and inspiration for trail users, sports participants, and
Regional Park visitors.

For residents, the art installation creates a free, accessible, and welcoming cultural
amenity that strengthens local identity and community pride.

For visitors, the art installation enhances the quality of the Regional Park experience
and creates a memorable and meaningful connection to the place, encouraging return
visitation and reinforcing Lake Tahoe as a destination that blends outdoor adventure
with cultural vitality.

At their November 20, 2025, meeting, the NTCA’s TOT Advisory Committee approved the
District’s original grant request for full funding of $65,000.

17



At their December 3, 2025, meeting, the NTCA Board of Directors approved the District’s
grant request for full funding of $65,000.

At their February 3, 2026, meeting the Placer County Board of Supervisors approved the use
of TOT Funding for the District's grant request of $65,000.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The North Tahoe Regional Park Public Art Project with require no direct financial contribution
from the District. The proposed $65,000 TOT Funds Grant will be matched with a $35,000
grant from the Tahoe Fund that the District received in 2025. The call to artists for this
project will be designed to ensure the total cost of the procurement and installation of the
public art piece(s) will not exceed the allotted $100,000 in grant funding.

If this grant is approved, the District’s Capital Budget will be updated for Fiscal Year 2026/27
to reflect the full cost of the project along with the corresponding grant revenue identified in
the Operating Budget.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 2: Provide high-quality community-driven recreation opportunities and event facilities —
Objective A: Expand public access for recreation opportunities and promote the District as
an exceptional provider of year-round programming, special events and recreation services.

Goal 2: Provide high-quality community-driven recreation opportunities and event facilities —
Objective D: Utilize the North Tahoe Regional Park (NTRP) as a community asset for
passive and active recreation.

ATTACHMENTS:
e Placer County TOT Funds Grant Agreement — North Tahoe Regional Park Public Art
Project
MOTION: Approve Staff recommendation.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted by: Reviewed by:
Justin Broglio Patrick Grimes
Government and Community Chief Financial Officer
Affairs Manager

Approved by:

Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
General Manager/CEO

18



14343

USE OF FUNDS AGREEMENT
North Tahoe Public Utility District
F3 - Public Art Installation

This Use of Funds Agreement is made and entered into this 3 day of

February, 2026, by and between the COUNTY OF PLACER, a political subdivision of
the State of California, hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and the North Tahoe
Public Utility District, hereinafter referred to as "GRANTEE".

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Grantee has submitted a proposal to the County for Public Art Installation
(*Artwork”) in the North Tahoe Regional Park Project, as described in Exhibit A,
attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantee Project”.)

WHEREAS, County collects Transient Occupancy Tax funds (hereinafter “TOT Funds”)
and has historically allocated some of those funds to implement the Tourism Master
Plan for eastern Placer County consistent with the Transient Occupancy Tax Investment
Policy.

WHEREAS, the North Tahoe Community Alliance Board of Directors has recommended
this project for TOT funding and the County has determined that the Grantee Project is
an eligible project for the use of the TOT Funds.

WHEREAS, County desires to grant to Grantee TOT Funds in the amount of $65,000 to
assist with implementation of the Grantee Project on the terms and conditions stated
herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows:
1. The Recitals listed above are incorporated into this Agreement.

2. County agrees to grant to Grantee TOT Funds in the amount not to exceed
$65,000 as outlined in the project budget attached hereto as Exhibit B.

3. Grantee shall request, no more frequently than quarterly, payment from the
County by submitting an invoice form with appropriate documentation including
receipts, paid invoices and/or labor rates and hours or other allowed costs as
outlined in Exhibit B.

4, Grantee shall provide proof of match with each invoice including receipt, labor
hours, paid invoices and any other necessary back-up documentation as may be
reasonably requested by County.

1of8

19



10.

11.

12.

13.

All invoices submitted to the County shall include a progress report to include
status on deliverables, schedule and budget and in a format provided by the
County, including an accounting of the use of the TOT Funds. TOT Funds will be
withheld if a progress report is not provided. Progress report deadlines are April
30, July 10, October 31 and January 30.

Within sixty (60) days of project completion, Grantee shall provide a final report
on the project.

Grantee shall use TOT Funds exclusively for the Grantee Project. During the use
of TOT Funds for the Grantee Project, Grantee shall recognize in its final budget
that the implementation of the Grantee Project was funded in part by TOT Funds
granted by the County and recommended by the North Tahoe Community
Alliance. The “TOT-TBID Dollars At Work” logo shall be provided to the Grantee
(Exhibit C) and shall be included in the same manner as recognition provided to
other Grantee Project funding entities. This includes signage during construction
of the project and signage post-completion on the site for a period of at least
three years.

The Grantee Project shall be recognized into Grantee’s budget no later than
December 31, 2027, unless County grants an extension in writing. Any TOT
Funds not implemented into its budget for the Grantee Project by December 31,
2027 shall be returned to the County, unless extended in writing by the County.

Grantee shall comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable to the
Grantee Project and use of the TOT Funds.

All property and/or improvements purchased and/or installed by Grantee
pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole and separate property of
Grantee as of the time said property and/or improvements are installed.

Grantee agrees that funds granted to it for the implementation of the Grantee
Project shall not be used for any purpose not specified in this Agreement.

Grantee shall keep detailed accounting records in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and as may be otherwise reasonably requested
by County. County shall have the right to inspect said records at any reasonable
time. |

All notices to either party that may be required or authorized by this Agreement
shall be in writing and either deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid
or personally delivered. The notice shall be effective upon the date of personal

20of8

20



delivery or date of mailing. Notices regarding this Agreement shall be sent or
delivered to the Grantee or County at:

Grantee: North Tahoe Public Utility District

875 National Avenue
P.O. Box 139
Tahoe Vista, CA 96148

County: Placer County Executive Office

P.O. Box 1909
Tahoe City, CA 96145

Either party may amend its address for notice by notifying the other party in writing.

14.

15.

Grantee shall save, keep, hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County from all
damages, costs, or expenses in law or equity that may at any time arise or be set
up because of damages to property or personal injury received by reason of or in
the course of performing work which may be occasioned by any willful or
negligent act or omission of Grantee, any of Grantee’s employees, agents,
representatives, contractors and/or subcontractors. Grantee shall be responsible
for any liability imposed by law and for death, injury, or damage to property of
any person including, but not limited to, workmen, subcontractors, and the public,
resulting from any cause whatsoever during the progress of the work or at any
time before or after its completion and final acceptance. Grantee further agrees
to hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County against any and all claims,
lawsuits, or legal actions made in connection with the Artwork, including but not
limited to any copyright infringement claims, moral rights violation claims, loss
claims, personal, and/or real property claims, injury claims, breach of contract
claims, inverse condemnation claims, conversion claims, taking of property
claims, and/or damage claims (including any related legal costs, attorney’s fees,
or expenses properly incurred by County).

If any judgment is rendered against County for any injury, death or damage
caused by Grantee as a result of work performed or completed, pursuant to this
Agreement, Grantee shall, at its own expense, satisfy and discharge any
judgment.

As used above, the term County means the County of Placer, its officers, agents,
employees, and volunteers.

Grantee shall maintain at all times during the performance of this Agreement
insurance coverage in the amounts of not less than Two Million Dollars

30of 8

21



16.

17.

18.

19.

($2,000,000) to cover all of its operations, including, but not limited to not less
than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) general liability, One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) automobile Liability and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) workers’
compensation. Grantee shall provide additional insured endorsements naming
the County in a form satisfactory to the County’s Risk Manager.

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and bind the parties hereto, and their
successors and assigns, including any and all entities to whom the property and
facilities herein referred to may be transferred by reason of incorporation,
annexation, unification, consolidation or for any other reason.

If any provision of this Agreement, as applicable to either party, or to any other
person or circumstance, is for any reason held to be invalid, it shall not affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. The waiver by either party
hereto, of any breach, term, covenant or condition contained herein shall not
constitute a waiver of any subsequent term, covenant or condition contained
herein.

This is an integrated Agreement and contains all of the terms, conditions,
understandings and promises of the parties. The terms of this Agreement may
not be modified except upon the mutual written consent of the parties.

The parties agree that this Agreement may be extended and TOT Funds
provided in one or more subsequent calendar years upon the mutual written
agreement of both parties. Any such extension shall be documented in an
amendment hereto executed and authorized by both parties in the same manner
as this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
executed on behalf of the persons duly authorized by the governing boards of the
parties hereto.

4 of 8

22



County of Placer: “COUNTY”
By:

Print Name:

Its:

Date:

County Executive Officer Date

Approved As To Form:

County Counsel Date

North Tahoe Public Utility District: “GRANTEE”
By:

Print Name:

Its:

Date:

Exhibit List: Exhibit A - Grantee Project
Exhibit B - Grantee Budget

Exhibit C — TOT/TBID Dollars at Work Logo

50f8

23



EXHIBIT A: Project Scope

F3 - NTPUD Art Installation
North Tahoe Public Utility District

Project description: The North Tahoe Public Utility District is installing public art in the new
Community Gathering Space in the North Tahoe Regional Park.

This agreement will fund procurement and installation of a public art piece in the North Tahoe
Regional Park which will include a call for projects by artists.

North Tahoe Public Utility District will provide $35,000 in matching funds as outlined in Exhibit B.

6 of 8

24



EXHIBIT B: Project Budget

NTPUD Art Installation

Project Budget

Amount Source
Procurement and installation of art piece $100,000 | TOT and NTPUD
TOTAL $100,000 | TOT and NTPUD
Total TOT Request $65,000 | TOT Grant request
Match $35,000 | NTPUD

70f8

25




26



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: E-7
FROM: Office of the General Manager

SUBJECT: Approve General Liability, Property, and Cyber Insurance Program for 2026-
2027 (effective April 1, 2026)

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve JPRIMA General Liability Insurance and Property Insurance Program by Allied Public
Risk/Allied World Assurance and Cyber Security insurance beginning April 1, 2026 to April 1,
2027, in the amount of $602,450 offered through Edgewood Partners Insurance Center (EPIC)
Insurance Brokers.

DISCUSSION:

Since 2017, the District has been covered by the Water Plus General Liability Insurance and
Property Insurance Program through Allied Public Risk/Allied World Assurance General
Liability. In 2019, EPIC Insurance Brokers presented the District with an alternative general
liability and property insurance program (also underwritten by Allied Public Risk/Allied World
Assurance) but made available via the California Association of Mutual Water Companies Joint
Powers Risk and Insurance Management Authority (JPRIMA). The JPRIMA program is
available exclusively to mutual water companies, public utility districts, and other community
service districts providing utility services in the State of California. The JPRIMA program
offered coverage limits identical to or superior to the Water Plus Program but at a lower annual
cost.

A comparison of costs for the proposed term to the current term is outlined in the table below.
A proposal and summary of coverage levels and associated costs with a comparison to the
current term is also attached to this report.

ltem 25/26 Costs 26/27 Costs % Increase
Property $105,759 $142,020 34%
Inland Marine $9,131 $7,882 -14%
Commercial Crime $1,736 $1,736 0%

27




General Liability $158,097 $188,192 19%
E.Ubl.i(.: Officials/Management $28,296 $36,878 30%
iability
Automobile $54,362 $61,268 14%
Commercial Excess Liability $83,404 $99,178 19%
Annual Premium $440,785 $537,145 22%
JPRIMA Fees $44,180 53,816 22%
Total JPRIMA Program $484,965 $590,970 22%
Cyber $9,000 $11,480 28%
Total $493,965 $602,450 22%

Similar to previous years, EPIC Insurance Brokers has reported that all insureds are seeing
base rate increases due to reinsurance loads for wildfire capacity/exposure, continued
employment practice claims, the rise of social inflation (liability and litigation), and general
economic inflationary increases in costs/services for first-party claims. Furthermore, the District
continues with a comprehensive internal audit of asset replacement values, which has resulted
in an increase in the value of our assets insured.

The District has maintained its cybersecurity premiums over the past few years; however,
premiums increased this year.

Overall, the total net increase for all insurance products is 22%.

Staff has reviewed the coverage levels and costs for renewal for the next term (April 1, 2026 to
April 1, 2027) and recommends renewal of general liability and property insurance, including
cyber coverage offered through EPIC Insurance Brokers.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

As anticipated, there was an increase in our general liability and property insurance renewal
premiums. An adequate budget is included in the Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Operating Budget to
cover costs through the end of the Fiscal Year without requiring a budget augmentation.
Insurance costs for Fiscal Year 2026/27 will be included in the proposed Operating Budget
scheduled for approval at the June 9, 2026 meeting of the NTPUD Board of Directors.

28



STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 3: Enhance District governance and partnerships — Objective A: Maintain best practices
in public agency governance throughout all levels of the District; and — Objective B: Ensure
financial sustainability of the District.

Goal 4: Sustain and strengthen organizational resources, expertise, and culture — Objective E:
Ensure reliability and security of the District's information technology systems.

ATTACHMENTS:

Insurance Program Proposal and Premium Comparison from EPIC Insurance Brokers
MOTION: Approve Staff Recommendation

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted by: Reviewed by:

Misty Moga Patrick Grimes
Administrative Liaison Chief Financial Officer

Approved by:

Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
General Manager/CEO

29



NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
PREMIUM COMPARISON

Term
COVERAGE
Carrier
AM Best Rating
PACKAGE
Annual Revenue-non auditable
Budget
Field Payroll-non auditable
Terrorism
Property

TIV-Real Property & Business Personal Property

special form including theft, replacement cost, no coinsurance
Loss of Income-aka: Business Income

Extra Expense

Equipment Breakdown

Wildfire Loss Limit-per named wild fire

Inland Marine
Coverage A-Blanket Tools & Equipment-actual cash value
-Unscheduled, Maximum $10,000 any one item
Coverage B-Scheduled Equipment-actual cash value
-Extended to equipment not owned by you

Crime
Employee Theft
Forgery or Alteration
Theft of Money & Securities (inside the premises)
Robbery or Safe Burglary (inside the premises)
Outside the Premises
Computer & Funds Transfer Fraud
Money Orders & Counterfeit Money
Fraudulent Impersonation

General Liability
Policy Form
General Aggregate
Products & Completed Operations Aggregate
Each Occurrence
Personal & Advertising Injury
Damage to Premises Rented to You
Medical Payments
Medical Payments for recreational exposure/skate park
Water & Wastewater Testing Errors & Omissions
Inverse Condemnation

Public Officials & Management Liability
Policy Form
Aggregate Limit: Coverage A & B Combined
Coverage A: Wrongful Acts-each wrongful act or offense
-Employment Practices
-Employee Benefits Liability
Coverage B: Injunctive Relief-each action
Inverse Condemnation

Automobile
Number of Vehicles
Combined Single Limit
Uninsured / Underinsured
Medical Payments
Hired Auto Liability
Non-Owned Auto Liability
Hired Physical Damage
Owned Physical Damage
- Comprehensive Deductible*
- Collision Deductible*
*Values over $100k, increased deductible is $2,000

Excess
General Aggregate
Each Occurrence

Carrier
AM Best Rating
Cyber Liability
Policy Form
Policy Aggregate
Per Cyber Event / Incident
Defense Costs Inside the limit
Duty to Defend

TOTAL PREMIUM

not including taxes and fees

04/01/2025 to 04/01/2026

LIMITS DEDUCTIBLE PREMIUM
CalMutuals/JPRIMA
A+ XV
$19,200,000
$15,716,168 2023
$5,424,797 2023
Included
$105,759
$48,038,652 $5,000
$2,000,000 ALS
$2,000,000
$48,038,652 $5,000
$10,000,000
$9,131
$135,855 $5,000
$2,256,258 $5,000
$100,000 $1,000
$1,736
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$100,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
Included
$158,097
Occurrence
$10,000,000
$10,000,000
$1,000,000 $5,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$10,000
Excluded
Included
Included
$28,296
Occurrence
$10,000,000
$1,000,000 $10,000
Included $25,000
Included
$5,000
Included
$54,362
38
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$5,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$100,000
ACV
* $1,000
* $1,000
$83,404
$10,000,000
$10,000,000

Associated Industries Inc.Co.

A XV
$9,000
Claims Made & Reported
$20,000,000
$2,000,000 $15,000
$449,785

04/01/2026 to 04/01/2027

LIMITS DEDUCTIBLE PREMIUM
CalMutuals/JPRIMA
A+ XV
$24,900,000
$19,488,048
$6,021,525
Included
$142,020
$58,075,778 $5,000
$2,000,000 ALS
$2,000,000
$58,075,778 $5,000
$10,000,000
$7,882
$150,000 $5,000
$1,935,798 $5,000
$100,000 $1,000
$1,736
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$100,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
$250,000 $1,000
Included
$188,192
Occurrence
$10,000,000
$10,000,000
$1,000,000 $5,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$10,000
n/a
Included
Included
$36,878
Occurrence
$10,000,000
$1,000,000 $10,000
Included $25,000
Included
$5,000
Included
$61,268
39
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$5,000
$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$100,000
ACV
* $1,000
* $1,000
$99,178
$10,000,000
$10,000,000

Associated Industries Inc.Co.

A XV
$10,500
Claims Made & Reported
$20,000,000
$2,000,000 $25,000
$547,654

Refer to quote and policies for complete terms and conditions.

30




NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: F-1
FROM: Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Department
SUBJECT: North Tahoe Event Center Status Update and Strategic Review

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and discuss a presentation on the North Tahoe Event Center 2025 year in review
and provide feedback on setting rates for 2026.

BACKGROUND:

As one of the few public lakefront venues on the shores of Lake Tahoe, The North Tahoe
Event Center (NTEC) has continually gained and maintained attention as a fantastic spot for
weddings, special events, and community gatherings. Since the commitment to reinvest in
the NTEC by the NTPUD Board of Directors several years ago, there have been significant
aesthetic improvements and continued growth in rentals and sales.

Annually, both the Board of Directors and Commissioners receive a presentation from the
NTEC Manager that includes a review of the previous year and gives projections and plans
for the year to come. This presentation provides Commissioners with an opportunity to
discuss the current operations at the NTEC, as well as continuing to guide the direction and
vision for its future. With Manager Christina McDougal nearing her second year of
employment, procedures are being streamlined, and improvements are being made.

For discussion this year is the annual rate adjustment for the NTEC, as well as the
recommended Resident Discount. As the District continues to invest in the architectural and
aesthetic improvements throughout the building, the Center increases its ability to host large-
scale and higher-end events. The recommended rate adjustments presented reflect this
change, with attention being made to maintaining access to the Community for their private
and public events.

The Commission and Committee reviewed this presentation at the February Recreation
meeting. The group had unanimous positive feedback about the rates, both agreeing with
the discussed increase in fees as well as the increase in resident discounts. Staff welcomes
feedback on the entire presentation with a focus on the rates and resident discounts.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 2: Provide high-quality community-driven recreation opportunities and event facilities —
Objective C: Capitalize on the North Tahoe Event Center (NTEC) as our community's
lakefront asset for year-round events and programming — Tactic 1: Develop a Capital
Improvement action plan based on the results of the architectural study; and Tactic 2:

31



Contract with a reliable food and beverage service; and Tactic 3: Continue to expand on
NTEC's potential to be a revenue-generating facility for private events; and Tactic 4:
Continue to expand community programming at the NTEC to enhance its important role as
the community’s lakefront gathering space.

ATTACHMENTS:
e North Tahoe Event Center Status Update and Strategic Review PowerPoint
Presentation

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: (74-&“& \/oyé__ Approved By:

Amanda Conk Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Manager General Manager/CEO

32



NORTH TAHOE
EVENT CENTER

2025 Year in Review
March 10, 2026

Presented by
Christina McDougal, Event Center Manager

Amanda Conk, Recreation, Parks & Facilities Manager
Justin Broglio, Government & Community Affairs Manager

33



OUTLINE

Our Purpose
2025 in Review
2026 Vision and Strategy

34



Three Types of Events

Private
Corporate
Community

35



Breakdown of

~vent [ypes




2025

Year in Review

Marketing

Website
Events Booked

Revenue

37



2025 Marketing

Brought Social Management in

House
Began Testing with Google Ads

Focused on Creating Content from
Styled Shoots for Organic and
Paid Marketing

Utilize Organic Content from

Events for Social Posts

38



Instagram Statistics

Total Reach Total Profile Visits
239200 4 900

39



Instagram Statistics

Users 3 Most Popular
74% Women Posts

Ages 25-65 76,500 Views

40



Website Updates

New Website
Enacted Texting Function

Readily Available Pricing

Updated Photos and Videos on
Fach Page

Virtual Tour

41




e

Interactive 360 \/II’JFUOI‘ Tour

42



Developed and Distributed an
Elopement Package to all Local

Officiants

Established Partnership with 2

Elopement Specialists

Hosted 2 Event Pro Networking
Events

Produced 2 Styled Shoots

Featured on National Wedding Site
and Two Wedding Magazines

Grew Venue Listing Sites from 3 to 8

43



Exterior of Building
Paint

Fixed Bare Bulb String Lights
New Signage

Lakeview

Walnut Wood Accents

Timberline Improvements

Curtains
Artwork
Paint

Front Entrance
Paint
Wood Accent Wall
Light Up Tahoe Sign

44



2025 Total Bookings

12 Events

323 Days Booked

21,000 Estimated Guests in Building

45



20925 Year in Review

B Corporate

2

9

6 17

23 24 25

4 5 o [NNNEH °
112 [N e
18 19 20 JBIREEN 23 24
25 26 27 30 3

7 | 8

14 15

2 [
28

Private

2 8
9 15
16 17 18 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29

I_M_

1 2 3 4

320 5

6 7 9 10 2
13 5 6 17 18 |19
20 21 22 |23 25 26
27 28 29 -

S M T w T F S

3 4 5
6 -- 9 10 m »2
13 18 19

20 21 22 -- 25 26

27 28 29 30 3l

M

sl s 6 78 9
1o 1 2l oz s e

17 718 19 [20 21 22 | 23

24 25 26 27 -29 30

S M T W T F S
a1 2B 4 5 s

7 BN o il 2 13

1415 el 7 el e 20

21 B3 2z B 25 26 |27

28 ' 29 30

November

S M T w T F S

2 + Bl ¢ |7 8
o gl n BN + s
16 18 19 (20 21 [22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29

S M T w T F S
soffill 2 3 4 s 6
7 g @ o n 12 3
17 8l 0 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 3l

46



2025 Year in Review

B Corporate

2

9

6 | 17

23 | 24 25

4
M

18
25

[J Private

7 8

14 15

n [22]
28

[J community

2 8

9 15
16 [ 17 18 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29

6
13

27

30

20

January February m “
s M T W T F s||ls m 1 w 1t F s s M T W T F S s M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

21 22 23 25 26
28 29

S M T w T F S

1 ' IEREER 7 s
c BN 2 w0 1 2
3 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 [BBNE 25 26

27 28 29 30 3]

3
10
17
24

M

B s 6 7 8 o9
11-13-15 16

18 19 20 22 23

25 26 27 -29 30

s M T W T F S
a1 2B 4 s 6

7 BN o il 2 13

1415 el 17 B8l 19 20

2 B3 23 B8 25 26 27

28 ' 29 30

November

S M T w T F S

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

21
28

December

M T w T F S

sofill 2 3 4 5 6

s B 0o n 12 13
17 8l 10 20

22 23 24 25 26 27
29 30 3]

47




2025 Venue Use vs Revenue

Venue Use by Event

m Corporate
m Private
m Community

Revenue by Event

m Corporate
m Private
m Community

48




69

—vents Sold by Year

114
106

78
71

53 56

4]

2024

2025 2025* 2026*
. *sold by 1/1/2025 *sold by 1/1/2026
Private m Corporate

49



85
80
75
70
65
60
55
50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

Private Sales Trends

$500,000
S 98
$400,000
$300,000 83
e $278,413
$200,000
$100,000
$0
2023 2024 2025 2025* 2026* 2023 2024 2025 2025* 2026*
*sold by *sold by *sold by *sold by
1/1/2025 1/1/2026 1/1/2025 1/1/2026

50



70

60

50

40

30

20

2023

Wedding Sales Trends

2024

2025

49

2025*

*sold by
1/1/2025

59

2026*

*sold by
1/1/2026

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

$0

2025

$3
$240,509 $243,823
$1IQQ l

2024

$371,150
89

2025 2025 2026*

*sold by *sold by
1/1/2025 1/1/2026

51



Corporate Sales Trends

$225,000
130
120 $200,000 $2 75
110
$175,000
100
90 $150,000
80 $125,000
70 $1 o7
60 $100,000 $1 83 $1 O
50
$75,000
40
30 $50,000
20 $I]O
$25,000
10
0
2022 2023 2024 20925 2026 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

52



$80,000

$70,000

$60,000

$50,000

$40,000

$30,000

$20,000

$10,000

$0

Catering

$35,233

2023

Fees Collected

$46,880

2024

$68,323

2025

53



Catering Fees - Broken Out

$35,000
$30,000 $ 5
$25,000 ” , $ 6 . )
$20,000 $ 4

$15,000

7]

$10,000 $ 6

$5,000

$0

2023 2024 2025
mRoundabout Fees mBlend Fees mQutside Catering Fee

54



$850,000
$750,000
$650,000
$550,000
$450,000
$350,000
$250,000
$150,000

$50,000

-$50,000

2022-2023

2023-2024
m Operating Expenses

*as of 1/30/2026

~iscal Year

Operating Expenses vs Revenue

$ 4 $ 2
$ Q
2
I4 I]

20924-2095
= Revenue

447,354
$374,740

2025-2026*

55



20926
Vision and Strategy

Building Improvement Plans
Marketing Goals
Forecast
Competitors

Rate Changes

56



2026
Building Goals

Continue Lakeview Room
lmprovements

Address outdated florescent
lighting in all three event spaces

Add Character to Timberline

Room

57



National Social Media & Marketing
Trends

Tik Tok is the #1 Search Engine for Gen Z
79% Couples check Social Media Before Contacting

2026 Marketing Goals

Reactivate Tik Tok Business Page

Utilize Wedding Specific Digital Marketing Agency to
olace ads in: Google, Tik Tok, Meta and Pinterest

58



Total Fiscal Year Venue Revenue

$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

$0

$588,092

2022-2025

Forecast

$501,334

2023-2024

$515,283

2024-2025

$559,000

Current

$629,000

2025-2026

59



Wedding Sales Forecast

60

50

40

30

20

50

2023

44

2024

70
65

59

48

2025 2026 2026 2027

Current  Projection Projection

60



Direct Competitors

ke TARS

14-hour rental for Starts at $11,000 Saturdays at $8,500
$100,000

Starts at $15,000 Saturdays at $8,300 Saturdays at $9,490

61



RAT

=S FOR 2026 AND B

-YOND

2024 rate changes and updates went into effect July 1, 2024:

Increase in private rental rates

Decrease in corporate (both meeting and gov't rental rates)

2026 Rental Rate Change Proposed for Summer 2026

Increase Private Event Fees on Fridays, Saturdays

Decrease Private Event Fees on Mid Week and Sundays

Offer an additional discount to NTPUD residents

62



| akeview Private
Recommendations

Monday - Thursday

Original: $5,400 Proposed: $5,000

Friday
Original: $7,000 Proposed: $8,000

Saturday

Original: $8,300 Proposed: $9,500

Sunday
Original: $7,000 Proposed: $6,000

~vent Pricing

63



—ntire Building Pricing
Recommendations

Monday - Thursday

Original: $6,500 Proposed: $6,500

Friday
Original: $8,500 Proposed: $9,500

Saturday

Original: $10,000 Proposed: $11,000

Sunday
Original: $8,500 Proposed: $7,500



—vergreen & limberline Pricing
Recommendations

Monday - Thursday

Evergreen Original: $840

Timberline Original: $2,080
Proposed: No Change

Friday & Sunday

Evergreen Original: $1,090
Timberline Original: $2,720

Proposed: No Change

Saturday

Evergreen Original: $1,280

Timberline Original: $3,200
Proposed: No Change

65



Additional Benetits

for Locals

Offer a 50% discount™ to NTPUD residents:

Room rental fees
Upgraded rental items

“oreviously 20%

Additional discounts on “Outside Catering” fees

66



67



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: F-2
FROM: Office of the General Manager

SUBJECT: Consider and Discuss Approved Adjustment to Water and Wastewater
Rates Effective July 1, 2026

RECOMMENDATION:

Consider and discuss the approved adjustment to water and wastewater rates effective
July 1, 2026.

DISCUSSION:

At a utility rate and majority protest public hearing held on March 7, 2024, the Board of
Directors voted unanimously to adopt a five-year water and wastewater utility rate
adjustment, in compliance with California Proposition 218 (Cal. Const. Article XIIID, sec.
6), with effective adjustment dates of July 1, 2024, July 1, 2025, July 1, 2026, July 1,
2027, and July 1, 2028.

This five-year rate adjustment is the culmination of a multi-year process to evaluate the
District's water and wastewater rates and fees.

Rate Adjustment

In 2022, the District retained HDR Engineering, an independent rate consultant, and
began a comprehensive cost-of-service study to determine whether existing rates and
property tax revenues were sufficient to meet the system rehabilitation and replacement
needs, as well as the District’s operational costs for the water and wastewater systems.
The District’s rate structure was also assessed for compliance with industry best
practices and California state law. California Proposition 218 requires each customer
class to be charged only what is required to cover their respective proportional cost-of-
service. Importantly, water rates can only be used to fund water system costs, and
wastewater rates can only be used to fund wastewater system costs.

The study determined annual rate increases are necessary over a five-year period in
order to address cost increases since the last rate assessment in 2018 and to continue
providing reliable and sustainable water and wastewater services into the future.
Existing rates were not sufficient to fund necessary investments in our infrastructure and
meet operational costs.

68



The increases in monthly water and wastewater rates were triggered by many factors,
including:

. Infrastructure improvements, identified in the District’s five-year Capital
Improvement Plan, are necessary to address end of service life system
rehabilitation and replacement

. Significant escalation of the cost of construction

. Inflationary increases in supply, material, labor, and utility costs

. Improving water infrastructure for fire suppression is a top priority

. Transition portion of indirect General & Administrative costs attributable to

water and wastewater operations from property tax to rates

During the study, the District also identified necessary rate restructuring to ensure
continued compliance with Proposition 218. The results in the relationship (cost-of-
service) between customer classes were addressed in year 1 (2024/25) of the rate
adjustments. Years 2 through 5 reflect annual overall system revenue adjustments.

Importantly, even with the planned increases, the District’s utility rates remain consistent
with the other water and wastewater service providers in the region.

The District conducted significant outreach to inform customers of the planned utility
rate adjustments. In addition to the legally required Proposition 218 notices, the District
conducted numerous public Board workshops and strategy sessions, held a utility rate
open house on February 13, 2024, built a dedicated rate adjustment webpage, and
provided notice via social media posts, e-mail blasts, and bill inserts.

Under Proposition 218, the District was required to conduct a majority protest hearing
prior to increasing service rates. Under these procedures, any record owner or tenant
could submit a written protest and/or come to the hearing and provide oral testimony on
the proposed rates. If a majority of the record owners or tenants directly liable for the
payment of the charges submitted written protests against the proposed adjustments,
then the rate adjustments could not have been adopted. At the March 7, 2024, public
hearing, a total of 20 potential protests were received against the rate adjustments.

The first of the five approved rate adjustments went into effect on July 1, 2024.

During the adoption of the five-year rate adjustment, the Board committed to reviewing
the scheduled utility rates annually relative to the needs of the District’s operating and
capital budgets. Doing so allows the Board to consider adjustments to the established
rates and their effective dates. Provided the Board does not adopt adjustments to rates
that exceed the adopted maximum, the Board can consider adjustments without
conducting a majority protest proceeding. The District must provide written notice to its
customers a minimum of 30 days in advance of a rate adjustment’s effective date.

This agendized item allows the Board of Directors to review and consider the third of the
five approved rate adjustments scheduled to be effective July 1, 2026.

69



If the Board desires the scheduled rate adjustment to proceed as planned, no action by
the Board is necessary. The required 30-day mandatory notice to customers will be
inserted in the May utility bills.

If the Board wishes to modify the approved adjustment, it must do so via Resolution.
Should the Board wish to change the approved rates, staff would model the Board’s
direction and bring back results to a future meeting for Board action.

Should the Board wish to modify the approved adjustment, the following options are
available:
1) Postpone the effective date of the approved rate adjustment.

o Doing so has a financial impact to the District’s capital plans and
operating budgets.

» Approximately $55,833 per month in additional water rate
revenue is projected to be generated by the July 1, 2025, rate
adjustment (~$670,000 over 12-months of which approximately
20% is based on consumption and will vary across the year).

= Approximately $52,833 per month in additional wastewater rate
revenue is projected to be generated by the July 1, 2025 rate
adjustment (~$634,000 over 12-months).

0 A postponement can be implemented without Proposition 218 impacts.
0 A postponement can be implemented expediently and without
significant additional financial modeling of the rate design.
2) Modify the approved rate adjustment to amounts less than the approved
rates.

o Doing so has a financial impact to the District’s capital plans and
operating budgets.

= Financial impact will depend on the magnitude of changes.
= Additional financial modeling will be necessary to:

e Ensure Proposition 218 compliance

e Understand financial impacts

o A modification of the approved rates is difficult to implement due to the
complexity of the District’s rate structure.

= Updates to billing software and database will be required.
= Updates to customer notifications and webpage will be required.

0 A special customer mailer will likely be required depending on the
effective date.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The approved rate adjustments result from the comprehensive cost-of-service study
completed by HDR Engineering. Without moving forward with the approved rate
adjustments, both the Water and Wastewater Fund will not generate sufficient revenues
to fund identified and projected operating and capital expenditures over the remaining
Fiscal Years (FY) of the five-year period of the study (FY 2026/27 — FY 2028/29).

70



Based on HDR’s cost-of-service model, the projected additional annual revenue
(rounded to the nearest $1,000) generated by the approved utility rate adjustments are
summarized below.

Water FY 2024/25 | FY 2025/26 | FY 2026/27 | FY 2027/28 | FY 2028/29

Proposed
Average
Rate
Adjustment

11% 11% 11% 11% 11%

Projected
Additional
Annual
Revenue

$529,000 $596,000 $670,000 $754,000 $848,000

Wastewater | FY 2024/25 | FY 2025/26 | FY 2026/27 | FY 2027/28 | FY 2028/29

Proposed
Average
Rate
Adjustment

11% 11% 11% 11% 11%

Projected
Additional
Annual
Revenue

$500,000 $563,000 $634,000 $713,000 $802,000

It is important to note that the projected additional annual revenue identified above is
based on cumulative rate increases.

Additional detail on the cost-of-service study, the goals established by the Board during
that process, the approved rate adjustments, and the financial impacts are included in the
attached PowerPoint presentation. Additionally, staff has prepared a comprehensive
multi-year financial model to facilitate discussion of this item during the presentation.
Attached to this report is a written memorandum, prepared by staff for the Finance
Committee, to supplement the multi-year financial model discussion.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 1: Provide Safe, Efficient, Sustainable Water and Wastewater Services Focusing on
Industry Best Practices and Continuous Improvement — Objective D: Prioritize Capital
Projects Planning and Delivery Toward Uniform Service Using Industry Standards, Asset
Condition Data, and a Focus on Climate Resilience and Emergency Preparedness.

Goal 3: Enhance District Governance and Partnerships — Objective B: Ensure Financial
Sustainability of the District — Tactic 2: Complete and Implement New Five-Year Rate
Structure — Activity C: Staff recommendation presented to Board for consideration and
adoption in compliance with California Proposition 218.

71



ATTACHMENTS:

e Water and Wastewater Utility Rate Review PowerPoint Presentation
e Supplemental Memorandum to the Financial Modeling Discussion
e NTPUD Proposition 218 Five-Year Rate Adjustment Customer Notification

REVIEW TRACKING:

Reviewed By: Approved By:
Patrick Grimes Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Chief Financial Officer General Manager/CEO

72



Utility Rate Adjustment Review
and Discussion

March 10, 2026




NTPUD Rate Adjustment — Process

Process began in September 2022 with HDR Engineering hired to
conduct Cost of Service Study.

* Determine if existing rates and property tax revenues were
adequate for:

= System Rehabilitation and Replacement
= System Operational Costs

e Assess rate structure for compliance with California Proposition
218

Board, Staff, and HDR met multiple times for discussion and direction
over the 18-month study period.




NTPUD Rate Adjustment — Goals

The Board established the following goals to be addressed in the current 5-year
rate setting period:

* Ensure rates are equitable and proportional in compliance with Proposition
218

e Address inflationary impacts in operating costs

* Fund capital reinvestment at a sustainable level
= From ~$1.6M/yr to ~S3.8M/yr in Water
=  From ~$1.5M/yr to ~S2M/yr in Wastewater

* Allocate indirect G&A costs attributable to Water and Wastewater

e Transition out property tax allocated to Water and Wastewater used to fund
indirect G&A costs to allow funding of future Board priorities including:

= Additional capital reinvestment and/or debt service to allow opportunity for private
water system acquisition, NTEC major project, base master plan improvements,
workforce housing, and other future priorities

e Consistent and simple rate adjustments annually

* Position the District to achieve inflationary driven rate adjustments in the
next 5-year rate period




NTPUD Rate Adjustment — Cost of Service Study

Cost of Service Study determined:

* Water and Wastewater rates required restructuring for compliance with
Proposition 218

* Water rates required adjustment for inflationary impacts and to fund system
rehabilitation and replacement

= S$S7Min identified Water capital projects deferred from the five-year study period to
reduce required rate adjustment

* Wastewater rates required adjustment for inflationary impacts and to fund
system rehabilitation and replacement

* Board prioritized gradual transition of indirect G&A costs attributable to Water
and Wastewater from property tax to rates

e Board targeted S1M-S2M in surplus property tax annually at the end of the 5-
year period to fund future priorities

New 5-year Proposition 218 compliant rate structure developed and presented
to Board of Directors for discussion and direction on December 12, 2023.




NTPUD Rate Adjustments — Outreach

On December 12, 2023 the Board of Directors set the date for the
Public Hearing on Utility Rates for March 7, 2024.

District conducted significant outreach to inform customers of
proposed rate changes.

* Publicly noticed workshops during cost-of-service study

* Legally required Proposition 218 notices

e Utility rate open house — February 18, 2024

* Social media posts, e-mail blasts, bill inserts, and dedicated
utility rate webpage




NTPUD Rate Adjustments — Public Hearing

The District held a Utility Rates and Majority Protest
Hearing on March 7, 2024 in compliance with
Proposition 218.

* 20 potential protests received

* Board voted unanimously to move forward with five-year
rate adjustments effective:
= July 1, 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027, and 2028

* Board will review approved rate adjustments annually in
advance of effective date.




NTPUD Rate Adjustments — Results to Date
Water

* Expected operating costs and rate revenues generally consistent with Cost-
of-Service Study

=  Costs increases in utilities, insurance, and employee benefits trending higher than
projected

=  Rate revenues trending lower than projected

* Receipt of unbudgeted grants to support acceleration of capital projects

* Greater capital expenditure than projected by Cost-of-Service Study
= Watermain Replacement and Fireflow Enhancement
=  Smart meters

Wastewater

* Expected operating costs and rate revenues generally consistent with Cost-
of-Service Study

= Costs increases in utilities, insurance, and employee benefits trending higher than
projected

=  Rate revenues slightly lower than projected

* Capital demand generally consistent with Cost-of-Service Study




NTPUD Rate Adjustments — Results to Date

Financial Modeling Discussion




Cost of Service Study
Demonstration of Need for Water Rate Adjustments

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed
Water FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29
Revenue
Operating Rate Revenue $3,184 $3,208 $3,233 $3,258 $3,283
System Replacement Rate Revenue $1,624 $1,637 $1,649 $1,662 $1,675
Property Tax 0 0 0 0 0
Other Misc. Revenue 223 233 247 246 247
Total Revenue $5,031 $5,078 $5,129 $5,166 S$5,205
Revenue Requirement
O&M Expenses $2,317 $2,482 $2,652 $2,786 $2,927
Allocation of Base 706 749 795 834 875
Allocation of Fleet 297 303 309 316 322
Allocation of G&A 2,086 2,109 2,234 2,348 2,481
Total O&M Expenditures S$5,406 S$5,643 $5,990 $6,284 $6,605
Capital Funding 1,818 2,468 2,832 3,246 3,759
Debt Service 416 433 0 0 0
Transfer to Capital Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
Total Revenue Requirement $7,224 $8,111 $8,822 $9,530 $10,364
Balance (Deficiency) of Funds ($2,193) ($3,033) ($3,693) (S4,364) (S5,159)
Bal(Def.) of Funds as % of Rates -45.6% -62.6% -75.6% -88.7% -104.1%

Proposed Rate Adjustment 11.0% 11.0% 11.0% 11.0% 11.0%




Cost of Service Study
Demonstration of Need for Wastewater Rate Adjustments

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed
Wastewater FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29
Revenue
Operating Rate Revenue $3,041 $3,064 $3,088 $3,112 $3,135
System Replacement Rate Revenue $1,507 $1,518 $1,530 $1,542 $1,554
Property Tax 0 0 0 0 0
Other Misc. Revenue 82 85 96 107 104
Total Revenue $4,630 $4,667 $4,714 $4,761 $4,793
Revenue Requirement
O&M Expenses $2,096 $2,241 $2,393 $2,514 $2,642
Allocation of Base 863 922 985 1,036 1,091
Allocation of Fleet 316 322 329 335 342
Allocation of G&A 2,045 2,067 2,191 2,301 2,433
Total O&M Expenditures $5,320 $5,552 $5,898 $6,186 $6,508
Capital Funding 1,507 1,568 1,780 1,867 1,954
Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0
Transfer to Capital Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
Total Revenue Requirement $6,827 $7,120 $7,678 $8,053 $8,462
Balance (Deficiency) of Funds ($2,197) ($2,453) ($2,964) ($3,292) ($3,669)
Bal(Def.) of Funds as % of Rates -48.3% -53.5% -64.2% -70.7% -78.2%

Proposed Rate Adjustment 11.0% 11.0% 11.0% 11.0% 11.0%




Projected Additional Revenue from Utility Rate Adjustments

Water

FY 2024/25

FY 2025/26

FY 2026/27

FY 2027/28

FY 2027/28

Proposed
Average Rate
Adjustment

11%

11%

11%

11%

11%

Projected
Additional
Annual
Revenue

$529,000

$596,000

$670,000

$754,000

$848,000

Wastewater

FY 2024/25

FY 2025/26

FY 2026/27

FY 2027/28

FY 2028/29

Proposed
Average Rate
Adjustment

11%

11%

11%

11%

11%

Projected
Additional
Annual
Revenue

$500,000

$563,000

$634,000

$713,000

$802,000




NTPUD Rate Adjustments — Board Options

Move ahead with approved rate adjustment as scheduled
* No action from Board of Directors required

e 30-day mandatory customer notification inserted in May
utility bills
Alter rate adjustments and/or effective date
* Additional financial modeling required

e Additional review and approval at the April and/or May
meetings by Board

* Board action via Resolution at a future meeting to adopt
changes

* Special mailing of customer notices will be required




Reference Slides
Scheduled Rate Changes




Water Rates — Single Family Residential

FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29
Fixed ($/month)
Base S44.25 $49.12 $54.52 $60.52 $67.17
System Replacement 32.42 35.99 39.95 44 .34 49.22
State/Federal Mandate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Fixed $76.67 $85.11 $94.47 $104.86 $116.39
Variable ($/1,000 gallons)
0 -8,000 gallons $3.54 $3.93 S4.36 $4.84 $5.37
> 8,000 - 20,000 gallons 3.75 4.16 4.62 5.13 5.69
>20,000 gallons 3.99 4.43 492 5.46 6.06




Water Rates — Multi-Residential

|_
FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26' FY 2026-27 JFY 2027-28 FY 2028-29
Fixed ($/month)
Base
3/4" $62.15 $68.99 $76.57 $85.00 $94.35
1" 113.94 126.47 140.39 155.83 172.97
11/2" 279.67 310.44 344.58 382.49 424.56
2" 424.69 471.40 523.26 580.81 644.70
3" 745.79 827.83 918.89 1,019.97 1,132.16
4" 1,160.12 1,287.73 1,429.38 1,586.61 1,761.14
6" 2,071.64 2,299.52 2,552.47 2,833.24 3,144.89
8" 5,800.59 6,438.65 7,146.90 7,933.06 8,805.70
System Replacement
3/4" $32.42 $35.99 $39.95 $44.34 $49.22
1" 59.44 65.98 73.23 81.29 90.23
11/2" 145.90 161.94 179.76 199.53 221.48
2" 221.55 245.92 272.97 302.99 336.32
3" 389.06 431.85 479.36 532.09 590.61
4" 605.20 671.77 745.67 827.69 918.73
6" 1,080.71 1,199.59 1,331.54 1,478.01 1,640.60
8" 3,025.99 3,358.85 3,728.33 4,138.44 4,593.67
State/Federal Mandate $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Variable ($/1,000 gallons)
Tier 1 $3.54 $3.93 $4.36 $4.84 $5.37
Tier 2 3.75 4.16 4.62 5.13 5.69
Tier 3 3.99 4.43 4.92 5.46 6.06




Water Rates — Commercial

FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26' FY 2026-27 IFY 2027-28 FY 2028-29

Fixed ($/month)
Base
3/4"
1
11/2"
2
3
4"
6"
g

System Replacement

3/4"

1

11/2"

o

3

4"

6"

g"

State/Federal Mandate

Variable ($/1,000 gallons)
Tier 1
Tier 2
Tier 3

$41.64
76.33
187.36
284.51
499.62
777.19
1,387.84
3,885.94

$32.42
59.44
145.90
221.55
389.06
605.20
1,080.71
3,025.99

$0.00

$3.54
3.75
3.99

$51.30
94.05
230.84
350.54
615.58
957.57
1,709.95
4,787.87

$39.95
73.23
179.76
272.97
479.36
745.67
1,331.54
3,728.33

$0.00

$4.36
4.62
4.92

$56.94
104.39
256.24
389.10
683.30
1,062.91
1,898.05
5,314.53

$44.34
81.29
199.53
302.99
532.09
827.69
1,478.01
4,138.44

$0.00

$4.84
5.13
5.46

$63.20
115.88
284.42
431.90
758.46
1,179.83
2,106.83
5,899.13

$49.22
90.23
221.48
336.32
590.61
918.73
1,640.60
4,593.67

$0.00

$5.37
5.69
6.06




Water Rates — Common Meter (

rrigation)

FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

FY 2026-27

FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29

Fixed ($/month)
Base
3/4"
1"
11/2"
o
3
4
6"
g"

System Replacement

3/4"

1"

11/2"

on

3

4"

6"

g"

State/Federal Mandate

Variable ($/1,000 gallons)
0-41,000 gallons
> 41,000 gallons

$30.71
56.31
138.21
209.87
368.55
573.30
1,023.75
2,866.50

$32.42
59.44
145.90
221.55
389.06
605.20
1,080.71
3,025.99

$0.00

4.00
4.49

$34.09
62.50
153.41
232.95
409.09
636.36
1,136.36
3,181.81

$35.99
65.98
161.94
245.92
431.85
671.77
1,199.59
3,358.85

$0.00

$4.44
4.99

$37.84
69.37
170.28
258.58
454.09
706.36
1,261.36
3,531.81

$39.95
73.23
179.76
272.97
479.36
745.67
1,331.54
3,728.33

$0.00

$4.93
5.54

$42.00
77.01
189.02
287.02
504.04
784.06
1,400.11
3,920.31

$44.34
81.29
199.53
302.99
532.09
827.69
1,478.01
4,138.44

$0.00

$5.47
6.15

$46.62
85.48
209.81
318.60
559.48
870.31
1,554.12
4,351.55

$49.22
90.23
221.48
336.32
590.61
918.73
1,640.60
4,593.67

$0.00

$6.07
6.83




Water Rates — Fire Protection System

FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29
Fixed ($/Month)
Base
3/4" S3.27 S3.63 $4.03 S4.48 $4.97
1" 4.35 4.83 5.36 5.95 6.61
11/2" 6.52 7.23 8.03 8.91 9.89
2" 8.69 9.65 10.71 11.89 13.19
3" 13.04 14.48 16.07 17.84 19.80
4" 17.38 19.29 21.42 23.77 26.39
6" 26.09 28.95 32.14 35.67 39.60
8" 34.78 38.60 42.85 47.56 52.79




Water Rates — Flat Unmetered Rate

FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 FY 2028-29

$116.54 $129.34 $143.57 $159.35

Flat Un-Metered Rate ‘ $104.97

= Based on proposed water rate structure

= Assumes monthly annual average consumption
of 8,000 gallons




Wastewater Rates — Residential

FY 2024-25  FY 2025-26 | FY 2026-27 | FY 2027-28  FY 2028-29

Residential
Base Rate $40.37 $46.14 $50.92 $57.91 $65.77  Per EDU
System Replacement Rate $17.18 $17.75 $19.99 $20.80 $21.60 Per EDU
State/Federal Mandate Fee S0.00 S0.00 S0.00 $S0.00 S0.00 Per EDU
Total Residential $57.55 $63.89 $70.91 $78.71 $87.37

Non-Residential

Base Rate See Non-Refidential Table Per EDU

System Replacement Rate See Non-Regidential Table Per EDU

State/Federal Mandate Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Per EDU
Total Non-Residential $0.00 $0.00 S0.00 S0.00 $0.00




Wastewater Rates — Non-Residential Base Rates

Unit FY 2024-25  FY 2025-26 | FY 2026-27 ‘Y 2027-28  FY 2028-29

Motel unit with kitchen Per Living Unit/month $17.00 $19.42 $21.44 $24.38 $27.69
Motel unit w/o kitchen Per Living Unit/month 13.04 14.90 16.45 18.71 21.24
Campsite with sewer connection # of Sites/month 26.04 29.76 32.85 37.35 42.42
Campsite without sewer connection # of Sites/month 22.77 26.02 28.72 32.66 37.09
Other Business # of Fixture Units/month 5.17 5.91 6.52 7.41 8.42
Grocery/Market # of Fixture Units/month 9.12 10.43 11.51 13.09 14.86
Laundries # of 10 Ib Machines/month 21.32 24.36 26.89 30.58 34.73
Restaurants & Bars

Inside Seating # of Seats/month 4.00 4.57 5.04 5.73 6.51

Outside Seating # of Seats/month 1.33 1.52 1.68 1.91 2.17
Theatres # of Seats/month 0.52 0.60 0.66 0.75 0.85
Churches # of Seats/month 0.52 0.60 0.66 0.75 0.85
Barber Shops # of Service Chairs/month 13.73 15.69 17.31 19.69 22.36
Beauty Shops # of Service Chairs/month 22.77 26.02 28.72 32.66 37.09
Schools # of seats/month 0.08 0.09 0.10 0.12 0.13
Marina Boat Pumping Facility Per 45.14 51.58 56.93 64.74 73.53
Swimming Pool Per Pool/month 10.38 11.86 13.09 14.88 16.90
Snack Bar # of fixture units/month 4.00 4.57 5.04 5.73 6.51
Studio Living Unit Living Units/month 34.52 39.45 43.54 49.51 56.23
Animal Shelter Per Account/month 142.84 163.24 180.17 204.89 232.68
Service Station # of service bays/month 69.68 79.64 87.90 99.95 113.51




Wastewater Rates — Non-Residential

System Replacement Rates

Unit FY 2024-25  FY 2025-26 || FY 2026-27 | FY 2027-28  FY 2028-29

Motel unit with kitchen Per Living Unit/month $7.23 $7.47 $8.41 $8.76 $9.09
Motel unit w/o kitchen Per Living Unit/month 5.55 5.73 6.46 6.72 6.98
Campsite with sewer connection # of Sites/month 11.08 11.45 12.89 13.42 13.93
Campsite without sewer connection # of Sites/month 9.69 10.01 11.27 11.73 12.18
Other Business # of Fixture Units/month 2.20 2.27 2.56 2.66 2.77
Grocery/Market # of Fixture Units/month 3.88 4.01 4.52 4.70 4.88
Laundries # of 10 Ib Machines/month 9.07 9.37 10.55 10.98 11.41
Restaurants & Bars

Inside Seating # of Seats/month 1.70 1.76 1.98 2.06 2.14

Outside Seating # of Seats/month 0.57 0.59 0.66 0.69 0.71
Theatres # of Seats/month 0.22 0.23 0.26 0.27 0.28
Churches # of Seats/month 0.22 0.23 0.26 0.27 0.28
Barber Shops # of Service Chairs/month 5.84 6.03 6.80 7.07 7.34
Beauty Shops # of Service Chairs/month 9.69 10.01 11.27 11.73 12.18
Schools # of seats/month 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
Marina Boat Pumping Facility Per 19.21 19.84 22.35 23.26 24.15
Swimming Pool Per Pool/month 4.42 4.56 5.14 5.35 5.55
Snack Bar # of fixture units/month 1.70 1.76 1.98 2.06 2.14
Studio Living Unit Living Units/month 14.69 15.17 17.09 17.78 18.47
Animal Shelter Per Account/month 60.78 62.78 70.71 73.59 76.43
Service Station # of service bays/month 29.65 30.63 34.50 35.90 37.29




NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026
FROM: Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: Consider and Discuss Approved Adjustment to Water and Wastewater
Rates — Supplemental Memorandum — Comparative Analysis of Cost-of-
Service Study Periods

DISCUSSION:

The District continues to advance through its intentional 15-year financial strategy that
transitions utility operations through three stages of evolution. As a result, the request
from the Finance Committee to prepare a formal analysis that includes each of the three
5-year Cost-of-Service Study (COSS) periods is timely to provide a mid-point
perspective as we position the Board to consider and approve the upcoming Fiscal Year
End (FYE) 2027 budget. As a reminder, the three phases of the plan are listed below:

1. Phase I: Correction and Stabilization — FYE 2020 to FYE 2024
Resolved historic funding gaps through corrective Wastewater rate adjustments
and nominal Water rate changes. Saw the change in philosophy for allocation of
Property Tax and the creation of the General & Administrative Fund. The rate
increase for Sewer was significant while the increase for Water was minimal.

2. Phase Il: Priority Alignment — FYE 2025 to FYE 2029
Implementing uniform 11% adjustments to provide predictable, steady funding
necessary to address post-pandemic inflationary increases in operating and capital
costs, ensure reliable funding for on-going capital reinvestment, and allow
realignment of indirect General & Administrative costs attributable to Wastewater
and Water.

3. Phase lll: Optimization & Rate Maintenance — FYE 2030 to FYE 2034
Anticipates rate increase reductions — averaging less than 5% for Wastewater and
less than 8% for Water — as the long-planned return on a decade of disciplined
financial management. This period also anticipates the ability to fund Board
identified priorities not currently capable of funding.

Midpoint Perspective

The strategic framework established by the District remains sound, but the “bridge” to
Phase Ill is encountering pressure from external market forces, particularly escalating
construction costs, insurance, and utility-related expenses. Our priority is to maintain the
integrity of Phase Il so that the Optimization goals of Phase Ill remain fully attainable.

95



Midpoint Financial Review

The COSS conducted by HDR Engineers, Inc. continues to validate the District’s rate
structure and long-term financial planning. Both the Wastewater and Water Funds
remain generally aligned with modeled performance, though each is experiencing
distinct operational pressures that project potentially different outcomes.

e Wastewater Fund — Strong Progress Toward Independence
Focused on bridging a massive historical gap. The fund finished slightly above the
break-even target by approximately $300,000 for Phase 1. Looking forward, the
Wastewater Fund is advancing on schedule toward self-sufficiency, reducing
reliance on property tax transfers. While it is projected to experience a $1.4 million
variance below the target for Phase 2, this difference reflects an intentional shift
which was primarily composed of reduced property tax allocations in lieu of internal
reserve utilization.

e Water Fund — Capital and Inflation Sensitivity
While the Water Fund is currently performing on target, it faces heightened
exposure to construction-specific inflation—outpacing general CPl—and remains
dependent on tax allocations. While Phase 1 created a nearly $1.3 million surplus
primarily due to combination of property tax allocations and grants, Phase 2 is
projected to come up short by more than $700,0000. Its path to Phase Ill is still
achievable but is far more sensitive to capital-intensive requirements and cost
pressures.

Phase Il “Stress Test” Factors
Three market-driven pressures are challenging original model assumptions which need
to be tracked closer in comparison to the relevant COSS year.

e Construction Inflation: Material and labor costs are increasing higher than the
construction specific index that was utilized in the COSS.

e Operational Cost Spikes: Utility expenses and corporate insurance premiums are
growing at double digit rates which is more than twice what was assumed for the
model.

e Internal Cost Realignment: Full integration of the G&A internal service fund
allocation beginning FYE 2025 adds structural pressure to both funds and a
consistent as well as a more transparent aggregation of indirect costs allowing the
individual funds to be analyzed under a stand-alone-premise.

Strategic Policy Levers & Trade-offs

In response to the Board’s request for alternative pathways to maintain Phase Il stability
and preserve Phase Il objectives, the District has highlighted a number of different
“theoretical” options.

The following table of theoretical levers represents the most viable options available to

the District. Each option offers benefits but also carries long-term tradeoffs that should
be evaluated within the context of the District’'s 15-year financial trajectory.

96



Levers Action Pro Cons
Increase the use of tax Offsets revenue needs Increases Iong-term dependency
Property Tax transfers to support without impacting user | 2" non-operating revenue and
Allocations o PP P 9 constrains flexibility for other
utility funds. rates _— >
District priorities.

. Creates immediate Risks system reliability and leads
Capital Delay or re-scope short-term rate to significantly higher future
Expenditure planned infrastructure X 19 y hig .

. capacity or budget project costs due to construction
Deferral projects. ' ! :
relief. inflation.
Draw down the District's Reduces emergency readiness
overall fund balance to Helps smooth rate —p g y
Reserve . . . and the District’s ability to absorb
N offset temporary impacts during volatile
Utilization . . . unforeseen regulatory or
inflationary or periods. .
) infrastructure demands.
operational pressures.
. Prov_|ded specnjc Carries a high level of uncertainty
Grant Continue targeted funding for capital . . :
R oo : . particularly during a time of
Utilization applications projects and strategic s .
initiatives political uncertainly.

Conclusion: Safeguarding the Path to Optimization & Rate Maintenance
The District’s 15-year financial transition remains on course. Having successfully moved
from the heavy corrective actions of Phase | to the more strategic and stable actions of
Phase II, we are well-positioned to enter Phase Il — provided we actively manage the

emerging pressures affecting each fund differently.

Supplemental information specifically requested by the Finance Committee.

At the request of the Finance Committee, the District has completed a comprehensive
review of historical, current, and projected financial activity in comparison to the COSSs
prepared by HDR Engineering, Inc. These studies correspond to the three five-year
planning windows associated with the District’'s 2019 and 2024 Proposition 218 efforts as
well as the five-year period ended 6/30/34. It is important to note that the first two five-year
studies were finalized after their respective Proposition 218 processes, and the third
study, covering fiscal years 2030 through 2034, has not yet been formalized.

HDR’s COSS models effectively summarize the District’s financial position by detailing
the major expenditure and revenue components. On the expenditure side, the models
include operating costs, indirect and overhead allocations from internal service funds,
debt service, and planned capital investments. Revenue categories include operating
revenue (both rate and non-rate sources), property tax allocations, grants, and internal
reserve transfers.

The tables below are a summary of the expanded COSS model that the District is

developing to expand its analysis to direct and periodic comparisons to the overall COSS
objectives by specific periods of time.

97



Wastewater

Revenue Expense

FY20-FY24

Revenue Expense

FY25-FY29

60
(2]
c
o 50
> 40
30
20 ﬂ
Revenue Expense Revenue Expense Revenue Expense
FY20-FY24 FY25-FY29 FY30-FY34
O Revenue - Operating O Revenue -Add. Property Tax
B Revenue - Interfund W Expense - Operating Exp
O Expense- Indirect Alloc E Expense- Capital Exp
Water
60
c
S 50
E 40
30
20
° | |

Revenue Expense

FY30-FY34

ORevenue - Operating

@ Revenue -Add. Property Tax
B Revenue - Interfund

O Expense- Indirect Alloc

O Revenue - Grant

B Expense - Debt Service

B Revenue - Property Tax

W Expense - Operating Exp
E Expense- Capital Exp

98



REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By:

Patrick Grimes
Chief Financial Officer

Approved By:

Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
General Manager/CEO

99



A PROPOSED
11 FIVE-YEAR RATE ADJUSTMENT
W CUSTOMER NOTIFICATION

Celebrating 75 Years of Service

The North Tahoe Public Utility District (NTPUD) was formed over 75 years ago, in 1948, to provide wastewater
services to the people of North Lake Tahoe. In November of 1967, water services were added to the District’s
responsibility, and the Recreation and Parks Department was created in 1968.

Our service area includes the communities of Kings Beach, Tahoe Vista, Brockway Vista, Carnelian Bay, Cedar
Flat, and Agate Bay. The District currently serves approximately 3,900 metered water connections and 5,500
wastewater connections. The District also maintains many of the public beaches in our service area and owns and
operates the North Tahoe Regional Park and the Tahoe Vista Recreation Area in Tahoe Vista. The District also
owns and operates the North Tahoe Event Center in downtown Kings Beach.

Our Place & Our Responsibility

At the NTPUD, we take pride in providing safe, efficient, and sustainable water and wastewater services to
our residents and visitors. Our focus on continuous improvement, industry best practices, and compliance
with regulatory mandates and environmental standards is rooted in the understanding that the health of our
environment, local economy, and community are interconnected.

We recognize and embrace our crucial role in the protection of Lake Tahoe and stewardship of the long-term
well-being of our beautiful mountain community.

In 2022, the District adopted a new Strategic Plan that clarifies our
A RENEWED MISSION AND A | direction and identifies our areas of focus over the next five years.
COLLABORATIVE VISION This plan also outlines our renewed mission, collaborative vision,
leadership core values, goals, and objectives.

OUR MISSION OUR VISION

North Lake Tahoe is a vibrant and healthy
community where we optimize our resources for
the greater good and protect our environment
for generations to come.

To serve North Lake Tahoe by providing
exceptional water, wastewater, and
recreational resources.

NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT | Dedicated to Serving Our Community & Protecting Lake TaPJoQO 1



Investing in Our Critical Infrastructure

The District’s water system contains over 53 miles of water
distribution pipelines, five pump stations, eight water storage tanks,
a water treatment plant, two groundwater wells, and one inter-tie
with the Tahoe City Public Utility District. We provide nearly 1-million
gallons of potable water per day to our customers.

The District’s wastewater system consists of over 73 miles of collection
main pipeline, 7.5 miles of force main pipeline, four primary pump stations,
and 16 secondary pump stations. We collect nearly 1-million gallons of
wastewater per day and pump it to the Tahoe-Truckee Sanitation Agency
for treatment, in compliance with the Porter-Cologne Act of 1970.

The average age of the District’s utility infrastructure is now over
50-years old, and even with continuous maintenance and system
investment, much of our system is approaching the end of its service life.

In 2017, the District’s developed a comprehensive Capital Improvement
Plan (CIP) that identified over $51-million in necessary system
rehabilitation and replacement over the next 20-years. Since that

time, the District has worked diligently to strategically invest in
improvements and upgrades that have brought portions of our aging
water and wastewater systems to modern standards. However, there
is still more work to be done and our progress has been slowed
significantly by the impacts of inflation.

COST TO INSTALL ONE MILE
OF WATER PIPELINE

In 2018, the District’s cost to construct one mile
of water pipeline was approximately $1.9 million
and by 2023, that cost had risen to $3.4 million —
an increase of 14% per year.

Building a Wildfire-Resilient Future for Lake Tahoe

As the primary water supplier for North Lake Tahoe, the District
embraces its critical role in community wildfire protection. We are
working to ensure that there is a fire hydrant on every neighborhood
street and that we have the reliable and redundant water supply to
provide the fire flow necessary to help defend our community against
the threat of catastrophic wildfire. Improving water infrastructure
for fire suppression is a top priority in the District’s Capital
Improvement Plan.

Together with the Tahoe City PUD

and South Tahoe PUD, the District is
working hard to secure federal and
state funding to support this important
work. While these dollars allow the
District to accelerate the pace and scale
of projects completed, grants alone

do not provide enough support for the
necessary investments to protect our
communities.

itoldefendiSouthlfakellahoelfromithelCaldogkire!

2 NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT | Proposed Five-Year Rate Adjustment Customer Notification 101



Planned
NTPUD Upgrade &
Improvement Projects

Wastewater Projects

District Boundary

2024 - 2029 PROJECTS 01> ks

: =~
Water Projects @
O

- 35IA3°

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Water Distribution Pipeline Replacement

and Fire Protection Upgrades

Three (3) miles of water distribution pipelines identified
for replacement and upgrade; will replace undersized

and failing water pipelines with larger diameter modern
pipelines to increase available fire protection flows; install
new fire hydrants consistent with coverage requirements.

Water System Pump Station Improvements
Replacement and rehabilitation of pumps, motors, and motor
control centers that have reached the end of their service life.

National Avenue Water Treatment Plant Upgrades
Complete necessary end-of-life equipment replacements
and control system upgrades at the water treatment plant

Smart Metering throughout the District

Replace aging water meters throughout the District’s
three (3) water systems with modern smart meters. Smart
meters will allow for remote collection of water use data
— in real-time. This technology provides more accurate
measurement, leak detection, and improved efficiency
resulting in water savings.

Secondary Wastewater Pump Station Upgrades
Rehabilitate or replace eight (8) of the secondary stations that
date to 1969 and have reached the end of their service life.

Wastewater Collection Main Rehabilitation
Rehabilitate three (3) miles of wastewater collection main
pipeline that are showing signs of failure.

Wastewater Force Main Condition Assessment

Installed in 1968 and approaching the end of its service
life; a comprehensive condition assessment of the
District’s wastewater export force main pipeline to develop
rehabilitation and service life extension recommendations.

District Fleet, Electrification, and Corporation

Yard Improvements

Replace several pieces of heavy equipment and vehicles
that have reached the end of their service life. The NTPUD
fleet must move toward electrification in accordance with
California Air Resources Board (CARB) Advanced Clean Fleet
requirements, beginning in 2027. Upgrades and seismic
retrofits to various corporation yard buildings and facilities.

Scan this code for a detailed interactive map of the NTPUD’s
completed capital investments and utility system upgrades.

NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT | Dedicated to Serving Our Community & Protecting Lake TaPJoQZ 3



PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

District Rate Assessment

In 2022, we retained an independent consultant and began a comprehensive cost-of-service study to determine
whether existing rates and property tax revenues were sufficient to meet the system rehabilitation and replacement
needs, as well as the District’s operational costs for the water and wastewater systems. Our rate structure was

also assessed for compliance with industry best practices and California state law. California Proposition 218 (Cal.
Const. Article XIIID, sec. 6) requires each customer class to be charged only what is required to cover their respective
proportional cost-of-service. Importantly, water rates can only be used to fund water system costs, and wastewater
rates can only be used to fund wastewater system costs.

With the study now complete, we have determined annual rate adjustments are necessary over the next five
years to continue providing reliable and sustainable water and wastewater services into the future. Our existing
rates and property tax revenues are not sufficient to fund the necessary investments in our infrastructure
and meet operational costs.

The proposed adjustments to monthly water and wastewater rates are triggered by many factors including:

« Identified infrastructure improvements necessary to address end of service life system rehabilitation
and replacement before failure.

« |Identified water infrastructure improvements to provide fire suppression.
 Significant escalation of the cost of construction, supplies, materials, labor, and utilities.

Additionally, we identified necessary rate restructuring to ensure continued compliance with Proposition 218.

As aresult of this rate restructuring, the bill impact in the first year of the proposed rate adjustments will not

be the same across all customer classes. Even with the proposed rate adjustments, over the next five-year rate
period, the District’s rates remain consistent with the other water and wastewater service providers in the region.

Prioritizing Property Tax Revenue for Reinvestment

An important component of the District’s rate assessment, and long-term financial stability, is to shift the use
of the District’s property tax revenues. Currently, the District utilizes a portion of our property tax revenues
to subsidize the indirect operating costs of the water and wastewater utilities. The proposed rate adjustments
allow the District to fund these operations through rate revenues and direct property tax revenue into critical
infrastructure projects.

Rate Relief Assistance Program

Beginning in July 2024, the District will offer a structured Rate Relief Assistance Program to income-qualified
customers who have their primary residence within the District. Details and qualifications for this new program
will be available in Summer 2024.

4 NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT | Proposed Five-Year Rate Adjustment Customer Notification 103



CURRENT & PROPOSED WATER RATES

PROPOSED MONTHLY RATES PROPOSED MONTHLY RATES
SINGLE FAMILY CURRENT 3 FY FY FY FY MULTI- CURRENT 3 FY FY FY FY
RESIDENTIAL CIN{ZI 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 2028-29 -3 0 3N 11 T\ R INTZIl 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 2028-29
Proposed Effective Dates 7/1/24  7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 7/1/28 Proposed Effective Dates 7/1/24  7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27  7/1/28
Fixed ($/month) Fixed ($/month)
Base $35.55 | $44.25  $49.12 $54.52 $60.52 $67.17| B3¢
W $69.06 $62.15 $68.99 $76.57  $85.00 $94.35
System Replacement 30.58| 32.42 35.99 39.95| 44.34 49.22 " 12090 113.94 126.47 14039 155.83 172.97
State/Federal Mandate Fee 1.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1% 310.92 | 279.67  310.44 344.58 382.49 424.56
Proposed Variable ($/1,000 gallons) 2" 46979 424.69 471.40| 523.26 580.81 644.70
0-8,000 gallons $2.89 $3.54 $3.93 $4.36 $4.84 $5.37
3" 826.08 74579 827.83 918.89 1,019.97 113216
>8,000 - 20,000 gallons 310 375 416 462 513  5.69
4" 1,292.04 116012 | 1,287.73 | 1,429.38 | 1,586.61 1,761.14
>20,000 gallons 3.39 3.99 443 492 546  6.06
6" 2,302.14 | 2,071.64 | 2,299.52 | 2,552.47 | 2,833.24 | 3,144.89
Flat
Un-Metered Rate N/A | $104.97 $116.54 $129.34 $143.57 $150.35| |8 N/A | 5,800.59 | 643865 714690 | 7,933.06 | 880570
System Replacement
PROPOSED MONTHLY RATES %" $30.58  $32.42  $35.99 $39.95 $44.34 $49.22
COMMERCIAL CURRENT/ 27 3% FY FY (3% 1 48.05 59.44| 6598 73.23 81.29 90.23
MBS LA MUl 2024725 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027°28 | 2025-29 Iy ppn 123.58 | 145.90 161.94| 179.76 199.53 221.48
Proposed Effective Dates 711/24  7/1/25 711726 | 711127 7/1/28 | |, 18671 | 221.55 | 245.92| 272.97 | 302.99 | 336.32
Fixed ($/1 th
B ($/month) 3" 32049 380.06 431.85 479.36 532.09 590.61
W $52.45| $41.64 | $46.21| $51.30 $56.94 | $63.20| |4 513.49 | 605.20 671.77  745.67 827.69 918.73
" 91.82| 76.33| 84.73| 94.05 104.39| 115.88| |¢~ 1,019.36 | 1,080.71 | 1,199.59 | 1,331.54 | 1,478.01 | 1,640.60
1" 236.12| 187.36| 207.97 | 230.84| 256.24| 284.42| | g~ N/A | 3,025.99 | 3,358.85 | 372833 | 4,138.44 | 4,593.67
2" 356.78 284.51| 315.80 | 350.54 389.10 | 431.90 State/Federal Mandate Fee $1.67 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3" 629.64  499.62 554.58 615.58 683.30 758.46 : ;
Variable ($/1,000 gallons) Tiers Vary By Meter Size
4" 981.22 | 777.19 | 862.68 | 957.57 106291 1179.83| |rier1 $2.84| $3.54] $3.93| $4.36| $484| $5.37
6" 1748.34 | 1,387.84 | 1,540.50 | 1,709.95  1,898.05 2,106.83 | |ier2 206! 375 446! 4.62| 543 5.60
8" N/A | 3,885.94 | 4,313.39 | 4,787.87 5314.53 589913 | |Tiers3 3.23| 3.99| 4.43| 492 546 6.06
System Repl nt
%" $30.58 | $32.42 $35.99 $39.95 $44.34 $49.22
1 48.05 59.44 6598 73.23 81.29 90.23
PROPOSED MONTHLY RATES
19" 123.57 | 145.90 161.94 179.76  199.53  221.48
COMMON METER CURRENT N 3 FY FY 24 FY
2" 186.71 | 221.55 245.92 272.97 | 302.99 33632 (/rrigation) YNl 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 2028-29
3" 329.49 389.06 431.85 479.36 532.09 590.61| | Pproposed Effective Dates 7/1/24 | 7/1/25 | 7/1/26 | 7/1/27 | 7/1/28
4" 513.49  605.20 671.77 745.67 827.69 918.73| |rixed s/month)
B
6" 1,019.36 | 1,080.71 | 1,199.59 | 1,331.54 | 1,478.01 | 1,640.60 %a,,se $18.91| $30.71| $34.00| $37.84| $42.00| $46.62
8" N/A 302599 3,358.85 372833 4138.44 459367| |,. 33111 s5631| 62501 €9.37] 77.01| 85.48
State/Federal Mandate Fee $1.67 | $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 1% 8515 138.21  153.41| 170.28 189.02  209.81
Variable ($/1,000 gallons) Tiers Vary By Meter Size 2" 128.66 209.87 | 232.95| 258.58  287.02| 318.60
Tier 1 $2.85| $3.54| $3.93| $4.36| $4.84| $537] |3 227.05 368.55 409.09 454.09 504.04 559.48
Tier2 305/ 375| 416 4.62| 543] S5.69] |4 353.84 | 573.30 636.36 706.36 784.06 870.31
Tier3 319| 399 443 492 546] 6.06] (g 630.47 1,023.75  1136.36 1,261.36 140011 1,554.12
8" N/A | 2,866.50 | 3,181.81 | 3,531.81 3,920.31 4,351.55
PROPOSED MONTHLY RATES
System Replacement
:::‘sﬁ.:';o“c"o" CURRENT| 7 FY FY FY (3% " $31.22 $32.42 $35.99 | $39.95 $44.34 $49.22
U VNIl 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 2028-29
(per Fire Line Size) 1” 54.65 59.44 65.98| 73.23| 81.29 90.23
Proposed Effective Dates 7/1/24 | 7/1/25 7/1/26 @ 7/1/27 7/1/28 11" 140.54 145.90 | 161.94 179.76 199.53 | 221.48
Fixed ($/month) 2" 212.35 | 221.55 245.92 272.97 302.99 336.32
s
A‘ $2.95| $3.27| $3.63| $4.03| $4.48 $4.97| [, 374.76  389.06 431.85| 479.36 532.09 590.61
1 3.92| 435 483 536 595 661 |4 584.02 605.20 67177 745.67 827.69 918.73
1% 587| 6.52| 723 803 891 9.89] |g 1,040.60 | 1,080.71 | 1,199.59 | 1,331.54 | 1,478.01  1,640.60
2" 7.83| 869 965 1071 11.89 13.19| |g~ N/A | 3,025.99 3,358.85 | 3,728.33 | 4,138.44 | 4,593.67
3" 11.75| 13.04| 14.48| 16.07 17.84  19.80 State/Federal Mandate Fee $1.67  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4" 15.66  17.38 19.29| 21.42 23.77 26.39 i i
Variable ($/1,000 gallons) Tiers Vary By Meter Size
6" 23.50 26.09 28.95 3214 35.67 39.60| |0-41,000gal $3.32 $4.00 $4.44 $4.93 $547  $6.07
8" 31.33| 34.78 38.60 42.85 47.56 52.79| |41,000gal and greater 369 449 499 554 615  6.83
Please contact the District or visit www.ntpud.org/rates with questions or if you would like larger versions of the ratlgéles. 5



CURRENT & PROPOSED WATER RATES

MULTI-RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL CLASSES

METER SIZE | TIER1 | TIER 2 | TIER 3

3" 0-6,000gal 6,001 - 41,000 gal 41,001 gal & greater
1" 0-11,000 gal 11,001 - 46,000gal 46,001 gal & greater

1%" 0-27,000 gal 27,001 - 116,000 gal 116,001 gal & greater
2" 0-41,000 gal 41,001 - 134,000 gal 134,001 gal & greater
3" 0-72,000 gal 72,001 - 161,000 gal 161,001 gal & greater
4" 0-112,000 gal 112,001 - 261,000 gal 261,001 gal & greater
6" 0-200,000 gal 200,001 - 460,000 gal 460,001 gal & greater
8" 0-560,000 gal 560,001 - 1,288,000 gal | 1,288,001 gal & greater

CURRENT & PROPOSED WASTEWATER RATES

PROPOSED MONTHLY RATES*

CURRENT FY FY FY FY FY
VNS0 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 2028-29

Proposed Effective Dates 7/1/24  7/1/25 @ 7/1/26 | 7/1/27 | 7/1/28

Base Rate $34.67 $40.37 | $46.14 $50.92 | $57.91 $65.77
System Replacement Rate 15.81 17.18 17.75 19.99 20.80 21.60
State/Federal Mandate Fee 1.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Residential: $51.85 $57.55 $63.89 $70.91 $78.71 $87.37
Non-Residential

Base Rate See table below

System Replacement Rate See table below

State/Federal Mandate Fee 1.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

*per equivalent dwelling unit

PROPOSED MONTHLY NON-RESIDENTIAL PROPOSED MONTHLY NON-RESIDENTIAL
BASE RATES (BY UNIT) SYSTEM REPLACEMENT RATES (BY UNIT)
CURRENT FY FY FY FY FY CURRENT FY FY FY FY 34
UNIT 27N 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 2028-29 UNIT 27N 2024-25 | 2025-26 | 2026-27 | 2027-28 | 2028-29
Proposed Proposed
Effective Dates 7/1/24 | 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27  7/1/28 Effective Dates 7/1/24 | 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27  7/1/28
valolt(?tlchen Per Living Unit/Month $14.60 | $17.00  $19.42  $21.44 | $24.38 | $27.69 v'\c/olt(?'!chen Per Living Unit/Month $6.66 | $7.23 | $7.47 $8.41 $8.76 $9.09
v'\c;::ilitchen Per Living Unit/Month 11.20 | 13.04| 14.90 16.45 18.71| 21.24 va/ogilitchen Per Living Unit/Month 5.1 5.55 5.73 6.46 6.72 6.98
Campsite ) Campsite )
W/ Sewer #of Sites/Month 22.37  26.04 29.76 32.85 37.35 42.42 W/ Sewer #of Sites/Month 10.20 11.08  11.45 12.89 13.42 13.93
Campsite ) Campsite )
W/oSewer # of Sites/Month 19.56 | 22.77 | 26.02 28.72| 32.66  37.09 w/o Sewer # of Sites/Month 8.92 9.69 10.01! 11.27 11.73 12.18

Other Business | #of Fixture Units/Month 4.45 5.17 5.91 6.52 7.41 8.42 Other Business | #of Fixture Units/Month 2.02 2.20 2.27 2.56 2.66 2.77

Markets # of Fixture Units/Month 7.85 9.12 | 10.43 11.51 13.09 | 14.86 Markets # of Fixture Units/Month 3.57 3.88 4.01 4.52 4.70 4.88
Laundries #0f10lbMachines/Month | 18.32 | 21.32 | 24.36 26.89 | 30.58 | 34.73 Laundries #0f 10lb Machines/Month 8.35 9.07 9.37 | 10.55| 10.98 | 11.41
Restaurants Restaurants

&Bars #of Seats/Month 3.43 4.00 4.57 5.04 5.73 6.51 &Bars #of Seats/Month 1.57 1.70 1.76 1.98 2.06 214
Inside Seating Inside Seating

Outside Seating # of Seats/Month 1.13 1.33 1.52 1.68 1.91 217 Outside Seating # of Seats/Month 0.52 0.57 0.59 0.66 0.69 0.71
Theatres # of Seats/Month 0.44 0.52 0.60 0.66 0.75 0.85 Theatres # of Seats/Month 0.21 0.22 0.23 0.26 0.27 0.28
Churches # of Seats/Month 0.44 0.52 0.60 0.66 0.75 0.85 Churches # of Seats/Month 0.21 0.22 0.23 0.26 0.27 0.28

Barber Shops #ofService Chairs/Month | 11.79 | 13.73 | 15.69 | 17.31| 19.69  22.36 Barber Shops #of Service Chairs/Month 5.38 5.84 6.03 6.80 7.07 7.34

Beauty Shops #ofService Chairs/Month | 19.56 | 22.77 | 26.02 28.72 32.66 37.09 Beauty Shops #of Service Chairs/Month 8.92 9.69 10.01| 11.27 | 11.73| 1218

Schools #of Seats/Month 0.07 0.08 0.09 0.10 0.12 0.13 Schools #of Seats/Month 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
Marina Boat - Marina Boat ,

Pumping Facility Per Facility/Month 38.76 | 4514 51.58| 56.93 64.74 73.53 Pumping Facility Per Facility/Month 17.68 | 19.21| 19.84 22.35 23.26 | 24.15
Swimming Pools | PerPool/Month 8.91 10.38 11.86| 13.09| 14.88 16.90 Swimming Pools | Per Pool/Month 4.06 4.42 4.56 5.14 5.35 5.55
Snack Bars # of Fixture Units/Month 3.43 4.00 4.57 5.04 5.73 6.51 Snack Bars # of Fixture Units/Month 1.57 1.70 1.76 1.98 2.06 214
Motel Res/ Motel Res/

Stock Coop/ Living Units/Month 29.64 | 34.52| 39.45 | 43.54 49.51| 56.23 Stock Coop/ Living Units/Month 13.52| 14.69| 15.17 17.09 17.78 | 18.47
Studio Studio

Animal Shelter Per Account/Month 122.66 | 142.84 | 163.24 180.17 | 204.89 232.68 Animal Shelter Per Account/Month 55.94  60.78 | 62.78 70.71| 73.59 76.43

Service Stations | #ofServiceBays/Month | 59.85 | 69.68 | 79.64 87.90  99.95| 113.51 Service Stations | #ofServiceBays/Month | 27.29 | 29.65 | 30.63 34.50 | 35.90 37.29

6 Please contact the District or visit www.ntpud.org/rates with questions or if you would like larger versions of the ratlgﬁes.



Customer Bill Impacts

The proposed water and wastewater rates for all customer classes for the next five years are shown in detail in the
preceding charts on pages 5 and 6.

T The average single-family g The average single-family
residential monthly Q residential monthly E%:]
= I 26 WATER BILL* will be: J o WASTEWATER BILL will be:

Current July 1, July 1, July 1, July 1, July 1, Current July 1, July 1, July 1, July 1, July 1,
Rate 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Rate 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
$85.14 | $97.91 | $108.68 | $120.63 | $133.90 | $148.61 $51.85 | $57.55 | $63.89 | $70.91 $78.71 $87.37

*Assuming 6,000 gallons of consumption per month.

The amount of the water bill is dependent on the actual amount of water used. Lower monthly water bills are possible via
reduced monthly water consumption. Single family residential customers can calculate their projected monthly water
bill, based on the proposed rates, by using the Utility Rate Calculator on the District’s website (www.ntpud.org/rates).

Rate Hearing Process

The District’s water and wastewater rates fund operations, maintenance, and the construction of critical
infrastructure. Proposition 218 requires the District to base its rates on the cost of providing water and wastewater
services (including current and future infrastructure replacement) and mandates that the District may not collect
more revenue than is necessary to recover the costs of providing those services.

The Board of Directors of the North Tahoe Public Utility District will consider the proposed adjustments to its monthly
water and wastewater rates at a public hearing on March 7, 2024, at 5:00 p.m., at the North Tahoe Event Center —
8318 North Lake Boulevard, Kings Beach, CA 96143.

The Board of Directors welcomes community input and will consider public comments as well as any written protests at the
hearing. All written protests must be received prior to the close of the hearing. The Board of Directors, after the close of the
public hearing, will establish the water and wastewater rates for Fiscal Years 2024/2025, 2025/2026, 2026/2027, 2027/2028,
and 2028/2029. Final rates may be less than, but may not exceed, the proposed adjustments outlined in this notice.

If You Would Like to File a Protest

Water and wastewater rate adjustments are subject to Proposition 218. As required by law, each proposed

rate adjustment will not take effect if a majority of District customers file a valid written protest for that proposed rate
adjustment. Only one protest per parcel can be accepted. If a property owner and their tenant directly responsible for
paying the water and/or wastewater bill file separate protests for the same parcel, only one protest will be counted.
Customers receiving water and wastewater service can submit protests on either or both services, and protests for
both services can be submitted in a single document.

TO COMPLETE A VALID WRITTEN PROTEST:

1. Handwrite or type a letter that states: “I protest the water and/or wastewater rate adjustment.”

2. Sign your protest and print your name. All letters must include the customer’s or property owner’s signature
to be valid; an electronic signature cannot be counted.

3. Include your utility account number and the service address [or Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN)] for the utility
account. Property owners who lease their property and do not pay for water and/or wastewater service are only
required to list the service address or APN.

4. Deliver the Written Protest to the District:

e Mail your letter: NTPUD Proposed Rate Adjustment, c/o NTPUD, P.O. Box 139, Tahoe Vista, CA 96148;

o Hand deliver it to the NTPUD Administration Offices: 875 National Avenue, Tahoe Vista, CA 96148;

e Hand deliver it to the District Clerk prior to the close of the public hearing.
Al protests must be received by the North Tahoe Public Utility District before the close of the public hearing on
March 7, 2024. Under California Government Code section 53759, there is a 120-day statute of limitations for challenging

any new, increased, or extended fee or charge. This statute of limitations applies to the water and wastewater service
rates and charges proposed in this notice, and begins on the date that the resolution adopting the rates becomes effective.

NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT | Dedicated to Serving Our Community & Protecting Lake Taf‘l)QG 7



A PROPOSED
11 FIVE-YEAR RATE ADJUSTMENT
W CUSTOMER NOTIFICATION

LEARN MORE AND PARTICIPATE AT THESE PUBLIC MEETINGS:

Utility Rate Open House Public Hearing
February 13, 2024 from 6:00-8:00 p.m. March 7, 2024 at 5:00 p.m.
North Tahoe Event Center North Tahoe Event Center
8318 North Lake Blvd., Kings Beach, CA 96143 8318 North Lake Blvd., Kings Beach, CA 96143

If you would like additional information on the District, the proposed water and wastewater rate adjustments,
and the District’s five-year Capital Improvement Plan, please visit ntpud.org or call (530) 546-4212.

AVISO AL CLIENTE DE }
AJUSTE DE TARIFA PROPUESTO A CINCO ANOS

Scan for
Para recibir esta informacion en espainiol, Spanish
escanee este codigo o contactenos al (530) 546-4212. translation

AN There are two private water companies, Agate Bay Water Company and Fulton Water Company, that operate within

IMPORTANT | theservice boundaries of the North Tahoe Public Utility District. Customers served by either of these companies will
NOTE only be impacted by the proposed wastewater rate adjustment, not the proposed water rate adjustment.

107



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: F-3
FROM: Office of the General Manager

SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Provide Direction Regarding the District’s Utility
Rate Relief Program

RECOMMENDATION:

Review, discuss, and provide direction to staff regarding potential updates and
expansion of the District’s Utility Rate Relief Program.

DISCUSSION:

Access to responsible wastewater disposal and quality drinking water is a prime
determinant of positive health outcomes. The District’'s commitment to the provision of
which is recognized and supported by the District’s Vision and Mission Statements.

During the District’'s most recent Cost-of-Service Study, the Board provided direction to
staff to develop a Rate Relief Program to help alleviate financial hardship for income
gualified customers.

In late 2023, staff created criteria for the program and worked with the Finance
Committee to develop the details of the program.

In 2024, the Board approved Resolution 2024-08 and new Financial Policy FINOO6 —
establishing a limited rate relief program funded by property tax for income-qualified,
primary residence residential water and wastewater customers.

In early 2025, following a successful first year of program outreach, marketing, and
implementation, staff presented options to expand the program to include a second tier
of income qualifications — with the hope of providing additional assistance to a larger
number of customers across the District.

At the April 8, 2025, regular meeting, the Board adopted Resolution 2025-06 —
amending the District’s income-qualified rate relief program and revising the District’s
Financial Policy FINOOG, to expand eligibility for the program:

Participation in the Rate Relief Credit Program shall either be based on the
applicant’s current participation in Liberty Utilities’ CARES Program within the
District (Tier 1), or a self-certification by the applicant verifying that their annual
combined household income before taxes is not more than 300% of the current
federal poverty limit (Tier 2).

108



In accordance with District Financial Policy FINOOG6, staff has prepared a presentation of
the performance of the existing Rate Relief Program to date, as well as the findings
from the review of the current status of our partner agency’s program updates for review
and discussion.

In this item, staff is requesting direction from the Board relative to any desired changes
to the District’s current Rate Relief Program.

These changes would be presented for adoption by the Board at the April 2026 meeting
and incorporated into the District’s Fiscal Year 2026/27 budget planning process.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The impact will be determined based on feedback from the Board and calculated and
presented when the Board considers adoption of the necessary policy amendments.

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:

Goal 3: Enhance District governance and partnerships — Objective A: Maintain best
practices in public agency governance throughout all levels of the District — Tactic 1.:
Keep accurate and up-to-date ordinances and policies in alignment with best practices,
laws, and regulations.

Goal 3: Enhance District governance and partnerships — Objective D: Be a strong
community partner to provide value in alignment with the District's charter.

ATTACHMENTS:

¢ Rate Relief Program PowerPoint Presentation
e Rate Relief Program Policy (FINOOG6)
e 2025 Rate Relief Program Application

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted by: Reviewed by:
Justin Broglio Patrick Grimes
Government and Community Chief Financial Officer
Affairs Manager

Approved by:

Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
General Manager/CEO

109



NTPUD Utility Customer
Rate Relief Program Update

March 10, 2026




Rate Relief Program — Current Status

e Created for residential water and wastewater customers
e Tier 1 =o0pento NTPUD residents enrolled in Liberty CARES program
e Tier 2 =open to NTPUD residents who report under 300% of Fed. Poverty Limit

e Funding for the program utilized Property Tax receipts with an allocation of
S130,000 available for Fiscal Year 2025-26

o This funding manner is compliant with California Proposition 218
(Cal. Const. Article XIIID, sec. 6)

o This level of funding was anticipated to assist up to 361 primary residential
customers at a rate of $15 per month for wastewater only customers and $30
per month for water and wastewater customers

o These credit amounts are consistent with a targeted 20% relief of rates




Program — Prior Board Action and Review

March 2024 -

* NTPUD Board Adopted Resolution 2024-07 — Increased and Adjustments to Rates for Water and Wastewater
Service Charges

* April 2024 -

*  NTPUD Board Adopted Resolution 2024-08 — Approving the Rate Relief Policy (FINOO5), authorizing a Rate
Relief Program, and funding the Program for the Fiscal Year 2024-25

* July 2024 -

*  New program launched to the community with marketing and public outreach

*  March 2025 -

*  Staff presented options to expand the program and include a Tier 2 level based on income-qualifications

* April 2025 -

*  NTPUD Board Adopted Resolutions 2025-06, amending the District’s income-qualified rate relief program and
revising the District’s Financial Policy FINOO6

* July1, 2025 -

*  Program updates go live to the community with marketing and public outreach




Income Qualified Rate Relief Policy — FINOO6

The District recognizes the fiscal challenges faced by a portion of the primary residents of its service area
and, as such, are subject to potential negative outcomes as a result. It is the Districts’ goal to ensure that
income-qualified residents, who have their primary domicile within the boundaries of the District, may
participate in a Rate Relief Credit Program to alleviate those risks.

The District has identified the funding source of the relief to be from Property Tax receipts with a targeted
level of funding reflective of current economic conditions and participation in the Liberty Utilities” CARES
Program within the District.

The Chief Financial Officer, in collaboration with the General Manager and Finance Committee, shall
perform a funding and per customer rate relief amount analysis annually to be provided to the Board of
Directors for deliberation and approval, in conjunction with the annual Budget process.

Additional information may be provided to the Board of Directors upon the occurrence of the following
events:

a) When a major change in Property Tax receipts threatens the levels established for the fiscal year
or circumstances call into question the effectiveness of this policy;

b) Upon request by the Chief Financial Officer, General Manager, and/or Board.




2025 Program Status —

Customer Participation to Date

FY 26 YTD FY26 YTD FY 25 FY25
Community Customer Count Amount Customers Amount
Carnelian Bay 6 $1,995 2 S495
Tahoe Vista 6 S2,280 8 $2,070
Kings Beach 37 S11,640 24 $7,230
Totals 49 $15,915 34 $9,795

Tiers Pursued by Customers

FY26 YTD FY26 YTD
Program Tier Level Customer Count Amount
Tier 1 38 $14,370
Tier 2 11 $1,545
49 $15,915

Tier 2 — Breakdown by Household Size (income qualifications)

Household Size

Income Qualification

Current Program
Participants

$46,950

7

$63,450

$79,950

$96,450

$112,950

Njoju]|h|WIN|F-

$129,450

O|O|O |||

$145,950




NTPUD —Tier 1 and 2 Implementation

Current FY25/26 Relief Tiers — Anticipated Year-end/Total Program Cost to the District
Year Water Relief Tier 1 Tier 1 Cost Tier 2 Tier 2 Cost Total Water
Credit Participants (38x5$30) x 12 months) Participants (11x3815) x 12 months) Relief Cost

FY25/26 $30.00 38 $13,680 11 $3,960 $17,640

Year Wastewater Tier1 Tier 1 Cost Tier 2 Tier 1 Cost Total Wastewater

Relief Credit Participants (38x530) x 12 months) | Participants | (11x515) x 12 months) Relief Cost

FY25/26 $30.00 38 $13,680 11 $3,960 $17,640

Total Projected Cost for FY 25/26:  $35,280




Customer Outreach / Marketing / Advertising

* In-person outreach with Sierra Community House and at a variety of community
events throughout the year

e Sierra Sun and Moonshine advertisements

e Social media posts and promotions

*  Dual-language flyers throughout the community

e Customer bill inserts (dual language)

* Notifications included with all late payment / unpaid NTPUD bill notices
* NTPUD Customer Service Team — verbal and email outreach

*  Website landing page and “quick link” updates promoting the program

* Quick and easy — 1 page — application that can be submitted online or in-person

Haler & Haslwaler
RATE RELIEF

EXPANDED OPTIONS for income-
qualified customers.

Apply online at - www.ntpud.org




Regional Programs — 2025 Comparison

Water Sewer Participants . Water Sewer  participants i
Relief Relief (AsofFeb. 2026) Assistance Relief Relief  (asof Feb. 2026) Assistance
~28% Sewer ~14% Sewer
NTPUD $30.00 S$30.00 38 and Water S15 S15 11 and Water
Fixed Rates Fixed Rates
50% Water 25% Water
TCPUD S53.29 N/A 44 Base Rate $26.64 N/A 18 Base Rate
25% Sewer 15% Sewer
STPUD $15.03 $14.90 493 and Water $9.02 $8.94 17 and Water
Base Rates Base Rates

TCPUD - 550,000 (60% Tier 1, 40% Tier 2) allocation annually funded via cell tower lease revenues. No tenant option.
STPUD — 5130,000 Tier 1 allocation and $50,000 Tier 2 allocation annually funded via property tax.




NTPUD — Rate Relief — Rate Discounts

NTPUD Rate Relief Discounts for a Single-Family Household

‘(’;’3;5’ Ijlate Tier 1 Tier 2 Wastewater Tier 1 Tier 2

, gallons . . . .

monthly use) Relief Relief Rate Relief Relief
S30 off S15 off S30 off S15 off

FY 2025-26

(cutrent rates) $108.68 ($78.68) ($93.68) $63.89 ($33.89) ($48.89)
(28% off) (14% off) (47% off) (23% off)

(adopted rates) $120.63 ($90.63) ($105.63) $70.91 ($40.91) ($55.91)
(25% off) (12% off) (42% off) (21% off)




Tier 1 and 2 — Household Income Thresholds

Maximum Total Combined Annual Household Income

Tier 1 — Liberty CARES Tier 2—-NTPUD Tier 2-TCPUD Tier 2 -STPUD

(June 2025 — May 2026) (June 2025 — May 2026) (1/1/25-12/31/25) (June 2025 — May 2026)
1 $42,300 (1 or 2) $46,950 $66,050 $84,600 (1 or 2)
2 $42,300 (1 or 2) $63,450 $75,450 $84,600 (1 or 2)
3 $53,300 $79,950 $84,900 $106,600
4 $64,300 $96,450 $94,300 $128,600
5 $75,300 $112,950 $101,850 $150,600
6+ $86,300 $129,450 $109,400 $172,600
7+ $97,300 $145,950 N/A — (6+ only) $194,600

Placer County — 2024 Low
Liberty CARES is up to 200% of Up to 300% of the Federal Income Limit from the Up to 400% of the 2025 Federal
the Federal Poverty Guidelines. Poverty Guidelines. CA Dept. of Housing and Poverty Guidelines.

Community Development.




2026 Income Qualification Options - ANNUAL

Maximum Total Combined Annual Household Income
Tier 1 Placer Median
Household/ (Liberty Cares) Up to 300% of Placer Low Income Up to 400% of Income Limit Up to 500% of
Family Size Up to 200% of Federal Poverty* Limit (2025)** Federal Poverty* (2025)** Federal Poverty*
Federal Poverty

1 $31,920™" $47,880 $72,050 $63,840 $84,550 $79,800

2 $43,280 $64,920 $82,350 $86,560 $96,650 $108,200

3 $54,640 $81,960 $92,650 $109,280 $108,700 $136,600

4 $66,000 $99,000 $102,900 $132,000 $120,800 $165,000

5 $77,360 $116,040 $111,150 $154,720 $130,450 $193,400

6 $88,720 $133,080 $119,400 $177,440 $140,150 $221,800

7 $100,080 $150,120 $127,600 $200,160 $149,800 $250,200

* U.S. Federal Poverty Guidelines Used to Determine Financial Eligibility for Certain Programs, published in the Federal Register —
https://aspe.hhs.qgov/topics/poverty-economic-mobility/poverty-quidelines

** California Dept. of Housing and Community Development — Official State Income Limits for 2025 (effective April 23,
2025) - https://www.hcd.ca.gov/funding/income-limits/state-federal-income-limits/state

*** Actual income level for a household size of 1. Liberty Cares uses the income level of a household size of 2 for
households of both 1 and 2.




Median Household Income (2023 Census Report)




Options for Program Modification

Options could include:

* Maintain status quo and continue to recruit participants.

* |Increase water and wastewater bill discounts in Tier 1

* Increase water and wastewater bill discounts in Tier 1 and Tier 2

* Expand eligibility for Tier 2 by adjusting income qualifications to 400% or
500% of Federal Poverty Guidelines

* Expand eligibility for Tier 2 by changing our income guidelines to use the State
of California Income Standard for Placer County, instead of Federal Poverty
Guidelines

Important to Remember:
NTPUD Accounting Systems must consider a flat rate (i.e. $15 OFF and not 20% OFF)




Next Steps

* Provide direction to staff on desired changes to credit amount,
income limits, and total program allocation

 Staff will make required policy edits and draft a new resolution
for Board consideration at April 2026 meeting

* Budget impacts incorporated into FY 26/27 Budget
* Program update and rollout — Spring 2026

* Program updates/changes will go live —July 1, 2026




NORTH TAHOE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

POLICY: - _ NUMBER: FIN006

Income-Qualified Rate Relief EFFECTIVE: July 1, 2024

Policy REVISED: July 1, 2025
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: CFO

PURPOSE:

The District shall provide a discount on wastewater and water service rates for income-qualified,
primary-residence customers to ensure that all residents have access to responsible wastewater
disposal and quality drinking water reducing the negative health outcomes which arise when they are
lacking.

This policy establishes the procedure and funding to achieve the following specific goals:
a) Fund Rate Relief in a manner consistent with the Mission of the District; and
b) Maintain fiscal responsibility to taxpayers.

The District shall account for, and report, Rate Relief revenue offsets in a transparent manner
consistent with Government Accounting Standards.

POLICY:

The District recognizes the fiscal challenges faced by a portion of the primary residents of its service
area and, as such, are subject to potential negative outcomes as a result. It is the District’s goal to
ensure that income-qualified residents, who have their primary domicile within the boundaries of the
District, can participate in a Rate Relief Credit Program to alleviate those risks.

The funding source of the Rate Relief Credit Program shall be from Property Tax receipts with a
targeted level of funding that is reflective of current economic conditions. Participation in the Rate
Relief Credit Program shall either be based on the applicant’s current participation in Liberty
Utilities” CARES Program within the District (Tier 1), or a self-certification by the applicant
verifying that their annual combined household income before taxes is not more than 300% of the
current federal poverty limit (Tier 2).

The Chief Financial Officer, in collaboration with the General Manager and Finance Committee,
shall perform a funding and per customer rate relief amount analysis annually, for each Tier, to be
provided to the Board of Directors for deliberation and approval, in conjunction with the annual
Budget process.

Additional information may be provided to the Board of Directors upon the occurrence of the
following events:
a) When a major change in Property Tax receipts threatens the levels established for the fiscal
year or circumstances call into question the effectiveness of this policy; or
b) Upon request by the Chief Financial Officer, General Manager, and/or Board of Directors.

124



This Policy supersedes all previous policies, procedures, memos or other documentation on
this subject matter.

Adopted By: Resolution 2024-08

Revised By: Resolution 2025-06

125



Application for Rate Relief Credit (2025)

North Tahoe Public Utility District (NTPUD) residential customers meeting the eligibility

requirements will receive a monthly credit to their account. The program is administered on a
first-come, first-served basis. The program is in effect until program funds are fully expended on

an annual July 1%t to June 30" basis.

1. Qualifications for all applications

___Reside as a primary resident in a single-family or multi-family residential property at an NTPUD service address.

2. Tier 1 - Rate Assistance - S Rate Reduction ($60 per month water and wastewater or $30 per month wastewater only)
Are you able to show proof of active enrollment in the Liberty CARE (California Alternate Rates for Energy) program at the same

address as your NTPUD service address?

__Yes, please provide the most recent Liberty Utility Bill with evidence of your participation in the Liberty Utilities CARE

program.
__No, continue to Step 3.

3. Tier 2 - Rate Assistance - S

in the table on the right.

Household Size: Annual Income:

Do you attest that your annual combined household income before taxes is less than

the limits shown in the table?
__Yes, continue to Step 4.
__No, you are not eligible for Rate Relief Assistance at this time.

4. NTPUD Customer Information
Requested By: I:I Property Owner |:| Tenant

NTPUD Account Number:

Service Address:

Applicant’s Legal Name:

Household Size

1

A L dh WN

Rate Reduction ($30 per month water and wastewater or 515 per month wastewater only)
Your annual combined household income before taxes cannot be more than 300% of the current federal poverty guideline provided

Income
546,950
563,450
579,950
596,450
$112,950
5$129,450
$145,950

Mailing Address:

Phone Number: Email Address:

5. Certification — Please Read Before Signing

I, the undersigned, under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of California do hereby declare and certify:

®  That | have read and understood all of the NTPUD Rate Relief Credit Program guidelines provided with this application and that

all of the information provided by me on this application is accurate, complete, and true to the best of my knowledge.

®  That | understand that submitting the required documentation does not guarantee participation in the program. Such information

will, however, be used to determine if | qualify for benefits under the program.

®  Proof of continued eligibility must be provided on July 15t of each year during re-enroliment.

® That | understand the credit will be applied to the account. In the event | am not the account holder of record, the NTPUD encourages
the account holder of record/landlord and tenant to work together to provide a rent or similar credit to the tenant qualifying for the

program.

®  That | understand that any attempt to falsify my information will result in my disqualification from the program and may subject me

repayment of the benefits received and further civil or criminal penalties.

Applicant Signature:

Account Holder Signature*:

* If different from Applicant

Date:

Date:

For Internal Use Only  Date Received: Processed by:

Approved: Denied: Denial Reason:



mailto:customerservice@ntpud.org

NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE.: March 10, 2026 ITEM: F-4
FROM: Office of the General Manager

SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Possibly Nominate Any Special District
Representatives (Directors) to Serve as a Regular Voting Member for
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) and Authorize the Board
President to Complete the Nomination Form

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors consider nominating any director serving on a Placer
County Independent Special District Board to serve as a Regular Voting Member for
LAFCO, and authorize the Board President to complete the nomination form.

BACKGROUND:

The District is a Placer County Local Area Formation Commission (LAFCO) member. In
1963, the California State Legislature created LAFCO to encourage orderly growth and
development to protect agricultural resources and open space, discourage urban
sprawl, and provide efficient and effective provision of services. Each county in the
state is required to have a LAFCO. These LAFCOs fulfill their legislative mandate
through the consideration, approval, or denial of boundary changes proposed by
individuals or local agencies. LAFCOs do not have the power to initiate boundary
changes on their own, except for proposals involving the dissolution, consolidation, or
merger of special districts or the establishment of subsidiary districts.

Membership in each county's LAFCO is prescribed by law. The

Placer LAFCO Commission contains seven members: Two representatives from the
County Board of Supervisors, two representatives from city councils, two special district
representatives, and one public member. The current membership is outlined below:

County Members
e Cindy Gustafson, Chair
Supervisor, District 5
e Anthony DeMattei
Supervisor, District 3
e Shanti Landon, Alternate
Supervisor, District 2

127



City/Town Members

e Sean Lomen
City of Colfax
Term Expires May 2026

e Whitney Eklund, Vice Chair
City of Lincoln
Term Expires May 2028

e Stephanie Youngblood, Alternate
Town of Loomis
Term Expires May 2026

Special District Members
e Joshua Alpine, Chair
Placer County Water Agency
Term Expires May 2028
e Judy Friedman,
Tahoe City Public Utility District
Term Expires May 2026 — Nomination being Considered
e Scott Wilson, Alternate
Tahoe-Truckee Sanitation Agency
Term Expires May 2028

Public Members
e Susan Rohan
Term Expires May 2027
e Cherri Spriggs, Alternate
Term Expires May 2027

LAFCO announced it is seeking nominations from the Special Districts to fill upcoming
vacancies of the regular voting member seat, which expires in May 2026. The District
may nominate any director serving on a Placer County Independent Special District
Board to run for the upcoming LAFCO vacancy.

LAFCO Commission meetings are typically held on the second Wednesday of each
month, at 4 p.m., in the Board of Supervisors Chamber, located in Auburn, California.
The seat serves a four-year term, running from May 2026 to May 2030.

Should the Board decide to nominate a director, the Board must do so via formal action
and, in doing so, authorize the President to cast the District's nomination forms for the
Special District representatives.

The District has received an emailed request from Judy Friedman, Tahoe City Public
Utility District Director, to be considered for nomination to the expiring seat that she
currently holds.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: No Current Fiscal Impact

128



ATTACHMENTS:

e Letter for Call for Nominations: Special District Appointment to Placer LAFCO
e Independent Special District Selection Committee Nomination Form — Voting
Member

e Statements of Qualification from Judy Friedman, Tahoe City Public Utility District
Director

MOTION:

Nominate a director to serve as a Voting Member for the Special District Representative
for Local Agency Formation Commissioner (LAFCO), and Authorize the Board
President to Complete the Nomination Forms

REVIEW TRACKING:

Approved By:

Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
General Manager/CEO

129



COMMISSIONERS

Joshua Alpine
Chair
(Special District)

Anthony DeMattei
(County)

Whitney Eklund
Vice Chair
(City)

Judy Friedman
(Special District)

Cindy Gustafson
(County)

Sean Lomen
(City)

Susan Rohan
(Public)

ALTERNATE
COMMISSIONERS

Shanti Landon
(County)

Cherri Spriggs
(Public)

Scott Wilson
(Special District)

Stephanie
Youngblood
(City)

COUNSEL

Michael Walker
General Counsel

STAFF

Colette Santsche
Interim Executive
Officer

Amanda Ross
Acting Assistant
Executive Officer

Amy Engle
Commission
Clerk/Analyst

Placer Local Agency Formation Commission
110 Maple Street Auburn, CA 95603 | (530) 889-4097

Electronic Transmittal

February 10, 2026

TO: Independent Special Districts of Placer County, Presiding Officer
c/o District Clerk

FROM: Colette Santsche, Interim Executive Officer

SUBJECT: Call for Nominations: Special District Appointment to
Placer LAFCO

Dear Presiding Officer,

The term of office for one of the regular Special District
Representatives on the Placer County Local Agency Formation
Commission (LAFCO), currently held by Commissioner Judy
Friedman, is scheduled to expire in May 2026. Pursuant to
Government Code 856332, the Independent Special District Selection
Committee serves as the appointing authority to select a
representative for the upcoming four-year term, which will run from
May 2026 to May 2030.

You are hereby invited to submit a nomination for this seat. The
presiding officer (Board Chair/President) of each independent special
district may nominate any director currently serving on an independent
special district board within Placer County. Formal board action to
nominate a candidate is not required under the statute, but districts
may choose to confirm nominations through board minutes if desired.

About Placer LAFCO

Regular Commission meetings are typically held on the second
Wednesday of each month at 4:00 PM in the Placer County Board of
Supervisors’ Chambers, located at 175 Fulweiler Avenue, Auburn, CA.
Commissioners are reimbursed for mileage and receive a stipend of
$150 for attending LAFCO meetings. Additional information about
Placer LAFCO is available at: https://www.placerlafcoca.gov.

placerlafcoca.gov

130


https://www.placerlafcoca.gov/

Election of Special District Representative to Placer LAFCO Call for Nominations: Special
District Member February 10, 2026

Nomination Guidelines and Requirements:

1. Authorized Signature: The nomination form must be signed by the district’s
presiding officer, or the presiding officer’s alternate as designated by the
governing body. While a formal board action to nominate a candidate is not
required under the statute, the signature of the presiding officer or alternate is
mandatory.

2. Designation of Alternate: If an alternate has been designated by the governing
body, please include a copy of the official meeting minutes or minute order
documenting this designation.

3. Statement of Qualifications (Optional): Providing a "Statement of
Qualifications” is at the discretion of the district and is not a requirement for
nomination. If submitted, the statement must be limited to one-page and will be
distributed to all districts with the ballot package.

4, Submission Deadline: The nomination period begins on Tuesday, February 10,
2026, and will close on Tuesday, March 17, 2026, at 4:00 PM.

Next Steps: Once the nomination period concludes, LAFCO staff will review all
nominations for completeness and eligibility. If only one valid nomination is received,
that nominee will be deemed appointed. If more than one nomination is received, a
mail-ballot election will be conducted. A ballot package—including the statements of
gualifications and voting instructions—will be emailed to all 37 independent special
districts.

Please submit the completed nomination form and if you choose to provide one, one-
page statement of qualifications via email to |lafco@placer.ca.gov no later than 4:00
PM on Tuesday, March 17, 2026.

Thank you for your commitment to ensuring that independent special districts remain
effectively represented on the Commission. Should you have any questions, please
contact our office at (530) 889-4097.

Sincerely,
ol Lt f]r.,*f.tlf.'c'frr{
Colette Santsche

Interim Executive Officer Placer LAFCO

lafco@placer.ca.gov

placerlafcoca.gov Page 2 of 2

131


http://www.placerlafcoca.gov/
mailto:lafco@placer.ca.gov
mailto:lafco@placer.ca.gov

Placer Local Agency Formation Commission
110 Maple Street Auburn, CA 95603 | (530) 889-4097

Placer County Independent Special District Selection Committee
Nomination Form

POSITION: Regular Voting Member Term May 2026-May 2030

Please use this form to nominate a director from a Placer County Independent Special
District board to run for the reqular voting member seat on the LAFCO Commission.

NOMINEE INFORMATION

Name of Nominee:

Position of Nominee:

Nominee’s District:

NOMINATING DISTRICT AUTHORIZATION

Name of Nominating District:

Printed Name of Presiding Officer:

Signature of Presiding Officer:

(Signature Required)?

ATTACHMENTS (Optional)
[J Meeting Minutes

[J One-page Statement of Qualifications

SUBMISSION: Please email the completed form and any attachments to
lafco@placer.ca.gov no later than Tuesday March 17, 2026, at 4:00 PM.

1 The nominating district’s presiding officer must sign this form unless the district’s board has designated an alternate
to nominate a director on behalf of the district. If this form is signed by a designated alternate, please include the
district's meeting minutes or minute order evidencing the delegation of authority.

placerlafcoca.gov 132


mailto:lafco@placer.ca.gov

Good morning all,

Once again, | am running for re-election to the Placer County LAFCO Board and am asking
for your support both through a nomination (due March 17) and your vote in May. The seat |
ran to fill just last year expires in 2026....

As areminder, | approach this from a unique perspective, being both elected to the Board
of the Tahoe City Public Utility District and Clerk of the Board for the Tahoe City Cemetery
District.

| believe that given the growth and complex issues we are facing, it is critical that the
Special Districts are well represented on the LAFCO Board. | am committed to representing
your interests, especially where they may differ from the county and city issues. Many of
the communities throughout Placer County must rely on special districts to serve many
unique needs. ltis essential that our concerns and interests be heard and addressed as
LAFCO becomes more active in our County.

As always, I’m happy to meet with your General Manager and/or Board President either in
person orvia Zoom. | want to make sure that | understand your concerns and issues and
that we communicate regularly so | can represent your issues and concerns.

Many, many thanks for your consideration

Regards,

Judy Friedman

Judy Friedman
The Paper Trail Secretarial & Business Solutions

530-581-5692

133



DATE:

FROM

NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

March 10, 2026 ITEM: G-1

: Office of the General Manager

SUBJECT: General Manager/CEO Report

Major monthly items of note are included as agenda items or are addressed in the
Department Managers' reports in this packet. Additional items are as follows:

1) The District, Tahoe City Public Utility District (TCPUD), and the South Tahoe Public

Util

a)

b)

ity District (STPUD) continue their partnership work on legislative matters:

The partnership continues work with the office of Senator Alex Padilla (CA) to
advance legislation revising the Environmental Protection Agency’s Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund program to allow funding for certain projects that
support both drinking water systems and wildfire suppression. Draft bill language
is being circulated to gauge support in the Senate. The partnership is working to
develop a coalition of entities in support of the effort.

The partnership achieved a major milestone on the United States Forest Service
(USFS) Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 budget appropriation for the Tahoe Water for Fire
Suppression Program. Thanks to the efforts of Congressman Mark Amodei
(NV), the partnership received an explicit line-item allocation, totaling $2.125M, in
the USFS budget contained in the FY26 Department of Interior Appropriations
spending bill. This spending bill was passed, as a part of the Commerce,
Justice, Science; Energy and Water Development; and Interior and Environment
Appropriations Act of 2026, by the House of Representatives on January 8, 2026,
by a 397-28 vote; the Senate on January 15, 2026, by a vote of 85-15; and
signed by the President on January, 26, 2026.

In December, the partnership met to review and rank FY 26 projects for
submission to the USFS for funding. A total of 10 projects were submitted by five
different partners. The partnership met in January to finalize scoring and projects
from NTPUD and STPUD were ranked as the top two projects. These two
projects will be eligible for funding under the FY 26 $2.125M appropriation
discussed above with a project completion window starting in the summer of
2027.

134



2)

3)

c)

d)

f)

The District submitted a ~$1.8M FY 27 Congressionally Directed
Spending/Community Project Funding appropriations request to the offices of
Senator Padilla, Senator Adam Schiff, and Congressman Kevin Kiley. The
request would support funding to complete watermain replacement and fireflow
enhancement in the Brockway neighborhood.

The partnership’s Washington DC legislative affairs visit is scheduled for the
week of April 20, 2026.

The 2026 Lake Tahoe Summit will be hosted by Senator Jacky Rosen (NV) and,
while a date has not yet been set, the last two weeks of August are being
targeted.

At the state level, the partnership continues to work with its legislative advocate
to ensure funding from the approved $10-billion Climate Bond is allocated to a
water infrastructure for fire suppression program. Working with Assembly
Member Steve Bennett (District 38 — Ventura), the partnership supported the
development of AB 372 (Bennett), which establishes a new water infrastructure
for the fire suppression program in the State of California Office of Emergency
Services (Cal OES) that will be funded via the Climate Bond.

In agreement with Assembly Member Bennett’s office, AB 372 was moved to the
inactive file for the 2025 legislative session. It is being considered again in 2026.

The partnership is currently focused on continued outreach and education on the
importance of the bill, with particular focus on the Governor’s office, as well as in
support of coalition building to ensure its consideration as a statewide initiative.

The partnership is visiting Sacramento with the California Tahoe Alliance on
March 24, 2026 for advocacy meetings with members of the state legislature.

The General Manager and Board Secretary/Administrative Liaison are working with
the identified Board facilitation and training consultants to schedule meetings with
the assigned ad-hoc committee for consultant selection and scope of work
development.

The Boys and Girls Club of North Lake Tahoe (BGCNLT) held its regularly
scheduled Board meeting on February 25, 2026. The following items were topics of
discussion:

a)
b)

Approval of the January 2026 meeting minutes

Board Chair Report

I. Review of Upcoming Events

ii. Culture Building and Management Coaching Consultant Discussion
iii. Incline Facility Update and Approval of Design Consultant Contract
iv. Update on Ferrari Trust Gift

135


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB372

4)

5)

Submitted By:

c) Board Governance Discussion
I. Gift Acceptance Policy
ii. Board Bylaws
d) Finance Committee Report
i. Chief Financial Officer Recruitment Discussion
ii. Cyber Security Update
iii. Audit Update
e) Closed Session — CEO Performance Review

The next regularly scheduled BGCNLT Board meeting is March 25, 2026.

The North Tahoe Community Alliance Kings Beach District (KBD) Committee held its
regularly scheduled meeting on March 2, 2026 with the following agendized items:

a) Approval of the February 2, 2026 Meeting Minutes
b) Approval of the consolidation of the Kings Beach Business Assessment District
and Advocacy/Policy working groups
¢) Working Group Updates
i. Events
ii. Advocacy/Policy
iii. Engagement (Education/Communication)
iv. Kings Beach Business Assessment District
d) Review and Discussion of Strategic Plan Tracking Document and Long-Range
Calendar
e) Staff Updates

The next regularly scheduled Kings Beach District Committee meeting is April 6,
2026.

The District is recruiting for one open position:
e Senior Engineer

Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
General Manager/CEO

136



DATE:

FROM

NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

March 10, 2026 ITEM: G-2

: Government and Community Affairs Manager

SUBJECT: Public Information and Community Outreach Report

DISCUSSION:

Public

Information and Community Outreach:

In February, our outreach to customers and communication with residents and

visitors focused on — 1) promotion of our Recreation and Parks winter activities
and Park grooming updates; 2) promotion and outreach regarding the District’s
seasonal hiring and available positions; 3) updates to residents about their new
2026-2027 Parking Passes.

Staff continues to work closely with Recreation & Parks Department staff to
promote the activities, programs and events as part of the 2025/2026
Winter/Spring Recreation Activity Guide.

Staff worked with Recreation & Parks Department staff to promote the District’s
2026 Tahoe Snowfest events and community activities.

Staff is continuing work on our new website accessibility and user interface
update, with an anticipated launch in Spring 2026.

Staff is continuing to advance progress on the District's Secline Beach
Enhancement Planning & Design Project, with the next public outreach portion of
the project scheduled for early Summer 2026.

Staff has initiated work on the District’'s Public Art Project, following the approval
of $100,000 in grant funding secured from the TOT/TBID Dollars at Work
program and the Tahoe Fund.

o Staff anticipates the Call to Artists will be released in March.

Staff continues to work on the District’'s Greenhouse Gas (GHG) inventory
project.

o Third-party data verification consultants from Cameron-Cole have
completed verification of the District’s draft GHG emissions inventory data.

137



o Staff is working to schedule a presentation to the Board on this item in
April or May 2026.

Government Affairs:

e Staff continues to assist the General Manager with California and Federal
legislative affairs, outreach, and planning.

e Staff is monitoring a number of bills in the CA Legislature and planning to attend
the CSDA Special District Legislative days in April.

e Staff continues to assist with communications, marketing, and outreach for the
District’s role in the Tahoe Water for Fire Suppression Partnership.

Grants:

e The District was awarded a $65,000 TOT/TBID Dollars at Work program grant at
the Feb. 3, 2026, Placer County Board of Supervisors meeting to support the
District’s Public Art Project.

e Staff is continuing to research and review additional grant opportunities as they
become available.

North Tahoe Event Center Marketing:

e Staff continues to support the NTEC Manager as needed with marketing and
community outreach.

Community and Regional Partner Connections:

e Participated in the monthly Destination Stewardship Council meetings — serving
on the Recreation Infrastructure and Public Information Action Teams.

e Participated in the NTCA’s December First Tuesday Breakfast Club, presentation
topics and videos are at - https://firsttuesdaybreakfastclub.com

e Continued participation in Placer County’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan update
group. Draft plan updates are scheduled for review in 2026. More information is
available at - https://engage.placer.ca.gov/Hazard-Mitigation-Plan-2026

e Participated in the Climate Transformation Alliance meeting with other local
agencies. Recent presentation topics and CTA updates area available online at -
https://climatetransformationalliance.org/

Review Tracking:

Submitted By: Approved By:
Justin Broglio Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Government and Community General Manager/CEO
Affairs Manager

138


https://firsttuesdaybreakfastclub.com/
https://engage.placer.ca.gov/Hazard-Mitigation-Plan-2026
https://climatetransformationalliance.org/

Email Newsletter Metrics —

e February 2026 metrics for the Recreation Newsletter and Board Meeting Notices.

North Tahoe Recreation — Weekly Newsletter Updates
e We sent four Weekly Recreation Update newsletters in January.
e These emails were opened 10,021 times, with 38% of that traffic on mobile
devices.

NTPUD Board and Commission Meeting Notices
e The District sent our four meeting notices in February.
e These emails were opened 344 times, with 20% of that traffic on mobile devices.

139



Social Media Highlights -

140



141



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: G-3a
FROM: Finance Department
SUBJECT: Draft Financial Reports through January 31, 2026

All Funds Consolidated:

For the seven-month period ending January 31, 2026, consolidated financial results
reflect strong overall performance. Net Income totaled $5,565,031, which is $592,256
(11.9%) favorable compared to the budgeted net income of $4,972,775. This positive
variance is primarily attributable to operating revenues being slightly more than budget
and significant savings across multiple operating expense categories.

Actual to Budget: Months Ended January 31, 2026

$10,000,000
$8,000,000

$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000
- 5= ST == n)
@ @ o & S
82,000,000 & & & < & 5
Q)\\ Loy Q’QJ
.Q;o QJ@
& ©

X
$(4,000,000) € & o> 5 & &
O
$(6,000,000) &

W 1-31-26 Actual m1-31-26 Budget

Favorable spending variances were led by reductions in Salaries and Wages, Employee
Benefits, and Other Operating Expenses. While many of these variances are timing-
related, they will continue to be closely monitored.

142



Collectively, the favorable variances more than offset a $505,138 shortfall in Grant
Revenue. As reported in previous reports to the Board the grant revenue is currently
expected to be more than $400,000 under budget due to a number of factors including
significant construction activity in June of FYE 2025 which was budgeted for FYE 2026.
Grants are lower than budgeted in both the Water Fund and Rec and Park Fund and
both are expected to finish lower than the budget.

Overall, consolidated performance remains favorable compared to budget, supported by
disciplined expense management and steady operating revenue performance. Below is
a breakdown of major line items integrating all divisions’ year-to-date results:

e« Net Income (Line 27)
o Actual: $5,565,031
o Budget: $4,972,775
o Variance: $592,256 (11.9% Favorable)

Net Income exceeded budget primarily due to relatively flat operating revenues and
spending trends being slower than budgeted across major expense categories as well
as vacancies in budgeted positions. Collectively, the aggregate activity helped offset the
current shortfall in grant revenue.

o Total Operating Revenue (Line 4)
o Actual: $7,683,498
o Budget: $7,625,896
o Variance: $57,602 (0.8% Favorable)

Operating revenues are slightly ahead of budget based on positive variances in Water
and Recreation and Parks offset by a shortage in Wastewater.

o Salaries and Wages (Line 6)
o Actual: ($3,689,756)
o Budget: ($3,836,982)
o Variance: $147,226 (3.8% Favorable)

Salaries and wages are below budget, largely due to position vacancies and timing of
hires relative to budget. In addition to the open Senior Engineer, two vacancies occurred
at the Event Center.

143



« Employee Benefits (Line 7)
o Actual: ($1,693,462)
o Budget: ($1,889,954)
o Variance: $196,492 (10.4% Favorable)

Employee benefits are trending below budget in alignment with staffing levels and
benefit cost timing which were front loaded in the budget for the first half of the year and
are expected to level out in part by end of the year.

e Outside Services / Contractual (Line 8)
o Actual: ($915,915)
o Budget: ($1,014,152)
o Variance: $98,237 (9.7% Favorable)

General & Administrative contributed heavily to this variance. However, Fleet &
Equipment and Wastewater experienced higher-than-budgeted outside services costs
due to ancillary items for new vehicles.

o Utilities (Line 9)
o Actual: ($508,833)
o Budget: ($578,356)
o Variance: $69,523 (12.0% Favorable)

Utility expenses are favorable to budget but as discussed previously a significant rate
increase of more than double digits is expected before the end of the year.

e Other Operating Expenses (Line 10)
o Actual: ($854,768)
o Budget: ($1,170,319)
o Variance: $315,551 (27.0% Favorable)

Contractual and outside service costs are below budget primarily reflecting slower than
budgeted starting dates for various projects. This continued slower spending rate is
driven by multiple factors, including timing of purchases, lower repair activity, and the
impact of resource allocations related to ongoing capital project work (such as smart
meter installations, trail consolidation, and fire suppressant initiatives).

144



e Depreciation (Line 14)

o Actual YTD: ($2,172,568)

(o}

Budget YTD: ($2,364,809)

o Variance: $192,241 (8.1% Favorable)

Depreciation expense is below budget, reflecting the delayed timing of capital asset
additions and project completion schedules. The District is currently researching a
variety of topics related to on-boarding new capital projects which is holding up the
release of at least two significant capital projects related to park and trails and

watermain.

Wastewater Fund

The Wastewater Fund reported a Net Loss of ($214,462) (Line 32), which is $280,486
(56.7%) better than the budgeted net loss of ($494,948). While operating revenues were
slightly below projections, the fund achieved favorable variances across nearly all major
expense categories. Savings in salaries, employee benefits, utilities, and other
operating expenses significantly reduced the anticipated deficit.

Water Fund

Line 4 — Total Operating Revenue: Achieved $3,209,991, which was
$87,642 (2.7%) lower than budget due primarily to the 3% budgeting
discrepancy in service fees and timing differences with connection fees.
Line 6 — Salaries & Wages: Generated ($766,434), which was $24,457
(3.1%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 7 — Employee Benefits: Generated ($367,658), which was $64,671
(15.0%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 8 — Outside Services: Generated ($109,400), which was $4,257
(3.7%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 9 — Utilities: Generated ($127,474), which was $18,840 (12.9%)
lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 10 — Other Operating Expenses: Generated ($79,542), which was
$70,633 (47.0%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable due primarily to
timing of certain budgeted activities.

Line 14 — Depreciation: Generated ($719,785), which was $25,666
(3.4%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

The Water Fund reported Net Income of $2,450,995 (Line 32), which is $227,199
(10.2%) better than budget. Revenue performance remained stable and slightly
exceeded projections, while all major operating expense categories trended favorably.

145



Notable savings in benefits, outside services, utilities, and depreciation contributed to
the positive variance.

Line 4 — Total Operating Revenue: Achieved $3,364,660, which was $5,067
(0.2%) higher than budget.

Line 6 — Salaries & Wages: Generated ($664,706), which was $17,149
(2.5%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 7 — Employee Benefits: Generated ($316,267), which was $50,219
(13.7%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 8 — Outside Services: Generated ($150,516), which was $20,103
(11.8%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 9 — Utilities: Generated ($229,937), which was $23,487 (9.3%) lower
than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 10 — Other Operating Expenses: Generated ($245,318), which was
$72,002 (22.7%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable due primarily to
timing of certain budgeted activities.

Line 14 — Depreciation: Generated ($754,903), which was $160,373 (17.5%)
lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Recreation & Parks Fund

The Recreation & Parks Fund reported Net Income of $2,172,684 (Line 32), which is
$123,131 (6.0%) better than budget. Operating revenues exceeded expectations,
reflecting strong program and facility performance. Although outside services ran slightly
above budget, savings in benefits, utilities, and other operating expenses more than
offset the variance.

Line 4 — Total Operating Revenue: Achieved $1,082,026, which was
$134,356 (14.2%) higher than budget.

Line 6 — Salaries & Wages: Generated ($716,817), which was $2,817 (0.4%)
lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget. Notably, salaries had
been trending higher than budget due primarily to the budgeting methodology
for seasonal employees.

Line 7 — Employee Benefits: Generated ($319,529), which was $44,216
(12.2%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 8 — Outside Services: Generated ($198,662), which was $13,145
(7.1%) higher than budgeted expense, unfavorable due to a change in
vendors for linen services as customers requested upgraded linens.

Line 9 — Utilities: Generated ($72,158), which was $14,152 (16.4%) lower
than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 10 — Other Operating Expenses: Generated ($108,966), which was
$41,114 (27.4%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

146



e Line 14 — Depreciation: Generated ($512,680), which was $12,314 (2.3%)
lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

The Event Center Fund

The Event Center Fund reported a Net Loss of ($89,288) (Line 32), which is $115,272
(56.4%) better than the budgeted net loss of ($204,560). Strong operating revenue
performance helped offset overages in outside services. Savings in salaries, employee
benefits, utilities, and other operating expenses contributed to the favorable variance.

e Line 4 —Total Operating Revenue: Achieved $377,510, which was $74,149
(24.5%) higher than budget, reflecting strong event bookings. The pipeline for
booked events was approximately $540,000 compared to $380,000 for future
events at end of January.

e Line 6 — Salaries & Wages: Generated ($211,292), which was $14,584
(6.5%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

e Line 7 - Employee Benefits: Generated ($100,538), which was $20,404
(16.9%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

e Line 8 — Outside Services/Contractual: Generated ($40,751), which was
$19,696 (93.6%) higher than budgeted expense, unfavorable due to a change
in vendors for linen services.

e Line 9 - Utilities: Generated ($38,781), which was $11,029 (22.2%) lower
than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

e Line 10 — Other Operating Expenses: Generated ($60,930), which was
$14,967 (19.7%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Fleet & Equipment Fund

The Fleet & Equipment Fund reported Net Income of $118,919 (Line 32), which is
$60,977 (105.3%) better than budget. The favorable variance was primarily driven by
significant savings in other operating expenses. While outside services and depreciation
were slightly above budget, overall expenditures remained well controlled, allowing the
fund to outperform projections.

e Line 6 — Salaries & Wages: Generated ($96,874), which was $813 (0.8%) lower
than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

e Line 8 —Outside Services: Generated ($20,488), which was $8,863 (76.2%)
higher than budgeted expense, unfavorable due to timing of ancillary accessories
for the new trucks.

147



Line 10 — Other Operating Expenses: Generated ($85,884), which was
$64,916 (43.1%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 14 — Depreciation: Generated ($146,610), which was $1,437 (1.0%) higher
than budgeted expense, unfavorable.

General & Administrative Fund

The General & Administrative Fund reported Net Income of $1,036,894 (Line 32),
which is $99,538 (8.8%) worse than budget. Most operating expense categories
performed favorably, including salaries, benefits, and outside services. However,
higher depreciation expense and allocation timing variances contributed to the
unfavorable net variance. Overall spending remains controlled, and allocation
fluctuations will continue to be monitored.

Submitted By: Approved By:

Line 4 — Total Operating Revenue: Achieved $26,822, which was $5,822
(27.7%) higher than budget.

Line 6 — Salaries & Wages: Generated ($1,444,925), which was $101,990
(6.6%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable due primarily to vacancy in
Senior engineering position.

Line 7 — Employee Benefits: Generated ($638,834), which was $29,586 (4.4%)
lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 8 — Outside Services: Generated ($436,850), which was $95,884 (18.0%)
lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 10 — Other Operating Expenses: Generated ($335,057), which was
$66,887 (16.6%) lower than budgeted expense, favorable to budget.

Line 21 — Allocation of G&A: Generated $2,953,786, which was $425,768
(12.6%) lower than budgeted allocation, favorable to budget due to overall
reductions across most expenditure categories.

Line 14 — Depreciation: Generated ($38,590), which was $4,675 (13.8%) higher
than budgeted expense, unfavorable to budget.

ATTACHMENTS:
Financial Report for January 31, 2026
REVIEW TRACKING:

Patrick Grimes Bradley A. Johnson, P.E
Chief Financial Officer General Manager/CEO

148



© 0NV A WN R

1
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

o

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Month-To-Date Year-To-Date FY 2025
Income $ Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance YTD
Operations
Operating Revenue S 954,306 S 992,117 $ (37,811) -3.8%| |$ 7,570,913 $ 7,506,798 $ 64,115 0.9%| |$ 7,026,624
Internal Revenue 10,926 11,358 (432) -3.8% 112,585 119,098 (6,513) -5.5% 113,594
Total Operating Revenue S 965,232 S 1,003,475 $ (38,243) -3.8%| |$ 7,683,498 $ 7,625,896 $ 57,602 0.8%| |$ 7,140,218
Salaries and Wages S (530,046) $ (496,617) $ (33,429) -6.7%| |$ (3,689,756) $ (3,836,982) $ 147,226 3.8%| [$ (3,579,699)
Employee Benefits (278,983) (274,075) (4,908) -1.8% (1,693,462) (1,889,954) 196,492 10.4% (1,638,395)
Outside Services/Contractual (125,240) (132,756) 7,516 5.7% (915,915) (1,014,152) 98,237 9.7% (808,477)
Utilities (70,958) (101,193) 30,235 29.9% (508,833) (578,356) 69,523 12.0% (544,690)
Other Operating Expenses (104,416) (116,442) 12,026 10.3% (854,768) (1,170,319) 315,551 27.0% (869,934)
Insurance (41,236) (41,164) (72) -0.2% (290,335) (288,146) (2,189) -0.8% (256,524)
Internal Expense (10,926) (11,358) 432 3.8% (112,585) (119,098) 6,513 5.5% (111,566)
Debt Service (720) (720) - 0.0% (6,450) (5,744) (706) -12.3% (15,502)
Depreciation (313,108) (359,159) 46,051 12.8% (2,172,568) (2,364,809) 192,241 8.1% (2,184,883)
Total Operating Expense $ (1,475,633) $ (1,533,484) $ 57,851 3.8%| |$ (10,244,672) $ (11,267,560) $ 1,022,888 9.1%| |$ (10,009,670)
Operating Income(Loss) $ (510,401) $ (530,009) $ 19,608 3.7%| | (2,561,174) $ (3,641,664) $ 1,080,490 29.7%| |$ (2,869,452)
Non-Operations
Property Tax Revenue S 625,000 $ 625,000 $ - 0.0% S 4,375,000 $ 4,375,000 $ - 0.0% S 4,025,000
Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) 59,544 60,833 (1,289) 2.1% 416,810 425,831 (9,021) 2.1% 406,666
Grant Revenue 19,222 - 19,222 100.0% 3,170,112 3,675,250 (505,138) -13.7% 885,617
Interest 18,662 20,000 (1,338) -6.7% 164,289 140,000 24,289 17.3% 192,781
Other Non-Op Revenue 8,151 8,151 - 0.0% 103,307 56,691 46,616 82.2% 153,339
Capital Contribution - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Other Non-Op Expenses (24,099) (8,333) (15,766) -189.2% (103,313) (58,333) (44,980) -77.1% (305,067)
Income(Loss) S 196,079 $ 175,642 $ 20,437 11.6%| [ $ 5,565,031 $ 4,972,775 S 592,256 11.9%| [ $ 2,488,884
Additional Funding Sources
Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% S - S - S - 0.0% S -
Transfers - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Balance $ 196,079 $ 175642 $ 20,437 11.6%| |3 5565031 $ 4,972,775 S 592,256 11.9%| |3 2,488,884
Operating Income $ (510,401) $ (530,009) $ 19,608 3.7%| | ¢ (2,561,174) $ (3,641,664) $ 1,080,490 29.7%| | s (2,869,452)
Net Income(Loss) S 196,079 S 175,642 S 20,437 11.6% S 5,565,031 $ 4,972,775 S 592,256 11.9% S 2,488,884
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization S 509,907 $ 535,521 $ (25,614) -4.8% S 7,744,049 S 7,343,328 $ 400,721 5.5% S 4,689,269
Operating Ratio 153% 153% 0% 0.0% 133% 148% -14% -9.8% 140%
Operating Ratio - plus Tax & CFD 89% 91% -1% -1.5% 82% 91% -9% -9.4% 86%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 272.33 243.95 2838% 21556% 862.80 865.73 -294% 86867% 160.55

1 Financial Statements

149




Actual Results For the Month Ended January 31, 2026

General &
Income Statement Wastewater Water Recreation & Parks Fleet & Equipment Administrative Total
1 Operations
2 Operating Revenue 456,339 S 420,336 S 73,591 S - 4,040 | S 954,306
3 Internal Revenue 4,530 4,526 1,870 - - 10,926
4 Total Operating Revenue 460,869 S 424,862 S 75,461 S - 4,040 | S 965,232
5
6 Salaries and Wages (112,910) $ (99,652) S (87,938) S (15,735) (213,811)( $ (530,046)
7 Employee Benefits (55,776) (48,787) (43,089) (8,397) (122,934) (278,983)
8 Outside Services/Contractual (13,092) (16,506) (29,551) 602 (66,692) (125,240)
9 Utilities (23,589) (25,704) (7,580) (989) (13,096) (70,958)
10 Other Operating Expenses (10,392) (15,043) (6,537) (15,191) (57,253) (104,416)
11 Internal Expense (1,029) (1,278) (5,350) (143) (3,126) (10,926)
12 Debt Service - (720) - - - (720)
13 Insurance (8,858) (8,858) (8,858) (4,983) (9,679) (41,236)
14 Depreciation (102,826) (108,335) (75,537) (20,896) (5,513) (313,108)
15 Total Operating Expense (328,473) (324,883) (264,439) (65,732) (492,104) (1,475,632)
16
17 Operating Contribution 132,396 $ 99,980 $ (188,979) ¢ (65,732) (488,064)| $ (510,400)
18
19 Allocation of Base - S - S - - - S -
20 Allocation of Fleet (25,121) (18,964) (17,060) 61,145 - -
21 Allocation of General & Administrative (169,051) (166,836) (132,594) - 468,481 -
22 Operating Income(Loss) (61,777) S (85,820) $ (338,633) S (4,587) (19,583)| $ (510,400)
23
24 Non-Operations
25 Property Tax Revenue - S 208,333 $ 266,667 8,333 141,667 | S 625,000
26 Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) - - 59,544 - - 59,544
27 Grant Revenue - - 19,222 - - 19,222
28 Interest - - - - 18,662 18,662
29 Other Non-Op Revenue - - - - 8,151 8,151
30 Capital Contribution - - - - - -
31 Other Non-Op Expenses (5,077) - (8,274) - (10,748) (24,099)
32 Income(Loss) (66,853) S 122,513 S (1,474) 3,746 138,149 | $ 196,081
33
34 Additional Funding Sources
35 Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue - S - S - - - S -
36 Transfers - - - - - -
37 Balance (66,853) $ 122,513 S (1,474) 3,746 138,149 | S 196,081
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization 35,973 S 231,568 74,064 24,642 143,662 S 509,909
Operating Ratio 71% 76% 350% 12180% Median
Operating Ratio - plus Tax & CFD 71% 51% 66% 789% 338% 54%

2 Financial Statements

150



YTD For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

General &
Income Statement Wastewater Water Recreation & Parks Fleet & Equipment Administrative Total
1 Operations
2 Operating Revenue 3,178,282 S 3,327,924 S 1,037,886 $ - S 26,822 | $ 7,570,913
3 Internal Revenue 31,709 36,736 44,140 - - 112,585
4 Total Operating Revenue 3,209,991 3,364,659 S 1,082,026 $ - S 26,822 | $ 7,683,498
5
6 Salaries and Wages (766,434) (664,706) S (716,817) S (96,874) S (1,444,925)( $ (3,689,756)
7 Employee Benefits (367,658) (316,267) (319,529) (51,174) (638,834) (1,693,462)
8 Outside Services/Contractual (109,400) (150,516) (198,662) (20,488) (436,850) (915,915)
9 Utilities (127,474) (229,937) (72,158) (5,002) (74,262) (508,833)
10 Other Operating Expenses (79,542) (245,318) (108,966) (85,884) (335,057) (854,768)
11 Internal Expense (7,196) (8,945) (42,453) (1,016) (52,976) (112,585)
12 Debt Service - (6,450) - - - (6,450)
13 Insurance (62,006) (62,006) (63,689) (34,881) (67,753) (290,335)
14 Depreciation (719,785) (754,903) (512,680) (146,610) (38,590) (2,172,568)
15 Total Operating Expense (2,239,495) (2,439,048) (2,034,953) (441,929) (3,089,247) (10,244,672)
16
17 Operating Contribution 970,497 925,612 $ (952,928) $ (441,929) $ (3,062,425)| $ (2,561,174)
18
19 Allocation of Base - - S - S - S - S -
20 Allocation of Fleet (206,456) (155,855) (140,205) 502,515 - -
21 Allocation of General & Administrative (999,869) (1,075,133) (878,784) - 2,953,786 -
22 Operating Income(Loss) (235,828) (305,376) $ (1,971,916) $ 60,586 S (108,639)| $ (2,561,174)
23
24 Non-Operations
25 Property Tax Revenue - 1,458,333 §$ 1,866,667 S 58,333 $ 991,667 | $ 4,375,000
26 Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) - - 416,810 - - 416,810
27 Grant Revenue - 1,297,141 1,872,971 - - 3,170,112
28 Interest - - - - 164,289 164,289
29 Other Non-Op Revenue 40,055 897 - - 62,355 103,307
30 Capital Contribution - - - - - -
31 Other Non-Op Expenses (18,688) - (11,847) - (72,778) (103,313)
32 Income(Loss) (214,462) 2,450,995 $ 2,172,685 S 118919 S 1,036,893 | $ 5,565,030
33
34 Additional Funding Sources
35 Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue - - S - S - S - S -
36 Transfers - - - - - -
37 Balance (214,462) 2,450,995 S 2,172,685 S 118,919 $ 1,036,893 | $ 5,565,030
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization 505,323 3,212,348 §$ 2,685,365 S 265,530 $ 1,075,483 S 7,744,048
Operating Ratio 70% 72% 188% Median
Operating Ratio - plus Tax & CFD 70% 51% 60% 54%

3 Financial Statements

151



© 0N UAWN R

=
o

1
1
13
14
15
16
17
18
1
2
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
3
35
36
37

=

S ©

N

B

Wastewater Operations
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Month-To-Date Year-To-Date Prior
Income Statement Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance YTD
Operations
Operating Revenue $ 456,339 $ 463,553 $ (7,214) -1.6%| |$ 3,178,282 $ 3,265,926 $ (87,644) 2.7% 2,931,189
Internal Revenue 4,530 4,530 - 0.0% 31,709 31,707 2 0.0% 28,560
Total Operating Revenue $ 460,869 $ 468,083 $ (7,214) -1.5%( [$ 3,209,991 $ 3,297,633 $ (87,642) 2.7% 2,959,749
Salaries and Wages $ (112,910) $ (108,118) $ (4,792) 4.4%| |$ (766,434) $ (790,891) $ 24,457 3.1% (800,212)
Employee Benefits (55,776) (60,854) 5,078 8.3% (367,658) (432,329) 64,671 15.0% (407,093)
Outside Services/Contractual (13,092) (15,469) 2,377 15.4% (109,400) (113,657) 4,257 3.7% (64,522)
Utilities (23,589) (27,832) 4,243 15.2% (127,474) (146,314) 18,840 12.9% (129,220)
Other Operating Expenses (10,392) (9,800) (592) -6.0% (79,542) (150,175) 70,633 47.0% (101,089)
Insurance (8,858) (8,971) 113 1.3% (62,006) (62,796) 790 1.3% (53,585)
Internal Expense (1,029) (1,028) (1) -0.1% (7,196) (7,696) 500 6.5% (6,494)
Debt Service - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Depreciation (102,826) (106,493) 3,667 3.4% (719,785) (745,451) 25,666 3.4% (723,581)
Total Operating Expense $ (328,472) $ (338,565) $ 10,093 3.0%| |$ (2,239,495) $ (2,449,309) $ 209,814 8.6% (2,285,796)
Operating Contribution S 132,397 $ 129,518 $ 2,879 22%| |S 970,496 S 848,324 S 122,172 14.4% 673,953
Allocation of Base S - S - S - 0.0%| |$ - S - S - 0.0% -
Allocation of Fleet (25,121) (25,121) s 0.0% (206,456) (206,456) s 0.0% (215,832)
Allocation of General & Administrative (169,051) (148,921) (20,130) -13.5% (999,869) (1,136,816) 136,947 12.0% (1,003,721)
Operating Income(Loss) $ (61,775) $ (44,524) $ (17,251) 38.7%| | $ (235,829) $ (494,948) $ 259,119 52.4% (545,600)
Non-Operations
Property Tax Revenue S - S - S - 0.0%| |$ - S - S - 0.0% -
Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Grant Revenue - - » 0.0% » - » 0.0% »
Interest = = = 0.0% = = = 0.0% =
Other Non-Op Revenue - - - 0.0% 40,055 - 40,055 100.0% 95,356
Capital Contribution - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Other Non-Op Expenses (5,077) - (5,077) -100.0% (18,688) - (18,688) -100.0% (208,225)
Income(Loss) $ (66,852) $ (44,524) $ (22,328) 50.1%| | $ (214,462) $ (494,948) $ 280,486 56.7% (658,469)
Additional Funding Sources
Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% S - S - S - 0.0% -
Transfers - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Balance S (66,852) S (44,524) S (22,328) -50.1%| | $ (214,462) $ (494,948) $ 280,486 56.7% (658,469)
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization S 35,974 $ 61,969 S (25,995) -41.9%| | $ 505,323 $ 250,503 S 254,820 101.7% 65,112
Operating Ratio 71% 72% -1% -1.5% 70% 74% -5% -6.1% 77%
Operating Ratio - plus Tax & CFD 71% 72% -1% -1.5% 70% 74% -5% -6.1% 77%

4 Financial Statements

152




© 00 NOUAWN R

=
o

1
1
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
2
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
3
35
36
37

[ =

o

N

B

Water Operations
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Month-To-Date Year-To-Date Prior
Income Statement Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance YTD
Operations
Operating Revenue $ 420336 $ 444,022 $ (23,686) -5.3% 3,327,924 $ 3,319,679 $ 8,245 0.2%| |$ 3,153,823
Internal Revenue 4,526 5,702 (1,176) -20.6% 36,736 39,914 (3,178) -8.0% 40,273
Total Operating Revenue $ 424,862 $ 449,724 $ (24,862) -5.5% 3,364,660 $ 3,359,593 $ 5,067 0.2%| |$ 3,194,096
Salaries and Wages $ (99,652) $ (92,771) $ (6,881) -7.4% (664,706) $ (681,855) $ 17,149 25%| | $ (589,873)
Employee Benefits (48,787) (51,586) 2,799 5.4% (316,267) (366,486) 50,219 13.7% (286,303)
Outside Services/Contractual (16,506) (31,308) 14,802 47.3% (150,516) (170,619) 20,103 11.8% (135,302)
Utilities (25,704) (34,862) 9,158 26.3% (229,937) (253,424) 23,487 9.3% (248,192)
Other Operating Expenses (15,043) (9,185) (5,858) -63.8% (245,318) (317,320) 72,002 22.7% (264,539)
Insurance (8,858) (8,971) 113 1.3% (62,006) (62,796) 790 1.3% (53,585)
Internal Expense (1,278) (1,278) s 0.0% (8,945) (8,945) s 0.0% (8,057)
Debt Service (720) (720) - 0.0% (6,450) (5,744) (706) -12.3% (15,502)
Depreciation (108,335) (145,050) 36,715 25.3% (754,903) (915,276) 160,373 17.5% (823,996)
Total Operating Expense $ (324,883) S (375,731) $ 50,848 13.5% (2,439,048) $ (2,782,465) $ 343,417 123%| | S (2,425,349)
Operating Contribution S 99,979 $ 73,993 S 25,986 35.1% 925,612 $ 577,128 S 348,484 60.4%| | $ 768,747
Allocation of Base S - S - S - 0.0% - S - S - 0.0%| |$ -
Allocation of Fleet (18,964) (18,964) s 0.0% (155,855) (155,855) s 0.0% (203,834)
Allocation of General & Administrative (166,836) (167,489) 653 0.4% (1,075,133) (1,278,560) 203,427 15.9% (1,035,536)
Operating Income(Loss) $ (85,821) $ (112,460) $ 26,639 23.7% (305,376) $ (857,287) $ 551,911 64.4%| |3 (470,623)
Non-Operations
Property Tax Revenue S 208,333 $ 208,333 S - 0.0% 1,458,333 $ 1,458,333 $ - 0.0% S 1,866,667
Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Grant Revenue - - - 0.0% 1,297,141 1,622,750 (325,609) -20.1% 786,497
Interest = = = 0.0% = = = 0.0% =
Other Non-Op Revenue - - - 0.0% 897 - 897 100.0% 824
Capital Contribution - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Other Non-Op Expenses - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Income(Loss) $ 122512 $ 95,873 $ 26,639 27.8% 2,450,995 $ 2,223,796 $ 227,199 10.2%| | $ 2,183,365
Additional Funding Sources
Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% - S - S - 0.0% S -
Transfers - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Balance S 122,512 $ 95,873 $ 26,639 27.8% 2,450,995 $ 2,223,796 $ 227,199 10.2%| [ S 2,183,365
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization S 231,567 $ 241,643 S (10,076) -4.2% 3,212,348 $ 3,144,816 $ 67,532 21%| | $ 3,022,863
Operating Ratio 76% 84% 7% -8.5% 72% 83% -10% -12.5% 76%
Operating Ratio - plus Tax & CFD 51% 57% -6% -10.1% 51% 58% -7% -12.4% 48%

5 Financial Statements

153




© 00NV A WN R

=
o

1
1
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
2
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
3
35
36
37

=

o

N

B

Recreation & Parks Operations
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Month-To-Date Year-To-Date Prior
Income Statement Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance YTD
Operations
Operating Revenue 73,591 $ 81,542 $ (7,951) -9.8% 1,037,886 $ 900,193 $ 137,693 15.3%| | $ 922,131
Internal Revenue 1,870 1,127 743 65.9% 44,140 47,477 (3,337) -7.0% 42,733
Total Operating Revenue 75461 $ 82,669 $ (7,208) -8.7% 1,082,026 $ 947,670 $ 134,356 14.2%| | $ 964,864
Salaries and Wages (87,938) $ (96,967) $ 9,029 9.3% (716,817) $ (719,634) $ 2,817 0.4%| |$ (696,401)
Employee Benefits (43,089) (51,200) 8,111 15.8% (319,529) (363,745) 44,216 12.2% (327,506)
Outside Services/Contractual (29,551) (28,719) (832) -2.9% (198,662) (185,517) (13,145) -7.1% (161,388)
Utilities (7,580) (19,555) 11,975 61.2% (72,158) (86,310) 14,152 16.4% (81,566)
Other Operating Expenses (6,537) (19,355) 12,818 66.2% (108,966) (150,080) 41,114 27.4% (127,651)
Insurance (8,858) (8,971) 113 1.3% (63,689) (62,796) (893) -1.4% (53,585)
Internal Expense (5,350) (6,522) 1,172 18.0% (42,453) (45,656) 3,203 7.0% (45,303)
Debt Service - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Depreciation (75,537) (82,032) 6,495 7.9% (512,680) (524,994) 12,314 2.3% (499,434)
Total Operating Expense (264,440) $ (313,321) $ 48,881 15.6% (2,034,954) $ (2,138,732) $ 103,778 49%| |$ (1,992,834)
Operating Contribution (188,979) $ (230,652) $ 41,673 18.1% (952,928) $ (1,191,062) $ 238,134 20.0%| | $ (1,027,970)
Allocation of Base - S - S - 0.0% - $ - s - 0.0% s -
Allocation of Fleet (17,060) (17,060) s 0.0% (140,205) (140,205) s 0.0% (77,760)
Allocation of General & Administrative (132,594) (126,306) (6,288) -5.0% (878,784) (964,178) 85,394 8.9% (829,366)
Operating Income(Loss) (338,633) $ (374,018) $ 35,385 9.5% (1,971,917) $ (2,295,445) $ 323,528 14.1%| | $ (1,935,096)
Non-Operations
Property Tax Revenue 266,667 S 266,667 S - 0.0% 1,866,667 $ 1,866,667 $ - 0.0% S 1,633,333
Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) 59,544 60,833 (1,289) -2.1% 416,810 425,831 (9,021) -2.1% 406,666
Grant Revenue 19,222 - 19,222 100.0% 1,872,971 2,052,500 (179,529) -8.7% 99,121
Interest = = = 0.0% = = = 0.0% =
Other Non-Op Revenue - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Capital Contribution - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Other Non-Op Expenses (8,274) - (8,274) -100.0% (11,847) - (11,847) -100.0% (15,703)
Income(Loss) (1,474) $ (46,518) $ 45,044 96.8% 2,172,684 $ 2,049,553 $ 123,131 6.0%| |$ 188,321
Additional Funding Sources
Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue - S - S - 0.0% - S - S - 0.0% S -
Transfers - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Balance (1,474) $ (46,518) S 45,044 96.8% 2,172,684 S 2,049,553 S 123,131 6.0%| [S 188,321
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization 74,063 $ 35514 $ 38,549 108.5% 2,685,364 $ 2,574,547 S 110,817 43%| |$ 687,755
Operating Ratio 350% 379% -29% -7.5% 188% 226% -38% -16.7% 207%
Operating Ratio - plus Tax & CFD 66% 76% -11% -13.8% 60% 66% -6% -8.4% 66%

6 Financial Statements

154




© 00N UAWN R

1
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
2
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

= o

o

Division

Department

51-5100
Recreation & Parks

Event Center Operations

Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Month-To-Date Year-To-Date Prior
Income Statement Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance YTD
Operations
Operating Revenue $ 900 $ 13,155 $ (12,255) -93.2% 333370 $ 255,884 $ 77,486 30.3% 233,276
Internal Revenue 1,870 1,127 743 65.9% 44,140 47,477 (3,337) -7.0% 42,733
Total Operating Revenue $ 2,770 $ 14,282 $ (11,512) -80.6% 377,510 $ 303,361 $ 74,149 24.4% 276,009
Salaries and Wages $ (21,151) $ (30,529) $ 9,378 30.7% (211,292) $ (225,876) $ 14,584 6.5% (213,534)
Employee Benefits (10,529) (17,024) 6,495 38.2% (100,538) (120,942) 20,404 16.9% (105,077)
Outside Services/Contractual (5,617) (4,965) (652) -13.1% (40,751) (21,055) (19,696) -93.5% (21,357)
Utilities (3,261) (11,180) 7,919 70.8% (38,781) (49,810) 11,029 22.1% (45,780)
Other Operating Expenses (4,100) (15,530) 11,430 73.6% (60,930) (75,897) 14,967 19.7% (76,768)
Insurance » - » 0.0% » - » 0.0% »
Internal Expense (2,072) (2,049) (23) -1.1% (14,506) (14,341) (165) -1.2% (12,897)
Debt Service - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Depreciation - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Total Operating Expense S (46,730) $ (81,277) $ 34,547 42.5% (466,798) S (507,921) $ 41,123 8.1% (475,413)
Operating Contribution S (43,960) $ (66,995) $ 23,035 34.4% (89,288) S (204,560) $ 115,272 56.4% (199,404)
Allocation of Base S - S - S - 0.0% - S - S - 0.0% -
Allocation of Fleet - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Allocation of General & Administrative - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Operating Income(Loss) $ (43,960) $ (66,995) $ 23,035 34.4% (89,288) $ (204,560) $ 115,272 56.4% (199,404)
Non-Operations - -
Property Tax Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% - S - S - 0.0% -
Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Grant Revenue - - » 0.0% » - » 0.0% »
Interest = = = 0.0% = = = 0.0% =
Other Non-Op Revenue - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Capital Contribution - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Other Non-Op Expenses - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% (4,410)
Income(Loss) $ (43,960) $ (66,995) $ 23,035 34.4% (89,288) $ (204,560) $ 115,272 56.4% (203,814)
Additional Funding Sources
Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% - S - S - 0.0% -
Transfers - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Balance S (43,960) S (66,995) S 23,035 34.4% (89,288) S (204,560) $ 115,272 56.4% (203,814)

7 Financial Statements

155




North Tahoe Event Center
Reservation Pipeline

July August September October November December January February March April May June Total
Revenue

Private 29,060 47,036 55,898 23,660 10,790 - 9,585 5,810 4,980 22,000 39,020 73,468 321,307
Corporate 5,620 . 1,370 13,190 9,370 6,068 570 . 2,110 . 12,000 9,140 59,438
Community 8,504 1,740 11,620 4,123 180 - - 3,183 5,610 2,480 5,628 1,340 44,408
Budgeted Total Room Rent 43,184 48,776 68,888 40,973 20,340 6,068 10,155 8,993 12,700 24,480 56,648 83,948 425,153
2026 Private 26,030 66,180 68,630 49,735 25,460 . 900 9,760 5,840 42,300 40,100 79,465 414,400
Corporate 6,170 5,690 14,140 15,570 9,540 1,710 1,870 6,500 5,900 4,290 1,340 3,370 76,090
Community 8,580 . . . 8,060 10,210 . . 1,310 . 6,800 s 34,960
Actual Total Room Rent 40,780 71,870 82,770 65,305 43,060 11,920 2,770 16,260 13,050 46,590 48,240 82,835 525,450
2027 Private 53,900 64,700 76,900 54,050 21,400 - - - - 4,500 - 6,640 282,090
Corporate 1,340 7,780 3,440 2,680 1,740 1,140 . . . . . s 18,120

Community - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Actual Total Room Rent 55,240 72,480 80,340 56,730 23,140 1,140 s s s 4,500 s 6,640 300,210
2028 Private 18,300 2,180 - - - - - - - - - - 20,480
Corporate - - - 10,720 - - - - - - - - 10,720

Community - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Actual Total Room Rent 18,300 2,180 - 10,720 - - - - - - - - 31,200

# Events

2026 Budgeted Private 4 6 8 3 2 - 2 1 1 4 5 11 47
Budgeted Corporate 3 - 2 5 3 3 1 - 2 - 4 3 26
Budgeted Community 4 1 7 4 1 - - 2 7 3 5 2 36
11 7 17 12 6 3 3 3 10 7 14 16 109
2026 Actual Private 8 12 12 7 8 - 1 3 2 11 7 14 85
Actual Corporate 5 6 12 14 7 3 3 9 5 8 2 5 79
Actual Community 1 - - - 2 2 - - 1 - 1 - 7
14 18 24 21 17 5 4 12 8 19 10 19 171
2027 Actual Private 8 9 12 8 4 - - - - 1 - 1 43
Actual Corporate 2 6 4 4 4 2 - - - - - - 22
Actual Community - - - - - 1 - - - - - - 1
10 15 16 12 8 3 - - - 1 - 1 66
2028 Actual Private 2 1 - - - - - - - - - - 3
Actual Corporate - - - 1 - - - - - - - - 1

Actual Community - - - - - - - - - - - - -
2 1 - 1 - - - - - - - - 4

8 Financial Statements

156



NTEC Number of Events

June

May

April

March

February

January

December

November

October

September

August

July

30

25

0
15

10

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

m Community

MW Corporate

M Private

157

9 Financial Statements



10

North Tahoe Event Center

FY 2025-26
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total
Revenue
Private 29,060 47,036 55,898 23,660 10,790 - 9,585 5,810 4,980 22,000 39,020 73,468 321,307
Corporate 5,620 . 1,370 13,190 9,370 6,068 570 . 2,110 . 12,000 9,140 59,438
Community 8,504 1,740 11,620 4,123 180 - - 3,183 5,610 2,480 5,628 1,340 44,408
Budgeted Total Room Rent 43,184 48,776 68,888 40,973 20,340 6,068 10,155 8,993 12,700 24,480 56,648 83,948 425,153
Program Revenue - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Ancillary Revenue o 7,500 4,000 3,000 s s 3,000 s 2,000 3,000 5,000 4,000 31,500
Budgeted Operating Revenue 43,184 56,276 72,888 43,973 20,340 6,068 13,155 8,993 14,700 27,480 61,648 87,948 456,653
Private 26,030 66,180 68,630 49,735 25,460 . 900 . . . . s 236,935
Corporate 6,170 5,690 14,140 15,570 9,540 1,710 1,870 - - - - - 54,690
Community 8,580 . . . 8,060 10,210 . . . . . s 26,850
Actual Total Room Rent 40,780 71,870 82,770 65,305 43,060 11,920 2,770 - - - - - 318,475
Program Revenue - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Ancillary Revenue 12,752 12,712 18,331 7,652 7,588 - - - - - - - 59,035
Actual Operating Revenue 53,532 84,582 101,101 72,957 50,648 11,920 2,770 s s s s s 377,510
Variance to Budget 10,348 28,306 28,213 28,984 30,308 5,852 (10,385) (8,993) (14,700) (27,480) (61,648) (87,948) (79,143)
# Events
Budgeted Private 4 6 8 3 2 - 2 1 1 4 5 11 47
Budgeted Corporate 3 - 2 5 3 3 1 - 2 - 4 3 26
Budgeted Community 4 1 7 4 1 - - 2 7 3 5 2 36
11 7 17 12 6 3 3 3 10 7 14 16 109
Actual Private 8 12 12 7 8 = 1 = = = = = 48
Actual Corporate 5 6 12 14 7 3 3 - - - - - 50
Actual Community 1 - - - 2 2 - - - - - - 5
14 18 24 21 17 5 4 - - - - - 103

10 Financial Statements 158



11

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

500,000

450,000

400,000

350,000

300,000

250,000

200,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

NTEC Revenue

Budgeted Operating Revenue

Actual Operating Revenue

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Cummulative NTEC Revenue Year-to-Date

__--..---___-——-—-- = = = Budget YTD

Actual YTD

July August September October November December January February March April May June

11 Financial Statements 1 59




12

North Tahoe Event Center Events

16
14
12
.
/
/
10 /
/ = = = Budgeted Private
/
'I = = = Budgeted Corporate
/ = = = Budgeted Community
8 ’
I’ —m— Actual Private
N ’I == Actual Corporate
/7 N\
’ \ ’ e Actual Community
6 \ /
\ /
\\ /
\ ,—’/\
N ~=22” N
N =", N
4 N/ g PN
A 4 U N=
7 \,” , NS
’ LN
’ / N
’ 4 N,
2 s o s .
-’ L7 N ’
- - 7 So ’
R ~ ’
’ o ’
4 4
- <.’ ~z
July August September October November December January February March April May June

* Program & Recreation events reporting to be forthcoming

12 Financial Statements 160



© 00N UAWN R

=
o

1
1
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
2
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
3
35
36
37

=

=]

N

B

13

Fleet & Equipment Support
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Month-To-Date Year-To-Date Prior
Income Statement Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance YTD
Operations
Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% S B S - S - 0.0% S B
Internal Revenue - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Total Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% S B S - S - 0.0% S B
Salaries and Wages $ (15,735) $ (13,680) $ (2,055) -15.0%| | $ (96,874) $ (97,687) $ 813 0.8%| |$ (98,131)
Employee Benefits (8,397) (8,301) (96) -1.2% (51,174) (58,974) 7,800 13.2% (53,421)
Outside Services/Contractual 602 (75) 677 902.7% (20,488) (11,625) (8,863) -76.2% (17,581)
Utilities (989) (1,560) 571 36.6% (5,002) (5,850) 848 14.5% (5,291)
Other Operating Expenses (15,191) (12,300) (2,891) -23.5% (85,884) (150,800) 64,916 43.0% (119,319)
Insurance (4,983) (4,530) (453) -10.0% (34,881) (31,711) (3,170) -10.0% (35,994)
Internal Expense (143) (155) 12 7.7% (1,016) (1,086) 70 6.4% (936)
Debt Service - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Depreciation (20,896) (20,739) (157) -0.8% (146,610) (145,173) (1,437) -1.0% (111,235)
Total Operating Expense S (65,732) $ (61,340) $ (4,392) -7.2%| | $ (441,929) S (502,906) $ 60,977 12.1%| | S (441,908)
Operating Contribution 3 (65,732) $ (61,340) $ (4,392) 7.2%| s (441,929) $ (502,906) $ 60,977 121%| [$ (441,908)
Allocation of Base S - S - S - 0.0%| |$ - S - S - 0.0%| |$ -
Allocation of Fleet 61,145 61,145 - 0.0% 502,515 502,515 - 0.0% 497,427
Allocation of General & Administrative - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Operating Income(Loss) $ (4,587) $ (195) $ (4,392) 2252.3%| |$ 60,586 $ (391) ¢ 60,977 15595.1%| | $ 55,519
Non-Operations
Property Tax Revenue S 8333 $ 8333 § - 0.0%| |$ 58,333 S 58,333 S - 0.0%| |$ 58,333
Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Grant Revenue - - » 0.0% » - » 0.0% »
Interest = = = 0.0% = = = 0.0% =
Other Non-Op Revenue - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Capital Contribution - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Other Non-Op Expenses - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Income(Loss) $ 3,746 $ 8,138 $ (4,392) 54.0%| |$ 118,919 $ 57,942 $ 60,977 105.2%| | $ 113,852
Additional Funding Sources
Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% S - S - S - 0.0% S -
Transfers - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Balance S 3,746 S 8,138 S (4,392) -54.0% S 118,919 S 57,942 $ 60,977 105.2% S 113,852
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization ~ $ 2,642 S 28,877 $ (4,235) aa7%| | $ 265,529 $ 203,115 $ 62,414 307%| | 225,087

13 Financial Statements

161




14

General & Administrative Support
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

© 00N UAWN R

=
o

1
1
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
2
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
3
35
36
37

=

o

N

B

Month-To-Date Year-To-Date Prior
Income Statement Actual Budget Variance % Variance Actual Budget Variance % Variance YTD
Operations
Operating Revenue $ 4040 $ 3,000 $ 1,040 34.7%| | $ 26,822 $ 21,000 $ 5,822 27.7%| | $ 21,510
Internal Revenue - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Total Operating Revenue $ 4,040 $ 3,000 $ 1,040 34.7%| |$ 26,822 $ 21,000 $ 5,822 27.7%| | s 21,510
Salaries and Wages $ (213,811) $ (185,082) $ (28,729) -155%| | $ (1,444,925) $ (1,546,915) $ 101,990 6.6%| |$ (1,395,081)
Employee Benefits (122,934) (102,134) (20,800) -20.4% (638,834) (668,420) 29,586 4.4% (564,072)
Outside Services/Contractual (66,692) (57,185) (9,507) -16.6% (436,850) (532,734) 95,884 18.0% (429,685)
Utilities (13,096) (17,384) 4,288 24.7% (74,262) (86,458) 12,196 14.1% (80,421)
Other Operating Expenses (57,253) (65,802) 8,549 13.0% (335,057) (401,944) 66,887 16.6% (257,337)
Insurance (9,679) (9,721) 42 0.4% (67,753) (68,046) 293 0.4% (59,775)
Internal Expense (3,126) (2,375) (751) -31.6% (52,976) (55,715) 2,739 4.9% (50,777)
Debt Service - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Depreciation (5,513) (4,845) (668) -13.8% (38,590) (33,915) (4,675) -13.8% (26,637)
Total Operating Expense S (492,104) $ (444,528) $ (47,576) -10.7%| | $ (3,089,247) $ (3,394,147) $ 304,900 9.0%| |$ (2,863,785)
Operating Contribution S (488,064) $ (441,528) $ (46,536) -10.5%| | $ (3,062,425) $ (3,373,147) $ 310,722 9.2%| |$ (2,842,275)
Allocation of Base S - S - S - 0.0%| |$ - S - S - 0.0%| |$ -
Allocation of Fleet - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Allocation of General & Administrative 468,481 442,716 25,765 5.8% 2,953,786 3,379,554 (425,768) -12.6% 2,868,623
Operating Income(Loss) $ (19,583) $ 1,188 $ (20,771) -1748.4%| | $ (108,639) $ 6,407 $ (115,046) -1795.6%| | $ 26,348
Non-Operations
Property Tax Revenue S 141,667 S 141,667 S - 0.0%| |$ 991,667 S 991,667 $ - 0.0%| [$ 466,667
Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Grant Revenue - - » 0.0% » - » 0.0% »
Interest 18,662 20,000 (1,338) -6.7% 164,289 140,000 24,289 17.3% 192,781
Other Non-Op Revenue 8,151 8,151 - 0.0% 62,355 56,691 5,664 10.0% 57,159
Capital Contribution - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Other Non-Op Expenses (10,748) (8,333) (2,415) -29.0% (72,778) (58,333) (14,445) -24.8% (81,139)
Income(Loss) $ 138,149 $ 162,673 $ (24,524) 115.1%| | $ 1,036,894 $ 1,136,432 $ (99,538) 8.8%| [$ 661,816
Additional Funding Sources
Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue S - S - S - 0.0% S - S - S - 0.0% S -
Transfers - - - 0.0% - - - 0.0% -
Balance S 138,149 $ 162,673 S (24,524) -15.1%| | $ 1,036,894 S 1,136,432 S (99,538) -8.8%| [S 661,816
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization ~ $ 143,662 $ 167,518 $ (23,856) 14.2%| | $ 1,075,484 $ 1,170,347 $ (94,863) 8.1%| | s 688,453

14 Financial Statements

162




15

Operating Revenues Year to Date
1,400,000

1,200,000

1,000,000 N

800,000

Operating Revenue

600,000 Budgeted Operating Revenue

400,000

200,000

Enterprise Operating Revenues Year to Date

600,000
500,000
—— Wastewater Operating Revenue
400,000 \/_ Budgeted Wastewater Operating Revenue
——— \Water Operating Revenue
300,000 )
Budgeted Water Operating Revenue
200,000 Rec/Parks Revenue
Budgeted Rec/Parks Operating Revenue
100,000 R Gen/Admin Revenue
______________________________ Budgeted Admin/Gen Operating Revenue
Q < < < < £ A x> R 2\ e
O ¢ & & & RN S S AN GRS
DS & & K & & <<é9 W
&R SRS

Expenses Year to Date
800,000

700,000

600,000 Salaries and Wages

500,000 \w’/\/’ Budgeted Salaries and Wages

Depreciation

400,000

Budgeted Depreciation
300,000

Employee Benefits
200,000 Budgeted Employee Benefits
100,000

S T S S S S S N N S N3
W e 0@’3\\)(\

15 Financial Statements 163



16

Expenses Year to Date
300,000

250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000

50,000

Expenses Year to Date
120,000

100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000

20,000

Outside Services/Contractual

Budgeted Outside Services/Contractual

Other Operating Expenses

Budgeted Other Operating Expenses

T A S SNC S
*o@/b @’b« W <~ S
&
Utilities
Budgeted Utilities
Internal Expense
----- Budgeted Internal Expense
Debt Service
__,--_\__,/’ S Budgeted Debt Service
& & D N &
& @ W ~ 5
@

16 Financial Statements

164



17
Actual January

5% 1%

7%,
9%

22%

m Salaries and Wages
37% m Depreciation
m Employee Benefits
m Outside Services/Contractual
m Other Operating Expenses
m Utilities

m Internal Expense

Budgeted January

- 1% m Budgeted Salaries and Wages

8%
33%
9%

m Budgeted Depreciation
m Budgeted Employee Benefits
m Budgeted Outside

Services/Contractual

m Budgeted Utilities

18%

m Budgeted Internal Expense

24%

17 Financial Statements

m Budgeted Other Operating Expenses

165



18

Capital Outlay
Projects In Process
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026 E
ACTUAL Prior Year To Date % E
Project 2026 Adopted  Year Open Budget Total Available Returnto 2 £ Grant
P ) P . 8 (Over) Under £ E Grant Amount .
Budget Project Adjustment Budget Actual Encumbered Budget Reserves S 6 Funding
Number Project Description Rollforward a &
Administration & Base
2151-0000 Master Plan: Corporation Yard Layout * S 90,000 $ 85,631 S - 175,631 S 113,247 S 153,193 $ (90,809)
2601-0000 Base Administration Building Improvements 25,000 - 25,000 2,508 - 22,492
2602-0000 Annex Vactor Bay Addition 450,000 - 450,000 60,300 48,667 341,033
2615-0000 Server and Network Equipment Replacement 15,000 - 15,000 - - 15,000
Total Administration Purchases S 580,000 S 85,631 S - S 665,631 S 176,055 $ 201,860 S 287,716 - S -
Fleet
2620-0000 11-Yard Vac-Con S 85,000 S 85,000 $ - S 750,357 $ (665,357)
2621-0000 Parks Utility Cart 18,000 18,000 - - 18,000
2622-0000 Portable Water Pump 120,000 120,000 - - 120,000
2623-0000 Vaccuum Excavation Trailer/Valve Exerciser 15,000 15,000 - - 15,000
2624-0000 Vehicle Analyzer and Diagnostic Equipment 15,000 15,000 12,066 - 2,934 C
2625-0000 MultiHog Attachments 18,000 18,000 - - 18,000
2630-0000 Truck: 1/2 ton 1500HD 4x4 GMC Sierra 130,000 130,000 112,659 - 17,341 C
Total Fleet Purchases S 401,000 S - S - S 401,000 $ 124,725 $ 750,357 S (474,082) - S -
Wastewater
Sewage Export System Inspection/Analysis
2445-0000 Predesign/Construction ** $ 183,594 S 183,594 S 25,636 60,422 S 97,537
2547-0000 Satellite PS Improvements Project - 3 Stations Phase 1 1,200,000 1,613 1,201,613 121,732 1,822,075 (742,194)
2548-0000 State Route 28 Adjust Structures - Wastewater 85,000 65,000 150,000 - - 150,000
2640-0000 Lower Lateral CIPP Rehabilitation 85,000 85,000 - - 85,000
2641-0000 Sewer Force Main Improvements 85,000 85,000 2,869 23,280 58,851
2643-0000 Sewer Collection System Improvements 85,000 85,000 - - 85,000
2649-0000 SCADA Infrastructure Improvements 85,000 85,000 13,768 31,026 40,206
2652-0000 Sewage Pump Station Improvements 85,000 85,000 41,243 53,767 (10,010)
2653-0000 Satellite PS Improvements Project - 2 Stations Phase 2 80,000 80,000 717 - 79,283
Total Wastewater Purchases $ 1,790,000 $ 250,207 $ - S 2,040,207 $ 205,965 $ 1,990,569 $ (156,328) - S -

18 Financial Statements

166



19
Capital Outlay

Projects In Process

For the Period Ended January 31, 2026 E
) ACTUAL Prior Year To Date % E
Project 2026 Adopted  Year F)pen ?udget Total Available (Over) Under Return to g- "é Grant Amount Gratlt
Budget Project Adjustment Budget Actual Encumbered Budget Reserves S 6 Funding
Number Project Description Rollforward a &
Water
National Ave Water Treatment Plant Equipment End-of-Life
2464-0000 Replacement ** S 300,000 $ 9,367 S - S 309,367 S 125,826 S 424,094 S (240,553)
2465-0000 Trout Fire Protection Water Infrastructure** 1,709,954 1,709,954 1,754,192 9,023 (53,261) G 1,250,000 73%
2562-0000 Smart Metering Infrastructure Improvements 800,000 299,147 1,099,147 757,908 286,856 54,383 G 500,000 45%
2660-0000 State Route 28 Adjust Structures - Water 21,000 - 21,000 - - 21,000
2661-0000 Brook and Salmon Drinking Water and Fire Protection 50,000 - 50,000 15,869 - 34,131
2662-0000 Speckled Service Replacements 375,000 (1,343) - 373,657 338,118 58,596 (23,057)
2663-0000 Water System Consolidation 200,000 - 200,000 2,750 125,640 71,610 G 75,000 38%
2664-0000 Zone 2 to Zone 1 Pressure Reducing Valve Connection 100,000 - 100,000 60,021 44,489 (4,510) G 50,000 50%
2670-0000 Water PS Mechanical and Electrical Improvements 85,000 - 85,000 80,714 997 3,289 3,289 C
2671-0000 Water Facility Improvements 85,000 - 85,000 24,917 28,344 31,740
Total Water Purchases S 2,016,000 $ 2,017,125 S B S 4,033,125 S 3,160,316 S 978,039 S (105,229) S 3,289 “§ 1,875,000
Recreation and Parks
2040-0PLC Wayfinding and Destination Signage Project * $ 129,218 $ - S 129,218 S 34,711 S 10,731 $ 83,776 S 83,776 € G S 136,141 105%
2192-0000 NTEC Emergency Generator * 40,000 226,528 - 266,528 234,737 39,322 (7,530) G 360,415 135%
2284-0000 NTEC Architectural Planning Study * 14,702 - 14,702 - - 14,702
2484-0000 NTRP Multi-Purpose Trail Connection (Design) 2,000,000 (46,527) 1,953,473 2,103,059 16,930 (166,515) G 1,601,505 82%
2486-0000 Pickleball Plaza Improvements * 250,000 (47,613) - 202,387 110,184 13,376 78,827 78827 € G 286,000 141%
2580-0000 Secline Property Improvements (Design) 210,000 15,352 - 225,352 65,913 241,993 (82,555) G 740,000 328%
2581-0000 Regional Park Parking Management 150,000 17,051 - 167,051 22,488 19,473 125,090
2591-0000 NTEC - Bathroom Remodel 350,000 6,186 - 356,186 327,280 136,263 (107,357)
2680-0000 Pinedrop Trail Reconstruction (Design) 150,000 (46,772) - 103,228 76,697 35,490 (8,959)
2682-0000 Park Facility Improvements 60,000 - 60,000 49,465 - 10,535
2690-0000 NTEC - Furnishings, Fixtures and Building Improvements 50,000 - 50,000 37,327 161 12,512
2691-0000 NTEC - Lakeview Lighting 60,000 - - 60,000 - - 60,000 60,000 C
Total Recreation and Parks Purchases S 3,320,000 S 268,125 S - S 3,588,125 S 3,061,860 S 513,738 S 12,527 & 222,603 S 3,124,061
* Project carry-over from Prior Year
** Multi-year encumberance - on 5 year CIP
# Non-grant cost reimbursement
Administration & Base S 580,000 $ 85,631 S - S 665,631 S 176,055 $ 201,860 S 287,716 S - S -
Fleet 401,000 - - 401,000 124,725 750,357 (474,082) - -
Wastewater 1,790,000 250,207 - 2,040,207 205,965 1,990,569 (156,328) - -
Water 2,016,000 2,017,125 - 4,033,125 3,160,316 978,039 (105,229) 3,289 1,875,000
Recreation and Parks 3,320,000 268,125 - 3,588,125 3,061,860 513,738 12,527 222,603 3,124,061
Total Capital Expenditures $ 8,107,000 $ 2,621,088 S - S 10,728,088 S 6,728,922 S 4,434,563 S (435,396) $ 225,891 $ 4,999,061

19 Financial Statements 167



20

Multi-Year Capital Projects S1M and Above

3,000,000

2,500,000

(usisaq)
u01323uU0) |ied] 3sodind-IHNA dYIN

24N10NJISEI4U| UOIDI0I
214 pue Jale A\ SupjulIg UOW(ES pue yoo.g

syuawanoidwi
24n1onJisedju] SUlIRIBIN MewsS

% x94N10NJ1SeIJU| JI91BAA\ UOI1D3104d 3ll4 1N0J |

T 9seyd suoneis
€ - 109[04d syuawanoidw| Sd 911||21eS

2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000

500,000

emaining
ompleted

[

168

20 Financial Statements



21

Multi-Year Capital Projects under $1M

400,000

350,000

300,000

250,000

200,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

(u81sa@) uononuisuoday |1eJ| doupauld

|apoway woodyieg - IIIN

awadeuely Supjied yled |euoiday

(uBisa@) syuswanosdw| Ayadoud sulras

« Sluawanoldw ezeld ||egapidld

« Apnis Suluueld |ein12911yasy D3IN

« 101eJ9UDD AduaBiawiz DI IN

« 109[0ud 98eusis uoneunsaqg pue SuipuyAep

«x JudWaE|day 3417-J0-pu]
juawdinb3 jueld Juswieal] Jalep) dAY [eUOREN

J91BM31SBAN - S2INIINJIS ISN[PY 87 9IN0Y 31e1S

x# U0IONIISUOD /uBisapald
sisAjeuy/uonoadsu| waisAs 1odx3 ademas

« IN0AET pieA uolelodio) (ue|d JDISEIA

emaining
ompleted

W

169

21 Financial Statements



22

FY 25-26 Capital Projects $100,000 and Above

1,000,000
900,000
800,000
700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000

200,000

100,000 -
. .

Annex Vactor Bay Base 11-Yard Vac-Con Portable Water Vaccuum Truck: 1/2 ton  Speckled Service ~Water System  Zone 2 to Zone 1
Addition Administration Pump Excavation 1500HD 4x4 GMC Replacements Consolidation Pressure Reducing
Remaining Building Trailer/Valve Sierra Valve Connection
Completed Improvements Exerciser

** Multi-year encumberance

22 Financial Statements 170



23

FY 25-26 Capital Projects under $100,000

100,000
90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000 I I
- | J—
Remaini
2 <& Q S & S <& < N SN <& S & < )
Q\'Z’L & & & & 5 o 5 @Az & & o* s* o 5 RN
& . & .S < N &
& e o K o & « 8 & & & & & 8 & &
& ] © ° & & < & A3 & & Q Q ) &
3 <5<b°° w@&\ N N & & 2 o‘;) & ((,b& <<,2,<'>\ N &
S 2 3 .
< &L \g‘,‘é <<o"° ;0005 &@‘}l\ @QC) Q@\e © e;”\z & Q'z;{' N <
o < < < (& 'S N\ N >
& «F & & N & & & > N &
$ 2 N & C ) o & 0‘) N _\0
3 < o N S &
Q v K2 S 2 2 2 @ N
2 Qe S X (@ )
< O (22 S X (2 (,“;
¢ N S N &
'S @ N g &
e P & &
N & &
5 &
S

23 Financial Statements 171



24

Capital Projects Expended by Enterprise as % of Current Year Budget for Enterprise

Budget S 665,631 S 401,000 S 2,040,207 S 4,033,125 S 3,588,125
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

Admin & Base Fleet Sewer Water Recreation & Parks

24 Financial Statements 17 2



Consolidated Balance Sheet
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Current Month Prior Month FYE 2025
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents S 13,367,895 $ 7,146,455 S 12,623,130
Investments (3,532) (3,532) 199,468
Due (To)/From Other Fund - - -
Accounts Receivable 881,160 5,141,382 1,598,083
Inventory 239,897 239,897 239,897
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 156,439 214,280 558,980
Total Current Assets $ 14,641,859 $ 12,738,481 $ 15,219,558
Restricted Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents S 60,685 $ 483,185 $ 483,185
Accounts Receivable 1,841,848 3,129,480 872,882
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses - - -
Total Restricted Assets $ 1,902,533 S 3,612,664 S 1,356,067
Non-Current Assets
Subscription Asset S 418,707 S 418,707 S 418,707
Accumulated Amortization (210,054) (210,054) (210,054)
Net Subscription Asset (New GASB 96) $ 208,654 $ 208,654 $ 208,654
Property, Plant & Equipment
Work in Process S 9,259,596 S 9,020,876 S 3,306,010
Land 7,123,368 7,123,368 7,123,368
Property Rights 15,237 15,237 15,237
Buildings and Improvements 32,736,320 32,621,275 32,163,478
Vehicles and Equipment 9,499,854 9,443,710 9,375,128
Furniture and Office Equipment 2,086,049 2,086,049 2,086,049
Water System 51,743,540 51,743,540 51,660,914
Sewer System 43,336,819 43,336,819 43,336,819
Subtotal - Property, Plant & Equipment 155,800,784 155,390,874 149,067,004
Accumulated Depreciation (78,009,326) (77,696,218) (75,836,758)
Net Property, Plant & Equipment $ 77,791,458 S 77,694,656 S 73,230,246
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 2,432,093 $ 2,432,093 $ 2,432,093
TOTAL ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOWS $ 96,976,596 $ 96,686,548 $ 92,446,617

25 Financial Statements 173



26

Consolidated Balance Sheet
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Deferred Revenue

Compensated Absences Payable
Accrued Liabilities

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets)
Deferred Grant Revenue

Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion
Net Pension Liability

Total Long Term Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets (Net of Debt)
Debt Services

Net Restricted Assets

Unrestricted

Current Year Income / (Loss)

Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS & FUND BALANCE

Current Month Prior Month FYE 2025
288,692 360,493 1,280,165
337,863 270,057 347,350

1,014,826 979,751 957,825
885,037 822,150 761,713
519,530 519,530 519,530

3,045,948 2,951,981 3,866,584

35,000 35,000 35,000
3,080,948 2,986,981 3,901,584
(142,007) (142,007) 72,408
(15,886) (15,886) (15,886)
(157,893) (157,893) 56,522
321,529 321,529 321,529
77,622,588 77,525,787 72,846,961
445,936 445,936 445,936

1,902,533 3,612,664 1,356,067

8,195,925 6,582,595 8,520,573

5,565,030 5,368,950 4,997,444

93,732,012 93,535,931 88,166,982
96,976,596 96,686,548 92,446,617

26 Financial Statements

174



27

NTPUD (consolidated)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

(In Thousands)

Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease Account Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease Deposits & Prepaid expenses
(Increase)/Decrease Deferred Outflows
(Decrease)/Increase Payables & Accrued Liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase Deferred Grant Revenue
(Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Inflows

Net Cash Provided (Used) by operating activities

Investing Activities

Change in Restricted Assets

Change in Subscription Assets

Net Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net Cash Provided (Used) by investing activities

Financing Activities

Change in Capital Loan

Change in Net Pension Liability

Net Cash Provided (Used) by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and Equivalents at end of period

27 Financial Statements

Current Month

Year-to Date

$196,079 $5,565,031
313,108 2,172,568
4,260,221 716,923
57,841 402,541
93,967 (820,636)
4,921,216 8,036,427
1,710,132 (546,466)
(409,909) (6,733,780)
1,300,222 (7,280,246)
- (214,415)

- (214,415)
6,221,438 541,766
7,142,923 12,822,598
13,364,361 $13,364,364

175



28

North Tahoe Public Utility District
As Of 1/31/2026

Total Reserve Funds of $11,595,911 of which $3,653,338 is Restricted as Minimum Reserve
NOTE: This schedule reflects the Net Assets Available as of a point in time. In particular, it assumes that all the budgeted capital
expenditures schedule for FYE 2026 will happen despite only granting consideration for EBIDA through 11/30.
As of November 30, 2025 there is approximately $4.7 million of EBIDA expected for the balance of FYE 2026.

Changes in Reserves from Prior Month

Debt Service -
Future Capital 2,250,044
Capital (440,633)

Total 1,809,411
Available for 5 Year Capital Plan, -

4,
$3,724,757 Minimum Reserve Level Policy

$3,653,338

Total Remaining G&A Capital Budgeted
$489,576
Debt Service $218,649

Total Remaining Rec & Parks Capital

Budgeted $526,265 Total Remaining Fleet Capital Budgeted

$276,275

Total Remaining Water Capital
Total Remaining Wastewater Capital Budgeted $872,809
Budgeted $1,834,242

Total Remaining Capital Budgeted is in reference to current year budget

28 Financial Statements 176



29

Actual

Actual

Actual

Trended by Month
Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Expected Budgeted
Income Statement July August September October November December January February March April May June Total Total Variance
1 Operations
2 Operating Revenue $ 1,258,289 $ 1,219,425 $ 1,154,621 $ 1,116,121 $ 937,865 S 930,286 S 954,306 S 953,109 $ 962,086 S 958,127 S 1,024,912 $ 1,160,155 | $ 12,629,302 $ 12,565,187 | $ 64,115
3 _Internal Revenue 20,625 12,605 12,233 16,021 19,757 20,419 10,926 13,072 19,068 14,942 27,328 20,042 207,038 213,550 (6,512)
4 Total Operating Revenue $ 1,278,914 $ 1,232,030 $ 1,166,854 $ 1,132,142 $ 957,622 S 950,705 S 965,232 S 966,181 S 981,154 S 973,069 S 1,052,240 $ 1,180,197 | $ 12,836,340 $ 12,778,737 | $ 57,603
5
6 Salaries and Wages $ (593,844) $ (515,869) $ (531,202) $ (542,334) $ (463,246) $ (513,217) $ (530,046) $ (487,266) $ (544,318) $ (541,289) $ (513,281) $ (537,635)| §  (6,313,547) $  (6,460,771)| $ 147,224
7 Employee Benefits (240,608) (230,129) (258,228) (233,387) (225,097) (227,030) (278,983) (266,141) (276,932) (276,932) (271,219) (279,154) (3,063,840) (3,260,331) 196,491
8 Outside Services/Contractual (162,395) (116,424) (152,164) (132,960) (143,106) (83,627) (125,240) (159,397) (137,863) (134,487) (142,402) (34,527) (1,524,592) (1,622,828) 98,236
9 Utilities (94,543) (70,859) (70,356) (67,069) (76,426) (58,623) (70,958) (72,522) (76,152) (73,542) (75,962) (81,112) (888,124) (957,646) 69,522
10 Other Operating Expenses (153,182) (106,219) (126,851) (143,360) (85,772) (134,966) (104,416) (81,927) (136,091) (121,564) (136,954) (107,228) (1,438,530) (1,754,083) 315,553
11 Insurance (41,236) (41,236) (42,919) (41,236) (41,236) (41,236) (41,236) (41,164) (41,164) (50,297) (50,297) (50,297) (523,554) (521,363) (2,191)
12 Internal Expense (20,625) (12,605) (12,233) (16,021) (19,757) (20,419) (10,926) (13,072) (19,068) (14,942) (27,328) (20,042) (207,038) (213,550) 6,512
13 Debt Service (1,426) (1,426) (720) (720) (720) (720) (720) - - - - (20,000 (26,452) (25,744) (708)
14 _Depreciation (309,083) (309,083) (309,083) (311,281) (309,690) (311,241) (313,108) (360,964) (360,964) (360,964) (360,964) (500,648) (4,117,073) (4,309,313) 192,240
15 Total Operating Expense S (1,616942) $  (1,403,850) $  (1,503,756) S  (1,488,368) $  (1,365,050) $  (1,391,079) $  (1,475633) $  (1,482,453) $  (1,592,552) $  (1,574,017) $  (1,578,407) $  (1,630,643)| S (18,102,750) $ (19,125,629)] $ 1,022,879
16
17 Operating Income(Loss) S (338,028) $ (171,820) $ (336,902) $ (356,226) $ (407,428) $ (440,374) $ (510,401) $ (516,272) $ (611,398) $ (600,948) $ (526,167) $ (450,446)[ §  (5,266,410) $  (6,346,892)| § 1,080,482
18
19 Non-Operations
20 Property Tax Revenue $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 $ 625,000 | $ 7,500,000 $ 7,500,000 | $ -
21 Community Facilities District (CFD 94-1) 59,544 59,544 59,544 59,544 59,544 59,544 59,544 60,833 60,833 60,833 60,833 60,837 720,977 730,000 (9,023)
22 Grant Revenue - 918,197 1,190,676 552,853 294,359 194,805 19,222 - - - - - 3,170,112 3,675,250 (505,138)
23 Interest 34,470 28,633 25,228 20,713 18,106 18,478 18,662 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 224,290 200,000 24,290
24 Other Non-Op Revenue 7,900 8,042 10,305 8,326 8,500 52,082 8,151 8,151 8,151 8,151 8,151 8,151 144,061 97,448 46,613
25 Capital Contribution - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
26 _Other Non-Op Expenses (9,874) (20,700) (11,991) (11,284) (14,082) (11,284) (24,099) (8,333) (8,333) (8,333) (8,333) (298,333) (434,979) (390,000) (44,979)
27 _Income(Loss $ 379,012 $ 1,446,896 S 1,561,860 S 898,926 S 583,999 S 498,251 S 196,079 S 189,379 S 84,253 $ 94,703 $ 169,484 S (44,791)| $ 6,058,051 $ 5,465,806 | $ 592,245
28
29 Additional Funding Sources
30 Allocation of Non-Operating Revenue - - - - - - - - - - - - S - S - S -
31 _Transfers - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
32 _Balance $ 379,012 S 1,446,896 S 1,561,860 S 898,926 S 583,999 S 498,251 S 196,079 S 189,379 S 84,253 $ 94,703 $ 169,484 S (44,791)| $ 6,058,051 $ 5,465,806 | $ 592,245
Operating Income $ (338,028) $ (171,820) $ (336,902) $ (356,226) $ (407,428) $ (440,374) S (510,401) $ (516,272) $ (611,398) $ (600,948) $ (526,167) $ (450,446)| $ (5,266,410) $ (6,346,892)| $ 1,080,482
Net Income(Loss) s 379,012 $ 1,446,896 S 1,561,860 $ 898,926 S 583,999 $ 498,251 S 196,079 $ 189,379 S 84,253 $ 94,703 $ 169,484 S (44,791) $ 6,058,051 $ 5,465,806 | $ 592,245
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation & Amortization S 689,521 $ 1,757,405 $ 1,871,663 $ 1,210,927 $ 894,409 $ 810,212 $ 509,907 $ 550,343 $ 445217 $ 455,667 S 530,448 $ 475,857 | $ 10,201,576 $ 9,800,863 | $ 400,713
Operating Ratio 126% 114% 129% 131% 143% 146% 153% 153% 162% 162% 150% 138% 141% 150% -1776%
Operating Ratio - plus Tax & CFD 82% 73% 81% 82% 83% 85% 89% 90% 96% 95% 91% 87% 86% 91% -2106%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 265.79 1,014.65 2,169.25 1,248.51 811.11 692.02 272.33 (2.24) 229.02 212.31 836.50

29 Financial Statements

177




Consolidated Balance Sheet
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments
Due (To)/From Other Fund
Accounts Receivable
Inventory
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Restricted Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Deposits and Prepaid Expenses
Total Restricted Assets

Non-Current Assets

Subscription Asset

Accumulated Amortization

Net Subscription Asset (New GASB 96)

Property, Plant & Equipment
Work in Process

Land

Property Rights

Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles and Equipment
Furniture and Office Equipment
Water System

Sewer System

Subtotal - Property, Plant & Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation
Net Property, Plant & Equipment

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Division Balance Sheet
For the Period Ended January 31, 2026

General &
Recreation & Administrative
Water Parks Fleet & i and Base Total

$ -8 222,968 $ 2,497 -8 13,142,431 $ 13,367,895
- - - - (3,532) (3,532)

2,110,851 868,151 29,865 388,436 (3,397,304) -
79,288 145,057 (4,338) - 661,153 881,160
239,897 - - - - 239,897
- - 47,603 - 108,836 156,439
$ 2,430,036 $ 1,236,176 $ 75,626 $ 388,436 $ 10,511,584 $ 14,641,859
$ -8 - s (422,500) $ - s 483,185 $ 60,685
- - 1,834,248 - 7,600 1,841,848
$ -8 -8 1,411,748 $ -8 490,785 $ 1,902,533
$ -8 -8 -8 - s 418,707 $ 418,707
- - - - (210,054) (210,054)
$ -8 -8 -8 -8 208,654 $ 208,654
$ 589,678 $ 4522313 $ 3,852,049 $ -8 295556 $ 9,259,596
86,310 772,058 6,265,000 - - 7,123,368
7,237 8,000 - - - 15,237
8,281,806 - 23,930,758 - 523,756 32,736,320
5,806,355 285,750 817,577 2,590,171 - 9,499,854
925,994 35,919 890,500 - 233,637 2,086,049
- 51,743,540 - - - 51,743,540
43,336,819 - - - - 43,336,819
59,034,199 57,367,581 35,755,884 2,590,171 1,052,949 155,800,784
(36,787,092) (24,717,299) (15,201,046) (1,136,363) (167,525)  (78,009,326)
$ 22,247,107 $ 32,650,281 $ 20,554,838 $ 1,453,808 $ 885,424 $ 77,791,458
$ 238,495 $ 496,652 $ 407,214 $ 31,263 $ 1,258,469 $ 2,432,093
$ 24915638 $ 34,383,110 $  22,449.426 $ 1,873507 $ 13,354,915 $ 96,976,596

30 Financial Statements

178



Consolidated Balance Sheet Division Balance Sheet

For the Period Ended January 31, 2026 For the Period Ended January 31, 2026
General &
Recreation & Administrative
Water Parks Fleet & i and Base Total
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 73,202 $ 129,011 $ 201,929 $ 6,050 $ (121,501) $ 288,692
Deferred Revenue - - 337,863 - - 337,863
Compensated Absences Payable - - - 1,014,826 1,014,826

Accrued Liabilities - 5,024 3,500 - 876,513 885,037

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt - 218,649 - - 86,466 305,115
73,202 352,684 543,292 6,050 1,856,304 2,831,533
Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets)
Deferred Grant Revenue $ - $ - $ 35000 $ - $ - $ 35,000
Accounts Payable - - - - - -
Total Current Liabilities $ 73,202 $ 352,684 $ 578,292 $ 6,050 $ 1,856,304 $ 2,866,533
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion S - - S - S - S 72,408 S 72,408
Net Pension Liability (154,445) 1,169 (31,141) (22,127) 190,658 (15,886)
Total Long Term Liabilities $ (154,445) $ 1,169 $ (31,141) $ (22,127) $ 263,066 $ 56,522
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 76,216 $ 72,438 $ 64,383 $ 12,136 $ 96,356 $ 321,529
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets (Net of Debt) $ 22,247,107 S 32,431,632 $ 20,554,838 $ 1,453,808 $ 935,203 $ 77,622,588
Debt Services - 445,936 - - - 445,936
Net Restricted Assets - - 1,411,748 - 490,785 1,902,533
Unrestricted 2,888,020 (1,371,745) (2,301,379) 304,721 8,676,307 8,195,925
Current Year Income / (Loss) (214,462) 2,450,995 2,172,685 118,919 1,036,893 5,565,030
Balance $ 24,920,665 $ 33,956,819 $ 21,837,892 $ 1,877,448 $ 11,139,188 $ 93,732,012
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS & FUND BALANCE $ 24,915,638 $ 34,383,110 $ 22,449,426 $ 1,873,507 $ 13,354,915 $ 96,976,596

31 Financial Statements 179



32 Grant Revenue
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Account Number Description Over(Under)
Total Budget
Budget July August September October November December January YTD Total for Project
31-5030-3435 Water 1,622,750 - - 1,186,000 - - 436,750 - 1,622,750
43-4300-3435 Recreation 330,000 = = 227,500 = = 102,500 = 330,000
43-4310-3435 NTRP 1,722,500 - - 986,250 - - 736,250 - 1,722,500
43-4600-3435 TVRA = = = = = = = = -
51-5100-3435 NTEC = = = = = = = = =
2192 - FEMA FEMA Emergency Generator NTEC 250,000 - - 17,426 - - 127,701 - 145,127 (104,656)
2192 - GMGT FEMA Emergency Generator NTEC - - 144 - - 73 - 217 46,712
2486 - PTOT Community Arts Gathering Space/Pickleball Plaza 250,000 - 46,495 - - - - - 46,495 (203,505)
2580 - TBID Secline Beach Enhancement TBID Grant - 13,676 (6,118) 1,740 - 2,070 19,222 30,590 30,590
2484 - PLAC NTRP Multi Purpose Trail Ext - Placer TOT DESIGN - - - - - - - - -
2484 - PLA2 NTRP Multi Purpose Trail Ext - Placer TOT CONSTRUCTION 472,500 - - - 472,500 - - - 472,500 -
2484 - HCFG NTRP Multi Purpose Trail Ext - State of CA HCFG 1,000,000 - 198,765 775,127 36,465 - - - 1,010,357 10,357
2465 - EPAG 2025 Waterline Replacement - EPA Grant 1,250,000 - 544,864 351,600 - 184,576 - - 1,081,040 (168,960)
2562 - WEEG SmartMetering Infrastructure Improvements 372,750 - 114,397 44,850 30,664 26,190 - - 216,101 (156,649)
Over(Under) Budget (80,000) - 918,197  (1,216,721) 541,369 210,766  (1,145,656) 19,222 (342,823)
Unbudgeted -
2040 - OPLC Wayfinding and Destination Signage - - - - - 83,593 - - 83,593 83,593
2663 - PCWA Water System Consolidation - - - - - - - - - -
2664 - PCWA Zone 1 and Zone 2 PRV - - - - - - - - - -
2580 - CTCG Secline Beach - California Conservancy - - - 7,648 12,161 - - - 19,809 19,809
1623 - GRNT Wayfinding Signage - Correcting Entry Closed - - - - (677) - - - (677) (677)
2680 - PLAC Pam E Trail Reconstruction and Extension - - - - - - 64,961 - 64,961 64,961
Over(Under) Budget - - - 7,648 11,484 83,593 64,961 - 167,685
Total Budgeted Grant Revenue 3,675,250 - - 2,399,750 - - 1,275,500 - 3,675,250
Total Grant Revenue Recognized - 918,197 1,190,676 552,853 294,359 194,805 19,222 3,170,112
Over(Under) Planned Grant Revenue - 918,197 (1,209,074) 552,853 294,359 (1,080,695) 19,222 (505,138)

32 Financial Statements

180



33

2680-PLAC
2279-0000

Completed
1623-0000/GRNT
2484-PLAC
Closed/on FA
Pass Through

Grantor
Placer County
FEMA

EPA
State Of CA HCF

Placer County

Placer County

Tahoe Fund

Bureau of Rec

NLTRA, North Tahoe Comi
California Conservancy
Placer Co Water Agency
Placer Co Water Agency
Placer County

STPUD Pass Thru

NLTRA
Placer County

Name of Grant
Wayfinding and Destination Signage
NTEC Emergency Generator Mitigation
NTEC Emergency Generator Mitigation
2025 Waterline Improvements (Trout)
North Tahoe Trail Access Improvement
NTRP Multi Purpose Trail Connections
Pickleball Plaza/Community Arts Space
Pickleball Plaza/Community Arts Space

WaterSmart Grants Bureau of Reclaimation

Secline Beach Enhancement Project
Secline Beach Enhancement Project
NTPUD, AB and FW System Consolidation
Tahoe Main System Zone 1/2 PRV

NTRP Multi Purpose Trail Connections

Prop 1

Wayfinding Signage
NTRP Multi Purpose Trail Connections

Match
B 12,000.00
$ 115,138.25
none

$ 312,500.00
B 1,029,005.00
$ 1,610,835.00
B 154,817.00
$ -

$ 1,140,081.00

60000 - over 3 years $20k ea

s .
s .

$ 125,000.00
$ 25,000.00

Tems
Placer Co TOT Funds

Hazard Mitigation Program
Hazard Mitigation Program

=

Habitat Conservation Fund
Placer Co TOT Funds/NTCOAB
Placer Co TOT Funds/NTCOAB
Tahoe Fund

Dept of Interior/8 of Rec
TBID Funds/3 years

CTC Funds

PCWA FAP Award

PCWA FAP Award

Placer Co TOT Funds/NTCOAB

Placer Co TOT Funds/NTCOAB.

Grant Schedule

7/1/2025 6/30/2025 FY26 Y26 Y26 Y26 6/30/2026 6/30/2026
Receivable / New Grant Grant Revenue Award Receipts Receivable /  Project Closure - Award  Remaining Award
Grant Award Remaining Award Amount (Liability) Award (Recognition) (Payments) Corrections (Liability) Release Amount
$ 136,141.00 $ 128,03497 $ - $ 83,592.95 $ 8359295 $ (44,44202) -
s 34541475 $ 145,12697 $ 147,423.43 $ 14512697 150,141.51 $ 142,408.89 s -
$ 1500000 $ 13,031.00 $ $ 217.00 $ 627.00 $ 7300 $ (12,814.00) $ -
s 1,250,00000 $ 1,081,04000 $ 168,960.00 $ 1,081,04000 $ 1,250,000.00 $ - s -
$ 1,029,00500 $ 101035713 $ 18,647.87 $ 1,010,357.14 S 1,029,005.01 $ (0.01)
s 472,50000 $ 472,50000 $ - $ 472,500.00 $ 472,500.00 s -
$ 25000000 $ 4649482 $ 20350518 $ 4649482 $ 249,990.00 $ 10.00 $ 000
$ 3500000 § 3500000 § - $ - s 35,000.00
$ 50000000 $ 25673365 $ 24326635 $ 21610010 $ 459,367.45 $ - $ 40,632.55
s 240,00000 $ 168,031.60 $ 37,123.00 $ 3059000 $ 44,681.00 $ 23,032.00 S 137,441.60
$ 9000000 $ 90,0000 $ - $ 19,808.75 $ 19,808.75 $ 7019125
s 75,00000 S 75,00000 $ - $ - $ 75,000.00
$ 5000000 $ 50,00000 $ - $ - $ 50,000.00
s 49136150 $ 49136150 $ - $ 64,960.63 $ 64,960.63 $ 426,400.87
$ -8 - $ - s -

s 624237 $ 624237 $ (1,143.63) $ (1,143.63) s 624237
s 135,00000 804242 $ 47,01656 $ (676.99) $ 46,339.57 $ -8 (8719.41) S -
s 108,63850 $ -8 $ 0.00 s -

5229303.12 4,076,996.43 86528176 317011237 2,201,13653 - 1,834,247.60 840,908.63

33 Financial Statements

181



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: G-3b
FROM: Finance Department
SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report — as of January 31, 2026

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The CFO has reviewed the District’s investment portfolio, and its value is reflected in the
attached Treasurer’s Report.

The District’s investments remain in compliance with the Board-approved Investment
Policy, with an ongoing emphasis on safety.

As of January 31, 2026, the total bank value of cash and investments was $13,964,437.
Of this amount, $1,394,500 was restricted. Cash and investments increased by
$6,307,723 during January 2026.

The portfolio meets the guidelines of the Investment policy.

ATTACHMENTS: Treasurer’s Report as of January 31, 2026.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:
Patrick Grimes Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Chief Financial Officer General Manager/CEO

182



AGENDA ITEM: Treasurer’s Report as of

January 31, 2026

3/10/2026

PRESENTED BY: Patrick Grimes, CFO

Cash and Investments

Statement Date

Institution/Account Number

Market Value

Description

Wells Fargo

01/31/26 XXXXXX7997 2,624,267 General Checking
Xxxxxx8011 - Payroll
XXxxxx8003 - Utility Billing Deposit Account
XXXXxx8029 - Event Center Deposit Account
2,624,267 Total Wells Fargo
Local Agency Investment Fund
01/31/26 Xx-xx-003 43,050 General Investment Acctount
California CLASS
01/31/26 XX-xx-0179 9,419,252 General Investment Acctount
UBS Financial Services Inc.
01/31/26 XXXXx29 70 5,893 Cash & Cash Alternatives Balance
" 453,000 Money Market Instruments
0 Certificates of Deposit
24,475 Mutual Funds
U.S. Government Securities
0 Accrued Interest
483,368 Total UBS Financial Services Inc.
Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments: $12,569,937
Restricted
Statement Date Institution/Account Number Market Value Description
Wells Fargo
01/31/26 XXXXXx8037 $37,263 FSA
01/31/26 XXXXXX8045 586,790 HRA
01/31/26 XXXXX1157 222,968 NTBC - BofA Install.Payment Fund
12/31/25 CalPERS 115 Trust 505,607 CalPERS Prefunding of Pension Expense
12/31/25 Tahoe Truckee Community Foundation 41,872 Friends of the Park
Total Restricted Cash and Investments: $1,394,500

Total Cash and Investments:

Total Cash and Investments:

$13,964,437

183




DATE:

FROM

NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

March 10, 2026 ITEM: G-4

: Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Manager

SUBJECT: Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Department Report

Parks

Staff spent over 30 hours in the Piston Bully snow cat the week of February 16%,
opening the trails for grooming and clearing the fields from snow, only to have 80% of
it melt off in the following week’s rainstorm.

The pictures below are taken from the same place, just 2 weeks apart.

Youth sport teams are okay with the rain, as it enables spring team play. Game play
for lacrosse began February 27 on Field 4.

Park staff is upcycling discarded sleds from the park and converting them into large,
oversized flowers to place on this year’s SnowFest float. This year’'s theme is the
Community Garden.

184



Recreation

Recreation Supervisor Ben Visnyei has had his Saturdays busy with programming and
special events, proving his place as the driving force behind North Tahoe Recreation.

o0 Beginner pickleball clinic

o0 Cocoa at the Cabin — Valentine's Day edition. This event was the busiest Cocoa
yet! Ben handed out roses, cocoa and marshmallows to the 100 attendees.

Staff is preparing the Spring/Summer Activity guide and meeting with new contractors
to expand offerings. Additionally, staff is working directly with Tahoe Expedition
Academy and the greater sailing community to ensure smooth summer operations that
will bolster the intermediate and advanced programs in years to come.

Weekend one of SnowFest was full of North Tahoe Recreation programs. Nordic
Nights barely squeaked by with 60° temperatures during the day. The Frozen Pickle
Tournament, in partnership with BGCNLT, happened on Saturday and Sunday during
the last week of February.

185



North Tahoe Event Center

Manager Christina McDougal has been working through the bathroom remodel by
giving tours on Saturdays. She has averaged 7 tours a week, mostly given on
Saturdays and several have resulted in bookings.

Also, during the bathroom remodel, the Event Center had 50% less staff. Two new
hires, the Event Center Coordinator and the Parks & Facility Maintenance Worker
were hired in February and begin early March.

Administration

At the February Recreation Commission/Committee meeting, the introduction of a
scholarship program for the Recreation & Park department was discussed. Due to the
complexity of the subject and the late hour of the evening, staff and commissioners
decided to schedule a special meeting/workshop to review and help formulate the finer
points of the policy proposal. After the workshop, the policy concept will be presented
to the Board for discussion, likely in April or May.

An 18-month extension to the contract with Placer County regarding the lease
agreement for the park shop (old animal shelter) was approved by Board of
Supervisors in February. County and PUD staff will use this time to explore a more
permanent land agreement.

Additionally, Placer County has granted NTPUD management authority to permit North
Tahoe Fire in another fuel reduction project within North Tahoe Regional Park and on
the Placer County owned parcel. This fuel reduction is planned for late spring and will
target the southern, steeper aspect portions of the park near the animal shelter/park
shop.

Staff is working hard on the NTPUD website remodel. The new website has content
easier to access, great pictures promoting rentable facilities, and a comprehensive
overview of all the NTPUD Recreation, Parks, and Facilities team does.

The contract with California State Parks (CSP) is nearing completion. It has been
years since NTPUD and CSP have had an official contract, instead we have been
operating under a special use permit. This new contract expands NTPUD'’s footprint
to the patio and walkway to the east of the Center.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: quw& /’ML Approved By:

Amanda Conk Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Recreation, Parks, and Facilities Manager General Manager/CEO

186



DATE:
FROM:
SUBJECT:

DISCUSSION:

NORTH TAHOE

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

March 10, 2026

ITEM: G-5

Planning and Engineering Department

Planning and Engineering Department Status Report

Capital Improvement Projects, Internal Operations & Planning, and
Outside Agency/Private Development

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

The Engineering Division is managing the following CIP projects.

Construction Phase Projects

NTEC Emergency Generator (Project #2192). A 2022-2023 Capital Improvement
Project to add an emergency generator at the North Tahoe Event Center. The project is

grant-funded in part by FEMA and Placer County.

Status: The Board of Directors awarded a construction contract to GLA-Morris at the July
9, 2024 meeting. The Contractor has completed the installation of the emergency
generator. Staff will bring the Notice of Completion to the Board of Directors in March.

GLA Morris Construction, Inc. — Construction Contract Status:

Original Current Total Current Balance to

Contract Change Contract Total Payments for Completion

Amount Orders Amount Work Completed | (including retention)
$335,606.93 | $17,443.41 $353,050.34 $335,397.89 $17,652.45
Estimated Construction Status as of 2/28: 100% complete

Smart Metering Infrastructure Improvements (Project #2562): A multi-year Capital
Improvement project to upgrade our existing water meters with new, ultrasonic
flowmeters utilizing cellular endpoints for data communication. The District entered into
a Grant Agreement for the $500,000 WaterSMART Grant from the Bureau of
Reclamation on December 4, 2024.

Status: The Board awarded the construction contract to Phoenix Water Solutions. LLC at
their July 8, 2025 Board Meeting to install 2,583 smart meters. Meter replacement has
concluded for the winter and will restart in Spring 2026. The contractor has installed 1,381
smart meters. NTPUD staff is performing other meter change-outs.

187




Phoenix Water Solutions, LLC — Construction Contract Status:

Original Current Total Current Balance to

Contract Change Contract Total Payments for Completion

Amount Orders Amount Work Completed | (including retention)
$612,935.36 $0 $612,935.36 $378,642.55 $234,292.81
Estimated Construction Status as of 2/28: 53% complete

Speckled Avenue Water Service Line Replacement & Zone 2 to Zone 1 PRV
Connection Project (Project #2662 & 2664): A FY25/26 Capital Improvement Project
to replace the water services for properties on the north side of Speckled Avenue that
are still connected to the old 2-inch water main. The new services will be connected to
the existing 10-inch water main on the south side of Speckled Avenue and then
abandon the 2-inch water main. The contract also installs a Pressure Reducing Valve
(PRV) between pressure zone 2 and pressure zone 1 in Tahoe Main Water System.

Status: The Board awarded the construction contract to Green Bear Construction, Inc. at
their August 12, 2025 Board Meeting. The contractor completed the Speckled Avenue
service line replacements this Fall and will be back in Spring 2026 to construct the Zone

2 to Zone 1 PRV.

Green Bear Construction, Inc. — Construction Contract Status:

Original Current Total Current Balance to

Contract Change Contract Total Payments for Completion

Amount Orders Amount Work Completed | (including retention)

$411,600 $0 $411,600 $336,486.26 $75,113.74
Estimated Construction Status as of 2/28: 85% complete

Model 16 Satellite Sewage Pump Stations (Projects #2547): Capital Improvement
Project to rehabilitate three Smith and Loveless Model 16 satellite sewer pump stations,
C-2, D-4 and D-6. There are eight Model 16 satellite sewer pump stations.

Status: The Board of Directors awarded a construction contract to K.G. Walters
Construction at the October 14, 2025, Board Meeting. The contractor is preparing
submittals and procuring materials in advance of starting construction in June 2026.

K.G. Walters Construction Co., Inc. — Construction Contract Status:

Original Current Total Current Balance to
Contract Change Contract Total Payments for Completion
Amount Orders Amount Work Completed | (including retention)
$1,597,000 $0 $1,597,000 $19,609.43 $1,577,390.57
Estimated Construction Status as of 2/28: 0% complete

188




NTEC — Bathroom Remodel (Project #2591): A 2024-2025 Capital Improvement Project
to renovate the south men's and women's bathrooms at the North Tahoe Event Center.

The project also includes accessible improvements to the hallway ramp.

Status: The Board awarded the construction contract to GSP Construction, Inc. at the
October 14, 2025, Board Meeting. The Contractor has completed the renovation of the
NTEC South Restrooms. Staff will bring the Notice of Completion to the Board of Directors

in March.

GSP Construction, Inc. — Construction Contract Status:

Original Current Total Current Balance to

Contract Change Contract Total Payments for Completion

Amount Orders Amount Work Completed | (including retention)

$346,000 $31,286.20 $377,286.20 $358,421.89 $18,864.31
Estimated Construction Status as of 2/28: 100% complete

189




Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act

The District elected to participate in the Act to utilize alternative bidding procedures for
public works projects. This section reports on contracts awarded for projects between
$15,000 and $75,000 that are now issued under the General Manager's authority.

ACTIVE PROJECTS

Manhole Rehabilitation Express Sewer & $23,280 January 15, 2026
Drain, Inc.

A 2025-26 capital improvement to coat the interior of the transition manhole (#SF-1-
038A) upstream of Carnelian Main Pump Station. Raw sanitary sewage can create
corrosive gases that degrade concrete over time. Visual inspection confirmed the
presence of exposed aggregate and the need to coat the interior to extend the life of
this asset.

Carnelian Well Inspection | UES Professional $28,318 December 3, 2025
and Rehabilitation Solutions, Inc.

A 2025-26 capital improvement to complete a condition assessment of the existing
Carnelian Well. The assessment is a proactive capital project designed to evaluate our
primary water source for the Carnelian Water System and inform future improvements.
This routine inspection follows industry best practices to mitigate risk and ensure
uninterrupted service for the Carnelian Water System.

COMPLETED PROJECTS

N-3 Generac Generator West Coast $18,800 August 28, 2025
Energy Systems
LLC

A Capital Improvement Project to replace the generator at Satellite Pump Station N-3.
The existing backup generator at N-3 is no longer working and needs to be replaced.
A mobile generator has been staged on-site to provide backup power in case of
emergency. The generator has been installed on-site and is scheduled to be
commissioned in mid-February.

NAWTP Lake Intake J.R. Krauss $24,999 September 26,
Pump #1 Replacement 2025

A 2025-26 capital improvement to replace lake pump #1 assembly at the National
Avenue Water Treatment Plant. NTPUD’s. This is the second of three lake pump
replacements as the pumps are reaching the end of their useful service life. This project
Is complete.

NTEC Building Sign Yesco, Inc $25,866 May 13, 2025

A Capital Improvement Project to add building signage at the North Tahoe Event
Center. The project is grant-funded in part by Placer County. PR Design and
Engineering has completed plans to install backlit signs on the north and east side of
the NTEC. The proposed sign design was approved at the Tahoe Basin Design Review
Committee on April 22, 2025. This project is complete.

190



Spring 2025 Lower Express Sewer & $48,000 March 20, 2025
Lateral Lining Drain, Inc.

A 2024-25 capital improvement (Lower Lateral CIPP Rehabilitation, Project #2540) to
rehabilitate sanitary sewer laterals from customers' property line cleanout to the
sewer main. This project includes lining eight (8) sewer services on Grey Lane and
Toyon Road to extend their useful life. The lining process is a trenchless technology
that is significantly less expensive than excavating the sewer laterals to complete the
required repairs. This project is complete.

Design / Bid Preparation Phase Projects

Sewage Export System Inspection/Analysis Predesign (Project #2445): A FY24/25
Capital Improvement project to analyze NTPUD’s Sewage Export System (SES). The
SES consists of a series of four main pumping stations, forcemains, and gravity sewers
that carry NTPUD flows to the JSF (Joint Sewage Facility). This project will analyze the
SES and provide recommendations to extend the life of this critical asset.

Status: The Board of Directors awarded a design contract to HDR at the August 13, 2024,
meeting. NTPUD has received the NTPUD Sewer Export System Condition Assessment
and Operation Review and Planning Technical Memorandum, which includes the analysis
of companies that complete pipeline evaluations to select the best applicable
technologies and an emergency storage analysis. Work continues on the export system
emergency wastewater storage analysis. The consultant has prepared a wastewater
sampling plan to investigate the compounds responsible for creating odors.

Pam Emmerich Memorial Pinedrop Trail Reconstruction and Extension (Project
#2680): A multi-year Capital Improvement project for the planning and design of
reconstruction of the existing Pam Emmerich Memorial Pinedrop Trail and the trail
extension to the existing Snow Creek Trail system at National Avenue.

Status: NTPUD has received a multi-year grant from North Tahoe Community Alliance
(NTCA) TBID Funds Grant agreement in the amount of $600,000 for design of the Pam
Emmerich Memorial Pinedrop Trail Reconstruction and Extension Project. The Board of
Directors awarded a design contract to Lumos and Associates at the February 11, 2025
to complete the preliminary engineering design of the Pinedrop Trail Reconstruction and
Extension Project. Lumos has completed background data collection, prepared project
base maps, and completed environmental surveys. Lumos is currently finalizing the
Preliminary Design Reports, which are the last deliverables for year 2 of the grant.

Staff has requested final design proposals for the (1) Pinedrop Trail Reconstruction and
the (2) Trail Connector to Snow Creek. These proposals will be presented to the Board
of Directors in April for authorization. The final design proposals are the last phase of
work that will be funded from the multi-year NTCA grant.

National Ave Water Treatment Plant Equipment End-of-Life Replacement (Project
#2464): A FY24/25 Capital Improvement project to analyze the process train and

191



equipment at the National Ave Water Treatment Plant (NAWTP). The NAWTP, in its
current configuration, was constructed and placed into service in November 2002. This
project will analyze the NAWTP and provide recommendations to modernize and extend
the life of this critical asset.

Status: The Board of Directors awarded the final design contract to Jacobs at the
September 9, 2025 meeting. Design is underway; a 30% Design and Process Control
Workshop were held and 30% Design documents are anticipated in April 2026. The total
duration of the design is anticipated to last 18 months, leading to construction starting in
Fall 2027.

Regional Park Parking Management (Project #2581): A 2024-2025 Capital
Improvement Project to retain a consultant to complete an operational needs assessment,
ordinance review and preparation, and parking technology road map to manage parking
with the North Tahoe Regional Park.

Status: NTPUD retained Dixon Resources Unlimited to complete the Regional Park
Parking Management Project. Dixon Resources Unlimited presented the Technology
Road Map and a suggested implementation plan to the Recreation and Park Commission
in August and the Board of Directors in October. The Board directed staff to implement
Tier 2 technology, which includes: replacing the iron-ranger payment boxes with pay
stations, allowing mobile payment options, and a parking management system to replace
the current manual parking passes and validate concessionaire patrons. NTPUD has
ordered four (4) payment stations and the necessary software to modernize the parking
management. Once received, the equipment will be installed, which is anticipated to occur
in late spring.

Secline Property Improvement Project (Project #2580): A 3-year Capital
Improvement Project to develop a vision and preliminary design of public recreation
access, environmental improvements, and facility enhancements for the Secline Beach
public parcels in Kings Beach, CA.

Status: NTPUD has received a grant from North Tahoe Community Alliance (NTCA)
TBID Funds Grant agreement for $240,000 for the Secline Beach Enhancement —
Planning and Design Project. The Board of Directors awarded a preliminary design
contract to Design Workshop at the May 14, 2024 meeting. Design Workshop has
completed a significant public outreach and survey campaign and Hauge-Brueck
continues to work on the environmental documentation required for the project. Based
on the community input, Design Workshop is developing conceptual improvement
alternatives to be reviewed with project stakeholders and the public. The concept will be
finalized this summer, and a final design contract will go to the Board of Directors for
authorization in the fall/winter of 2026. In accordance with Lahontan’s supplemental
environmental project conditions, construction will be completed during the 2028
construction season.

Master Plan: Corporation Yard Layout (Project #2151): A Capital Improvement

Project to develop a Corporation Yard Master Plan. The existing corporation yard, built
over several decades, was not planned for the current needs of staff, operations,

192



services, and the regulatory environment. As such, operational inefficiencies and
potential safety hazards exist within the corporation yard. The goal of the Corporation
Yard Master Plan (CYMP) is to strategically plan future facility improvements to be
completed over several years.

Status: The Board of Directors awarded Phase 2 of the CYMP to further develop the
conceptual design for a new Utility Operations and Fleet Maintenance Facility, proceed
with boundary identification, a topographic survey, and land use planning efforts with
TRPA and Placer County at the September 9, 2025 meeting. The topographic survey is
complete, and the fleet consultant was on site in November to conduct a workshop
analyzing NTPUD’s existing fleet shop operations and interview staff. Information
collected during the on-site meeting will be used to inform the schematic design.
Schematic Design documents are anticipated to be presented to the Board of Directors
this spring. The land planning and zoning task has commenced. This will be a multi-year
process to evaluate the parcels and any necessary lot-line and zoning changes.

Annex Building Garage and Seismic Improvements (Project #2602): A 2024-2025
Capital Improvement Project to prepare the Annex Building for the new Vac-Con truck
authorized by the Board of Directors at the September 9, 2025 meeting and improve the
seismic resilience of the existing Annex structure.

Status: The Board of Directors awarded a design contract to WY Architects for the
Annex Vactor Bay Addition Project at the September 9, 2025 meeting. At the February
10, 2026 Meeting the Board authorized a design amendment to include additional
seismic improvements, a new roof, and racks for material storage, and site drainage
improvements. Final design is now complete, and the project is currently being
advertised for bids. Staff anticipates presenting a construction contract for award to the
Board of Directors at the April Board Meeting. Construction is anticipated to start in
June 2026.

2026 Watermain Replacement (Project #2661): A FY25/26 Capital Improvement
project to replace undersized and leaking watermains that have reached the end of their
life. NTPUD Engineering and Operation Departments collaborated to identify the sections
of watermain most in need of replacement. This project includes approximately 1,800 feet
of new watermain, an intertie with Fulton Water Company, and 4 new fire hydrants.

Status: NTPUD Engineering Staff has prepared construction drawings and project
specifications for the watermain replacement project in Commonwealth, Suffolk,
Chipmunk, Kingswood Village, and an intertie in Old County. Final design is complete,
and the project is currently being advertised for bids. Staff anticipates presenting a
construction contract for award to the Board of Directors at the April Board Meeting.
Construction is anticipated to start in Summer 2026. There is no major grant funding
available for the 2026 project; however, the intertie with Fulton Water Company is being
funded by a PCWA grant in the amount of $50,000.

Water System Consolidation (Project #2663): A FY25/26 Capital Improvement

project to evaluate Fulton Water Company (FWC) and Agate Bay Water Company
(ABWC) water systems to determine the improvements necessary to consolidate with

193



the NTPUD water systems. The study will include a planning-level asset condition
evaluation of FWC and ABWC storage reservoirs, surface water supplies, groundwater
supplies, watermains, valving, fire hydrants, and water meters. System deficiencies will
be identified, and recommendations for improvements will be prioritized.

Status: NTPUD has received a PCWA grant of $75,000 to fund the NTPUD, Agate Bay,
and Fulton Water System Consolidation Study, under PCWA'’s 2025 Financial Assistance
Program. The Board of Directors awarded a contract to Psomas for the preparation of the
Water System Consolidation Technical Report at the October 14, 2025 meeting. Psomas
is reviewing background information and preparing data requests from the private water
systems. Staff anticipates receiving the draft consolidation report in summer 2026.

OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES

In 2026, Federal and California State Regulations require the submittal of these reports.
They are not due every year, they are all just lining up for 2026.

1. 2025 Urban Water Management Plan — California (Dept Water Resources) —
Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPSs) are prepared by urban water
suppliers every five years. These plans support long-term water resource
planning to ensure that adequate water supplies are available to meet existing
and future water needs. The District’'s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan
demonstrated our compliance with the 20% water reduction by 2020 and was
adopted by the Board in June 2021 along with the Water Shortage Contingency
Plan.

2. Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) — California (State Water Resources
Control Board) — The State Water Board reissued the Statewide Sanitary Sewer
Systems General Order in its entirety on June 5, 2023. This Order created a
recurring interval for updating and publicly approving the SSMP every six years
and a plan audit to be conducted at the mid-point of the update period, year 3.
The SSMP was first prepared in 2010 and was adopted by the Board in 2013.

3. Risk and Resilience Assessment — Federal (EPA) — On October 23, 2018,
America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) was signed into law. AWIA section
2013, which amended section 1433 of the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA),
requires community (drinking) water systems (CWSs) serving more than 3,300
people to develop or update risk and resilience assessments (RRAs) and
emergency response plans (ERPS).

4. Emergency Response Plan — Federal (EPA) — See above.

5. Multi Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (MJHMP) — Federal (FEMA) —
Placer County prepares the plan for all County entities every five years. NTPUD
will have a section in the plan called an Annex. A hazard mitigation plan is the
representation of the jurisdiction’s commitment to reduce risks from natural
hazards, serving as a guide for decision makers as they commit resources to
reducing the effects of natural hazards. Hazard mitigation planning can
significantly reduce the physical, financial, and emotional losses caused by
disasters. FEMA encourages and rewards local pre-disaster planning by making

194



it a requirement to access certain grant programs. A hazard mitigation plan
includes a community risk assessment, community capability assessment, and
prioritized mitigation action plan. The Board last adopted the Plan in December
2021.

FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES

Bureau of Reclamation 2024 WaterSMART Grant (#R24AS00052): Staff submitted in
February 2024 a grant application to upgrade our existing 2,815 water meters with new,
ultrasonic flowmeters utilizing cellular endpoints for data communication. The
installation of these meters will be performed by a Contractor through the public bid
process. The District entered into a Grant Agreement for the $500,000 WaterSMART
Grant from the Bureau of Reclamation on December 4, 2024. The District received the
Notice to Proceed on March 17, 2025.

2024 EPA Community Grants Program (#66.202): Staff have submitted the
necessary 2025 Waterline Replacement Project grant application to the EPA
Community Grants Sustainable Water Infrastructure Program that is funded through the
2024 Federal Appropriations Act. This project will install approximately 2,600 linear feet
of 8-inch watermains, improve system looping, and add five new fire hydrants along
Trout Avenue, and a portion of Brook Avenue east of Fox Street, to comply with the
California Fire Code. The approved appropriation amount is $1,250,000 and requires a
20% District match. The grant was formally awarded on April 15, 2025 and is on May
13, 2025 Agenda for Board acceptance.

Plan Reviews
0 The chart below is the 3-year cumulative completed plan checks by month.

195



CUMULATIVE PLAN CHECK BY CALENDAR

YEAR

45

50
*202

6 d 202% A 2024

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

PLAN CHECKS COMPLETED - CUMULATIVE

Jan Feb Mar Apr

Water Service Lateral Relocations

May Jun Jul

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

0 See below tracking table of private service lateral status on Steelhead, Golden,
Rainbow, Trout, Brook, Upper Chipmunk, and Upper Beaver streets. Outreach,
through numerous methods, remains active.

DEADLINE TO | TOTAL AFFECTED TOTAL

PROJECT (WITH SIDE OF STREET) CONNECT PARCELS CONNECTED
Rainbow (South Side) 9/1/2027 35 16
Sal_mon (North Side from Fox to 9/1/2027 13 9
Chipmunk)
Trout (North and South Sides, except
South Side from Raccoon to Fox) 9/1/2027 35 S
lE__%(r)c:gk (North and South Sides East of 9/1/2027 16 3
Upper Chipmunk and Beaver
(Between Speckled and Cutthroat) 9/1/2027 6 0

2025 Project Total 9/1/2027 105 33
Trout (South Sides from Raccoon to TBD 6 0

Fox)

196




REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:
Joseph J. Pomroy, P.E. Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Engineering and Operations Manager General Manager/CEO

197



NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: G-6
FROM: Utility Operations Department

SUBJECT: Utility Operations Department Report

DISCUSSION: Department Highlights for the month of February 2026

Maintenance Division

Wastewater: The first part of the month was productive with 1.6 miles of hydro flushing the
gravity mains in the Granite, Nile, Uplands Roads area. The four-person crew was also tasked
with CCTV’ing the gravity main (see attached drawing 1A) that is being reviewed as part of the
CIPP gravity main lining project. Due to the sag in the main, the crew had to run the hydro-
flushing line at the same time as the CCTV camera was filming the line. The hydro-flusher was
able to pull the wastewater back as the camera moved forward. This is not an easy task. One
wrong move and the hydro flushing nozzle could take out the camera. Snow removal returned
mid-month with big storm that hit on the 17th. Monthly problematic manholes (17) have been
inspected and washed down.

Water: The first few weeks and last week of the month were focused on the water meters being
swapped out with the new cellular meters in Brockway Springs and Brockway Shores condo
areas. Most of these meters are under the condos, so we need to gain access to the condo and
go through the crawl space access door and crawl through the crawl space to get to the meters.
One good note is that for every crawlspace we enter, there are two meters in each one. The
week of the 17" was all snow removal. Several truckloads of snow were removed from the
Event Center and TVRA boat ramp area.

Water Meter Cellular Program: The total of meters swapped out to cellular continues to
increase from 2,243 last month to 2,264 this month. We continue to eat the elephant while we
continue to monitor and react to the data we receive each day from the meters. Staff has been
using the cellular program to investigate services with continuous use and notify the customers
as quickly as possible to help reduce unplanned water use and save costs to the customer.

Field Inspection: February was unusually high, just like January and December, with Ord 100
(pressure tests) and USA tickets. While we anticipated we would be reporting at the March
Board meeting that the FOG / Grease Interceptor inspections were being completed, the extra
Ord 100 and USA tickets, along with a vacation, have stalled us a bit. Once again, we have it in
our schedule to start inspections the first week of March.

198



Technician and Water Quality Divisions

Technician: In the middle of January, we shut the National Ave Water Treatment Plant down
and moved the Tahoe Main water production to the Regional Park Well for a trial period of three
months to verify that there will be no production issues when we shut the plant down for
improvements in the future. We are glad to say the trial period is going very smoothly. We are
getting ready to do some maintenance needed on the plant and the chlorine contact chamber.
Parts have been ordered, and the outside contractor is being scheduled. One of the four pumps
for the Dollar Main station was sent out for its 10,000 hours rehab several months ago. The
pump was picked up on the 24" and reinstalled on the 26". We are looking to schedule the next
pump to be rehabbed. Daily, weekly, and monthly PMs were completed. Work continues
populating our new Lockout Tagout program. Last month, we reported that we were in the
process of meeting with engineers to identify the projects and assets that need our Arc Flash
updated. That meeting took place, and we are now in the process of updating station labeling
and addressing the Arc Flash Safety Program in our safety manual.

Water Quality: February starts the beginning of several programs and reporting for the staff.
The annual backflow monitoring has commenced. The annual DRINC reporting for all three
systems has been released by State. We can now start entering our data for our three water
systems. The regular monthly tasks of weekly distribution water samples, three water system
reports to the State, the monthly meter read, and checking the excessive use accounts were
completed also. Daily checking in the cellular meter software continues to help find continuous
use to help customers reduce their water loss and cut additional consumption costs.

Fleet Division: Our mechanic has been playing catch up on the preventive maintenance work
orders and special repairs this month. 26 vehicles and pieces of equipment have been serviced
along with 6 generators out in the field. Several minor repairs were completed also including
four snowblowers that were quickly repaired and sent back out into the snow removal process.

Departmentwide in December: Paul DeBenedictis passed his Class A commercial driver’s
license. Kelly Moore and Kirk Misiewicz passed the first half (hands on) of their Backflow Testers
recertification. They have taken their second half (written exam), but don’t get the results for 30
to 45 days on that part. Robert Pascerella has transferred to the Event Center Maintenance
position. We want to wish Robert all the best in his new position. Safety training this month
included Fall protection and Bloodborne Pathogens. Both topics are required annual training
from CalOSHA. Snow fell again and then the rain came. Lots of work is being done while the
weather is good. We have posted for seasonal Maintenance Worker help for this dig season.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By:
Kenneth P. Fischer
Operations Manager

Reviewed By: Approved By:
Joseph J. Pomroy, P.E. Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
Engineering and Operations Manager General Manager/CEO

199



Figure 1A

Gravity Main SC-1-025 (7380 NLB) to SC-1-020 (7442 NLB) on the lake of North Lake Blvd. between
Pino Grande and East Agatam.

200



Million Gallons

60.0

Total Water Production 2021-2026

50.0

40.0

30.0

20.0 A

10.0 A

00 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
2021 ® 2022 2023 2024 m 2025 " 2026
District Water Production
2021-25 2026 vs
YEAR 2021 2022 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 5-yr Avg 5yr Avg
JAN 20.7 23.3 24.9 22.1 25.1 17.2 23.2 74%
FEB 25.6 22.1 20.2 15.7 20.2 15.1 20.8 73%
MAR 20.1 20.9 20.8 17.2 16.6 19.1 0%
APR 194 18.0 18.2 20.1 20.0 19.1 0%
MAY 22.3 21.3 23.8 18.1 21.8 215 0%
JUNE 41.7 34.7 26.4 40.1 344 35.5 0%
JULY 45.6 49.3 354 42.0 441 43.3 0%
AUG 52.8 43.1 53.0 44.9 41.0 47.0 0%
SEPT 36.9 40.9 37.1 45.1 42.3 40.5 0%
OCT 33.1 33.7 33.9 30.3 26.0 314 0%
NOV 215 24.9 19.6 18.2 16.8 20.2 0%
DEC 17.9 17.2 15.9 17.1 16.2 16.9 0%
Total 358 349 329 331 325 32 338 10%
MONTH: February 2026 Compiled By: Raquel Moore
Water Production: | Gallonage | Pump run COMMENTS
National Ave. Treatment Plant 66,000
Park Well 12,874,000 234 hrs 917 AVG GPM
Carnelian Well 1,153,000 97.9 hrs 196 AVG GPM
Dollar Inter-Tie 991,000
Total Production 15,084,000

201




30.0

2024 / 2025/ 2026 Sewer Flows

Sewer Monthly
2024 2025 2026

JAN 20.2 19.4 22.0

FEB 21.0 23.4

MAR 26.3 24.3

APR 27.7 23.0

MAY 22.9 20.5

JUNE 21.9 21.2

JULY 26.6 25.3

AUG 22.2 225

SEPT 21.9 16.3

OCT 15.1 14.2

NOV 14.7 13.9

DEC 19.5 18.6

Average 21.7 20.2 22.0

Total 260.0 242.6 22.0

Water Monthly
2024 2025 2026

JAN 22.1 25.1 17.2

FEB 15.7 20.2 15.1

MAR 17.2 16.6

APR 20.1 20.0

MAY 18.1 21.8

JUNE 40.1 34.4

JULY 42.0 44.1

AUG 44.9 41.0

SEPT 45.1 42.3

OCT 30.3 26.0

NOV 18.2 16.8

DEC 17.1 16.2

Water Cumulative
2024 2025 2026

JAN 22.1 25.1 17.2

FEB 37.8 45.3 32.3

MAR 55.0 61.9

APR 75.1 81.9

MAY 93.2 103.7

JUNE 133.3 138.1

JULY 175.3 182.2

AUG 220.2 223.2

SEPT 265.3 265.5

OCT 295.6 291.5

NOV 313.8 308.3

DEC 330.9 324.5

(2]
[
°
©
V]
[
2
=
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JuLy AUG SEPT ocT NOV DEC
2024 @2025 ®2026
2024/ 2025/ 2026
Month To Month Water Production
80.0
70.0
w 600
[ =
o
3 500
(U]
c 400
2
E 30.0
20.0
10.0
00 K JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JuLy AUG SEPT ocT NOV DEC
m2024 m2025 12026
2024 / 2025/ 2026 Water Production Year To Date
450
350
"
c
§ /
(_B 250
(U]
5 A
=

50 1

-50

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY  JUNE  JULY  AUG  SEPT  OCT Nov DEC

=#=2024  =e=2025 2026

202




NORTH TAHOE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

DATE: March 10, 2026 ITEM: G-7
FROM: Office of the General Counsel

SUBJECT: Legal Report

Below is a summary of noteworthy legal items for this month:

1. AB 2180 — Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act: Proportional Cost of
Service

The California Constitution mandates that local governments charging property-
related fees must ensure that the fees do not exceed the proportional cost of service.
Existing law (the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act) sets specific procedures
and parameters for local governments to comply with that requirement.

Proposition 218 has generated significant litigation surrounding tiered water rates.
This has given rise to conflicting case law and significant damages awarded. Although
Proposition 218 is codified in the California Constitution, the Legislature has the power to
adopt legislation reflecting their interpretation, and this legislation is given deference by
the courts. AB 2180 seeks to codify case law precedent and provide the courts with a
framework to properly analyze tiered water rate cases under Proposition 218.

AB 2180 would authorize local governments to demonstrate the proportional cost
of the service attributable to a parcel by any method that reasonably allocates the
ascertainable cost of providing service to all parcels, if substantiated as provided.
Specifically for water or sewer service fees or charge impositions, local governments are
not required to provide an exact measure of the cost of the service for each parcel.
Instead, they can impose uniform or tiered fees or charges to defined parcels or customer
classes with common characteristics of likely water or sewer use. Proportional cost of
service within each tier of water service can be substantiated by using any reasonable
basis for allocating costs attributed to the tier, as described.

We will continue closely monitoring this bill and provide an update in the coming
months.

(Link to proposed bill:
https://leqginfo.leqislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtm|?bill id=202520260AB2180)

203


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260AB2180

2. California Water Plan 2028

On February 27, 2026, the Department of Water Resources announced the formal
launch of California Water Plan 2028 (Water Plan 2028), marking the start of a multi-
year effort to modernize statewide water planning in response to climate-driven
extremes and long-term water reliability challenges.

Work on Water Plan 2028 will focus around three main workstreams, including:

o Data for Water Use and Supply Balances: collecting statewide, watershed-scale
datasets, leveraging new data and advanced technologies, and bringing in
statewide planning models.

« Targets for Long-Term Water Supply: creating credible, localized, urban,
agriculture, Tribal and environmental targets; expanding coverage of hydrologic
regions, and aligning with Governor Newsom’s 2022 Water Supply Strategy and
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.

« Actions for Adaptation and Implementation: creating place-specific strategies,
including nature-based solutions, to close supply-demand gaps; creating cost-
benefit analyses; and tracking progress and integration across State, federal, and
local planning.

The California Water Plan 2028 factsheet provides a comprehensive overview of
the action-oriented approach to responsible, future management of California’s water.

The launch of Water Plan 2028 initiates the first phase of work under Senate Bill
(SB) 72, which mandates modernization of the California Water Plan by improving data
and setting measurable targets. SB 72 also creates a more coordinated, transparent
planning framework that aligns State, regional, and local actions, which includes close
collaboration with the California Water Commission. SB 72 sets a clear expectation:
move statewide water planning from description to direction.

Under SB 72, the California Water Plan is being modernized to:
« Better reflect climate change and long-term water supply risk.
« Improve consistency and transparency in statewide and watershed-scale data.

« ldentify effective water management strategies, informed by economic
considerations.

o Establish clear planning targets that help align State, regional, and local actions.

SB 72 makes clear that a stronger California Water Plan requires meaningful
engagement from across the state. To fulfill this mandate, DWR is convening
an Advisory Committee that will shape the workplan for both the 2028 and 2033 Water
Plans and provide input about approaches to effectively engage regional communities
throughout development of Water Plan 2028 and future water plans. The Advisory
Committee will include representation from urban and agricultural water suppliers, local

204


https://resources.ca.gov/-/media/CNRA-Website/Files/Initiatives/Water-Resilience/CA-Water-Supply-Strategy.pdf?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Groundwater-Management/SGMA-Groundwater-Management?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/California-Water-Plan/Docs/Update2028/CWP-2028-Fact-Sheet.pdf?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://resources.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/California-Water-Plan/Docs/Update2028/CWP-Senate-Bill-72-FAQ-Handout.pdf?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://resources.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/California-Water-Plan/Docs/Update2028/CWP-Senate-Bill-72-FAQ-Handout.pdf?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery

government, business and labor, environmental and environmental justice interests,
Tribes, and other interested parties.

REVIEW TRACKING:

Submitted By: Approved By:
Joshua Nelson/BB&K Bradley A. Johnson, P.E.
District Counsel General Manager/CEO

205



Board of Directors
Long Range Calendar

March 2026 Dates of Interest Date

Frozen Pickle Cup 2/28-3/1/2026

SnowFest! Kings Beach Pancake Breakfast/Parade 3/7/2026

Special Districts Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Spring Education Day 3/17-3/18/2026

Cocoa at the Cabin 3/21/2026

CWEA Awards Dinner 3/7/2026 Peppermill

California Parks & Recreation Society Conference 3/10-3/13 Long Beach

California Tahoe Alliance Sacramento Legislative affairs visit 3/24/2026

Semi-Annual Employee Meeting 3/25/2026

April 2026 Dates of Interest Date

Special Recreation & Parks Commission/Committee Meeting 4/1/2026, 5:30 p.m.

Form 700s are due April 1

Spring Scavenger Hunt 4/4/2026

April - NTCA First Tuesday Breakfast Club - Summer 2026 Road Construction Update 4/7/2026

Kayak and SUP storage opens 4/8/2026

NTPUD Recreation & Parks Commission and Committee Regular Joint Meeting 4/23/2026

Tahoe Water for Fire Suppression Partnership - Washington DC legislative affairs visit (tentative) 4/20/2023

Placer County Discover and Discuss Event - Spring Edition TBD

April 14, 2026 Regular Board of Directors Meeting CE:*:i?ifteee D&P Committee Con?miftrees
Employee Anniversary Award 4/10/2026 - James Schneider - 20 years

Draft Fiscal Year 2025/26 Strategic Focus and Budget Parameters

Award a Construction Contract for the 2026 Watermain Improvements Project X
Printing Equipment Lease (tentative)

LAFCO representatives selection (tentative)

Adopt Sewer System Management Plan - Renewal

Recreation, Parks, and NTEC Facility Fees

Recreation Programming Scholarship Program Discussion - Tentative

Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement for PEM Trail Reconstruction X
Design

Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement for Snow Creek Trail X
Connection Design

May 2026 Dates of Interest Date

Summer Activity Guide release and program registration opens

May Meltdown Disc Golf Tournament 5/20/2026

TVRA Boat Ramp opens 5/23/2026

ACWA Spring Conference 5/5-5/7 Sacramento

206




Board of Directors
Long Range Calendar

Pickle in the Pines Pickleball Tournament 05/22-5/24

Special Board Meeting - Fiscal Year 2026/2027Captial Improvement Project Budget Workshop and Tour

Special District Leadership Academy Conference 5/11-5/14 San Diego

May 12, 2026 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Cglr:?nniftZe D&P Committee Cor(r?::i(tetrees
Employee Anniversary Award 4/30/2026 - Nathan Chorey - 5 years

Employee Anniversary Award 5/9/2026 - Randy Compasso - 10 years

GM Evaluation (Closed session)

Fiscal Year 2026/27 Budget Workshop

Public Hearing 2025 Urban Water Management Plan

Award a Construction Contract for the Annex Improvements

Award a Construction Contract for the Replacement of Asphalt Concrete in Various Locations X
Review TTSA representative appointment

June 2026 Dates of Interest Date

NTPUD Recreation & Parks Commission and Committee Regular Joint Meeting 6/25/2026

Music on the Beach (every Friday at KBSRA, 6 - 8:30 p.m.) Begins

American Water Works Association (AWWA) Annual Conference 6/21-6/24| Washington DC

CSDA General Manager's Conference 6/28-6/30| Newport Beach

TTSD Green Waste Drop Off Day TBD

Walk & Learn Tour - CW Well and CW Pump Station 2 TBD

June 9, 2026 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Czlr:?nr}fteee D&P Committee Corg::i(tatrees
Employee Anniversary Award 5/30/2026 - David Berry - 20 years

Employee Anniversary Award 5/31/2026 - Eric Sachse - 10 years

Annual Public Hearing on Open Positions and Recruitment Status

Adopt Final Budget

Approve Appropriations Limit

Approve PO's for Budgeted Line ltems/Vendors

Adopt 2025 Urban Water Management Plan

GM Evaluation (Closed session)

July 2026 Dates of Interest Date

Parks Make Life Better! Month

FREE Ice Cream in the Park - Thursdays

Rise & Strike Community Run

Music on the Beach (every Friday at KBSRA)

207




Board of Directors
Long Range Calendar

Placer County Elections Filing Period

Friends of the Library Book Sale

July 14, 2026 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Finanpe D&P Committee Oth.er
Committee Committees

Adopt Resolution for Annual Lien Action

Adopt Resolution for Community Facilities District 94-1 Assessment

Notice of Completion for the Speckled Services Project X

Notice of Completion for the Smart Meter Installation Project X

GM Evaluation (Closed session)

August 2026 Dates of Interest Date

Lake Tahoe Summit TBD

Music on the Beach (Every Friday at KBSRA through September 2) ongoing 6 p.m. KBSRA

Live at the Launch - live music at TVRA Mondays 6-8:30 P.M. TVRA

CSDA Annual Conference and Exhibitor Showcase 8/24-8/27 Palm Desert

NTPUD Recreation & Parks Commission and Committee Regular Joint Meeting 8/27/2026 6 P.M. NTEC

NTPUD Fall/Winter Activity Guide release

August 11, 2026 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Czlr:?nr}fteee D&P Committee Corg::i(tatrees

Employee Anniversary Award 7/26/2026 - Andrew Haney - 5 years

GM Evaluation (Closed session)

Public Employee Compensation - GM

Items with dates pending

California Fair Political Practices Commission Ethics Training (AB 1234) by General Counsel, Joshua Nelson,

Best Best & Krieger LLP (Required every two years; Due 9/12/2027)

Interagency Agreement with Tahoe Conservancy for Fuels Management for Infrastructure

Anti Harrassment Training Workshop for Board (AB1661) (Required every two years; Due September 2026)

GM Eval (May-June)

Biennial Filing - Amend Conflict of Interest Code September 2026

Wholesale Water Agreement with TCPUD

208




	F-2 b FY26 Utility Rate Adjustment Discussion.pdf
	Slide 1: Utility Rate Adjustment Review  and Discussion
	Slide 2: NTPUD Rate Adjustment – Process
	Slide 3: NTPUD Rate Adjustment – Goals
	Slide 4: NTPUD Rate Adjustment – Cost of Service Study
	Slide 5: NTPUD Rate Adjustments – Outreach
	Slide 6: NTPUD Rate Adjustments – Public Hearing
	Slide 7: NTPUD Rate Adjustments – Results to Date
	Slide 8: NTPUD Rate Adjustments – Results to Date
	Slide 9: Cost of Service Study Demonstration of Need for Water Rate Adjustments
	Slide 10: Cost of Service Study Demonstration of Need for Wastewater Rate Adjustments
	Slide 11
	Slide 12: NTPUD Rate Adjustments – Board Options
	Slide 13: Reference Slides Scheduled Rate Changes
	Slide 14: Water Rates – Single Family Residential
	Slide 15: Water Rates – Multi-Residential
	Slide 16: Water Rates – Commercial
	Slide 17: Water Rates – Common Meter (Irrigation)
	Slide 18: Water Rates – Fire Protection System
	Slide 19: Water Rates – Flat Unmetered Rate
	Slide 20: Wastewater Rates – Residential
	Slide 21: Wastewater Rates – Non-Residential Base Rates
	Slide 22: Wastewater Rates – Non-Residential  System Replacement Rates

	G-3 a Month End Financials - January 2026.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8-12
	13
	14
	15-17
	18-19
	20-24
	25
	26
	27
	28
	29
	30
	31
	32
	33

	ADP17A1.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP2CA5.tmp
	Water Production 2021-2026

	ADP67EB.tmp
	WaterProd&SewerFlows 2026-24-25

	ADPCDBC.tmp
	2025  Rolling 12-Months




